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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

November 8, 2012 
 
Town Council 
Town of Kittery 
Kittery, Maine 
 
 We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the Town of Kittery, Maine, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, 
which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the Town’s management.  
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audit. 
 
 We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material misstatement.  
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the basic financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall basic financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
 In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining information of the 
Town of Kittery, Maine as of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial 
position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended, in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report 
dated November 8, 2012 on our consideration of the Town of Kittery’s internal control over 
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grants agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in 
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.  
 

Proven Expertise and Integrity 

 

 

3 Old Orchard Road, Buxton, Maine 04093 
Tel: (800) 300-7708    (207) 929-4606 Fax: (207) 929-4609 

www.rhrsmith.com 
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require 

that the management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on 
pages 3 through 11 and 51 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods 
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 
 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial 
statements that collectively comprise the Town of Kittery’s financial statements as a whole. 
The combining and individual non major fund financial statements are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for the purposes of 
additional analysis as required by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a 
required part of the financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund 
financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the 
responsibility of management and are derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.  The information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America.  In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation 
to the financial statements as a whole.   
 

 
Certified Public Accountants 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2012 
 

(UNAUDITED) 
 
 The following management’s discussion and analysis of Town of Kittery, Maine's 
financial performance provides an overview of the Town's financial activities for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2012.  Please read it in conjunction with the Town's financial 
statements. 
  

Financial Statement Overview 

 
 The Town of Kittery’s basic financial statements include the following components:  
1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the 
financial statements.  This report also includes required supplementary information which 
consists of the general fund budgetary comparison schedule, and other supplementary 
information which includes combining and other schedules.  
 

Basic Financial Statements 
 
 The basic financial statements include financial information in two differing views:  
the government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements. These basic 
financial statements also include the notes to financial statements that explain in more 
detail certain information in the financial statements and also provide the user with the 
accounting policies used in the preparation of the financial statements. 
 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

 
 The government-wide financial statements provide a broad view of the Town’s 
operations in a manner that is similar to private businesses.  These statements provide 
both short–term as well as long–term information in regards to the Town’s financial 
position.  These financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. 
This measurement focus takes into account all revenues and expenses associated with 
the fiscal year regardless of when cash is received or paid. The government–wide financial 
statements include the following two statements: 
 

The Statement of Net Assets – this statement presents all of the government’s 
assets and liabilities with the difference being reported as net assets.   

 
The Statement of Activities – this statement presents information that shows how 
the government’s net assets changed during the period.   All changes in net assets 
are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, 
regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.  
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Both of the above mentioned financial statements have separate columns for the 
two different types of town activities.  The types of activities presented for the Town of 
Kittery are:   

 
● Governmental activities – The activities in this section are mostly supported 

by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (federal and state grants).  Most of 
the Town's basic services are reported in governmental activities, which 
include general government, public safety, public works, education, health 
and sanitation, recreation and culture, social services and other.   

 
 ● Business-type activities – These activities are normally intended to recover 

all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and/or charges to 
external users for goods and/or services. These activities for the Town of 
Kittery include the school lunch program and sewer department.  

 
Fund Financial Statements 

 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over 

resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The Town of 
Kittery, like other local governments uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with financial related legal requirements.   All of the funds of the Town of 
Kittery can be divided into three categories:  governmental funds, proprietary funds, and 
fiduciary funds.   

 
Governmental funds:  Most of the basic services provided by the Town are financed 

through governmental funds.  Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the 
same functions reported in governmental activities in the government–wide financial 
statements.  However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, the governmental 
fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources.  
They also focus on the balance of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal 
year. Such information will be useful in evaluating the government’s near-term financing 
requirements.  This approach is known as the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under this approach revenues are 
recorded when cash is received or when susceptible to accrual.  Expenditures are 
recorded when liabilities are incurred and due.  These statements provide a detailed short-
term view of the City’s finances to assist in determining whether there will be adequate 
financial resources available to meet the current needs of the Town.  
 
 Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of government-wide 
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental 
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide 
financial statements.  By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of 
the government’s near-term financing decisions.  Both the governmental fund balance 
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in 
fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental 
funds and governmental activities.  These reconciliations are presented on the page 
immediately following each governmental fund financial statement.  
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 The Town of Kittery presents four columns in the governmental fund balance sheet 
and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund 
balances.  The Town’s major governmental funds are the general fund, the Mitchell 
Shapleigh Building Project and the Community Center Fund.  All other funds are shown as 
nonmajor and are combined in the “Other Governmental Funds” column on these 
statements.    
 
 The general fund is the only fund for which the Town legally adopted a budget.  The 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Budgetary Basis – Budget and Actual – General Fund 
provides a comparison of the original and final budget and the actual expenditures for the 
current year.   
 

Proprietary Funds:  The Town of Kittery maintains two proprietary funds, the School 
lunch fund and sewer fund.  These funds are used to show activities that operate more like 
those of commercial enterprises.  Proprietary funds provide the same type of information 
as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail.  Like the government-
wide financial statements, proprietary fund financial statements use the accrual basis of 
accounting.  No reconciliation is needed between the government-wide financial 
statements for business-type activities and the proprietary fund financial statements.   
 

Fiduciary Funds:  These funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit 
of parties outside the Town of Kittery.  These funds are not reflected in the government-
wide financial statements because the resources of these funds are not available to 
support the Town’s own programs.  The accounting used for fiduciary funds are much like 
that of proprietary funds.  They use the accrual basis of accounting.   
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of 
the data provided in the Government-Wide and the Fund Financial Statements. The Notes 
to Financial Statements can be found following the Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements.  

 
Required Supplementary Information 

 
 The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required supplementary 
information, which includes a Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Budgetary Basis – 
Budget and Actual – General Fund. 
 

Other Supplementary Information 
 
 Other supplementary information follows the required supplementary information.  
These combining and other schedules provide information in regards to nonmajor funds, 
capital asset activity and other detailed budgetary information for the general fund.  
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Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
 

Our analysis below focuses on the net assets, and changes in net assets of the 
Town's governmental activities.  The Town's total net assets for governmental funds are 
$31.6 million compared to $31.3 million in the prior year, an increase of 0.85%. For the 
business-type activities total net assets are $10.66 million as compared to $10.69 million in 
the prior year, a decrease of 0.28%. 
 

Unrestricted net assets - the part of net assets that can be used to finance day-to-
day operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or 
other legal requirements – is $7.01 million at the end of this year for governmental 
activities and $194,491 for the business-type activities.  

   

2 0 1 1 2 0 1 1

2 0 1 2 ( R e s t a t e d ) 2 0 1 2 ( R e s t a t e d )

A s s e t s :

C u r r e n t  a n d  O th e r  A s s e t s 1 2 ,8 3 1 , 1 5 1$     1 5 , 4 3 8 , 3 3 0$     3 2 4 , 4 4 5$          6 2 3 , 9 0 9$           

C a p i t a l  A s s e t s  4 0 ,7 4 4 , 7 4 5      3 5 , 2 3 3 , 4 3 2      1 4 , 3 8 3 , 9 6 0      1 4 , 5 4 2 , 6 8 3       

O t h e r  A s s e t s -                      -                      5 , 4 7 3               9 , 8 6 7                

T o t a l  A s s e t s 5 3 ,5 7 5 , 8 9 6$     5 0 , 6 7 1 , 7 6 2$     1 4 , 7 1 3 , 8 7 8$     1 5 , 1 7 6 , 4 5 9$      

L i a b i l i t i e s :

C u r r e n t  L i a b i l i t i e s 3 ,2 8 8 , 2 8 2$       5 , 1 9 1 , 3 6 5$       4 3 1 , 8 0 7$          4 4 0 , 5 2 1$           

L o n g - T e r m  D e b t  O u t s t a n d i n g 1 8 ,7 1 0 , 8 6 4      1 4 , 1 6 9 , 9 4 1      3 , 6 1 9 , 7 5 6        4 , 0 4 4 , 1 9 9         

T o t a l  L i a b i l i t i e s 2 1 ,9 9 9 , 1 4 6$     1 9 , 3 6 1 , 3 0 6$     4 , 0 5 1 , 5 6 3$       4 , 4 8 4 , 7 2 0$        

N e t  A s s e t s :

I n v e s t e d  i n  C a p i t a l  A s s e t s ,

N e t  o f  R e l a t e d  D e b t 2 1 ,6 2 3 , 8 4 8$     2 1 , 3 5 9 , 3 8 1$     1 0 , 4 4 0 , 3 2 4$     1 0 , 1 8 0 , 4 4 5$      

R e s t r i c t e d 2 ,9 3 9 , 0 9 3        4 , 1 0 7 , 8 3 0        2 7 , 5 0 0             -                        

U n r e s t r i c t e d 7 ,0 1 3 , 8 0 9        5 , 8 4 3 , 2 4 5        1 9 4 , 4 9 1           5 1 1 , 2 9 4            

T o t a l  N e t  A s s e t s 3 1 ,5 7 6 , 7 5 0$     3 1 , 3 1 0 , 4 5 6$     1 0 , 6 6 2 , 3 1 5$     1 0 , 6 9 1 , 7 3 9$      

B u s i n e s s - T y p e  A c t i v i t i e s

T a b l e  1

T o w n  o f  K i t t e r y ,  M a i n e

N e t  A s s e t s

J u n e  3 0 ,

G o v e r n m e n t a l  A c t i v i t i e s
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2 0 1 1 2 0 1 1

2 0 1 2 ( R e s t a t e d ) 2 0 1 2 ( R e s t a t e d )

R e v e n u e s

P r o g r a m  R e v e n u e s :

C h a r g e s  f o r  s e r v i c e s 9 0 5 , 7 6 9$        8 0 3 , 2 9 2$        2 , 0 3 9 , 2 7 1$     2 , 0 4 5 , 7 3 4$     

O p e r a t i n g  g r a n t s  a n d  c o n t r i b u t i o n s 1 ,7 1 8 , 5 6 6      2 , 2 3 1 , 5 9 6      1 7 9 , 9 3 0         1 6 5 , 3 0 1         

C a p i t a l  g r a n t s  a n d  c o n t r i b u t i o n s 1 9 8 , 0 9 5         -                     -                     -                     

G e n e r a l  R e v e n u e s :

T a x e s 2 1 ,1 7 5 , 1 0 8    2 0 , 8 1 3 , 9 0 4    -                     -                     

G r a n t s  a n d  c o n t r i b u t i o n s  n o t  r e s t r i c t e d

   t o  s p e c i f i c  p r o g r a m s 1 ,8 0 7 , 7 1 9      1 , 6 5 5 , 0 6 5      -                     -                     

I n v e s t m e n t  i n c o m e 8 0 , 3 0 5           1 2 0 , 6 2 8         -                     -                     

M i s c e l l a n e o u s 7 ,1 2 3 , 5 7 3      1 , 3 9 0 , 5 4 7      4 9 , 2 9 9           7 5 , 0 3 2           

     T o t a l  R e v e n u e s 3 3 ,0 0 9 , 1 3 5    2 7 , 0 1 5 , 0 3 2    2 , 2 6 8 , 5 0 0      2 , 2 8 6 , 0 6 7      

E x p e n s e s

  G e n e r a l  g o v e r n m e n t 7 ,7 8 8 , 3 2 5      1 , 0 5 3 , 4 2 5      -                     -                     

  P u b l i c  s a f e t y 3 ,8 4 1 , 2 2 8      3 , 4 8 0 , 4 4 7      -                     -                     

  P u b l i c  w o r k s 1 ,8 2 6 , 1 4 0      2 , 0 0 6 , 4 6 5      -                     -                     

  H e a l t h  a n d  w e l f a r e 6 6 1 , 9 6 3         6 6 9 , 7 2 7         -                     -                     

  S o c i a l  S e r v i c e s 1 6 6 , 4 8 0         5 5 , 7 2 2           -                     -                     

  R e c r e a t i o n  a n d  c u l t u r e 1 ,0 3 7 , 2 8 5      1 , 0 0 9 , 9 5 9      -                     -                     

  E d u c a t i o n 1 4 ,4 9 8 , 8 0 0    1 5 , 6 0 9 , 1 5 7    -                     -                     

  C o u n t y  t a x 8 4 2 , 5 3 7         8 6 2 , 8 0 2         -                     -                     

  C a p i t a l  o u t l a y 5 0 7 , 7 8 0         2 , 0 6 2 , 6 6 8      -                     -                     

  G r a n t  f u n d s / m i s c .  a c c o u n t s 2 5 0 , 7 8 4         1 5 6 , 0 1 9         -                     -                     

  O v e r l a y -                     1 0 1 , 6 0 0         -                     -                     

  U n a l l o c a t e d  d e p r e c i a t i o n  ( N o t e  4 ) 1 1 5 , 4 4 0         1 1 2 , 0 2 7         -                     -                     

  I n t e r e s t  o n  l o n g - t e r m  d e b t 1 2 5 , 7 4 6         1 0 5 , 3 0 1         -                     -                     

  S t a t e  o f  M a i n e  o n  -  b e h a l f  p a y m e n t s 9 5 0 , 8 5 6         1 , 1 9 5 , 7 0 9      -                     -                     

  E n t e r p r i s e  f u n d s -                     -                     2 , 4 2 7 , 4 0 1      2 , 2 3 9 , 3 7 4      

     T o t a l  E x p e n s e s 3 2 ,6 1 3 , 3 6 4    2 8 , 4 8 1 , 0 2 8    2 , 4 2 7 , 4 0 1      2 , 2 3 9 , 3 7 4      

T o t a l  t r a n s f e r s ( 1 2 9 , 4 7 7 )        ( 2 0 8 , 0 3 2 )        1 2 9 , 4 7 7         2 0 8 , 0 3 2         

C h a n g e  i n  N e t  A s s e t s 2 6 6 , 2 9 4         ( 1 , 6 7 4 , 0 2 8 )     ( 2 9 , 4 2 4 )          2 5 4 , 7 2 5         

N e t  A s s e t s  -  J u l y  1  3 1 ,3 1 0 , 4 5 6    3 2 , 9 8 4 , 4 8 4    1 0 , 6 9 1 , 7 3 9    1 0 , 4 3 7 , 0 1 4    

N e t  A s s e t s  -  J u n e  3 0 3 1 ,5 7 6 , 7 5 0$   3 1 , 3 1 0 , 4 5 6$   1 0 , 6 6 2 , 3 1 5$   1 0 , 6 9 1 , 7 3 9$   

T a b l e  2

T o w n  o f  K i t t e r y ,  M a i n e

C h a n g e  i n  N e t  A s s e t s

F o r  t h e  Y e a r s  E n d e d  J u n e  3 0 ,  

G o v e r n m e n t a l  A c t i v i t i e s B u s in e s s - t y p e  A c t i v i t i e s
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Revenues and Expenses 
 

 Revenues for the Town's governmental activities increased by 22.19%, while total 
expenses increased by 14.51%.  The biggest increase in expenses was in general 
government while the biggest increase in revenues was in miscellaneous revenue. These 
large increases can mostly be attributed to the community center project.    
 
 Revenues decreased by 0.77% in the Town’s business type activities, while the 
total expenses increased by 8.40%. Most of the proprietary funds expenses were 
consistent with the previous year with minor increases or decreases. The biggest decrease 
in revenues was in the miscellaneous.  
 

Financial Analysis of the Town’s Fund Statements 
 

Governmental funds:  The financial reporting focus of the Town’s governmental 
funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable 
resources.  Such information may be useful in assessing the Town’s financial 
requirements.  In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a 
government’s financial position at the end of the year, and the net resources available for 
spending.  
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2 0 1 2 2 0 1 1

M a jo r  F u n d s :

G e n e r a l  F u n d :

N o n s p e n d a b l e -$                    2 , 3 5 0$            

R e s t r i c t e d 9 7 0 , 2 7 3         9 7 8 , 6 9 0         

U n a s s i g n e d 4 , 3 1 7 , 9 9 2      4 , 3 4 4 , 5 0 2      

M i t c h e l l / S h a p l e i g h  b u i l d i n g  p r o je c t :

R e s t r i c t e d 2 3 , 9 2 3           1 , 0 5 7 , 5 1 3      

C o m m u n i t y  c e n t e r :

   C o m m i t t e d 3 0 8 , 6 5 5         -                     

U n a s s i g n e d -                     ( 2 8 0 , 5 1 3 )        

T o t a l  M a jo r  F u n d s 5 , 6 2 0 , 8 4 3$     6 , 1 0 2 , 5 4 2$     

N o n m a j o r  F u n d s :

P e r m a n e n t  f u n d s :

R e s t r i c t e d 1 , 0 3 1 , 3 6 1$     1 , 0 7 4 , 0 6 4$     

C a p i t a l  p r o j e c t  f u n d s :

   N o n s p e n d a b l e 6 9 , 7 0 0           -                     

R e s t r i c t e d 8 5 2 , 6 3 1         7 7 6 , 2 5 9         

C o m m i t t e d 2 , 1 5 1 , 3 5 8      1 , 4 6 7 , 0 7 2      

U n a s s i g n e d ( 1 1 9 , 0 6 2 )        ( 2 9 , 0 8 9 )          

S p e c i a l  r e v e n u e  f u n d s :

R e s t r i c t e d 6 0 , 9 0 5           2 2 1 , 3 0 4         

C o m m i t t e d 1 , 2 1 6 , 0 8 1      1 , 1 0 5 , 0 3 5      

A s s i g n e d 4 1 , 4 2 6           1 1 7 , 9 0 5         

U n a s s i g n e d ( 5 7 0 , 0 9 1 )        ( 3 2 9 , 2 0 7 )        

T o t a l  N o n m a jo r  F u n d s 4 , 7 3 4 , 3 0 9$     4 , 4 0 3 , 3 4 3$     

T a b l e  3

T o w n  o f  K i t t e r y ,  M a i n e

F u n d  B a l a n c e s  -  G o v e r n m e n t a l  F u n d s

J u n e  3 0 ,

 
 

The general fund total fund balance decreased by $37,277 from the prior fiscal year.  
The Mitchell Shapleigh Building Project decreased by $1,033,590 and the Community 
Center increased by $589,168. The non-major fund balances increased by $330,966 from 
the prior fiscal year.   
 

Proprietary funds:  The Town’s proprietary funds provide the same type of 
information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.  

 
The school lunch fund had an operating income for the current year of $842, while 

the sewer fund had an operating loss of $79,861.   
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Budgetary Highlights 
 

There were significant differences between the original and final budget for the 
general fund.  These differences were budget adjustments done by the Town for special 
town meetings or adjustments between departments as well as use of restricted and 
unassigned fund balances. 

 
The general fund actual revenues exceeded the budget by $94,953.  This was a 

result of all revenues being receipted over budget with the exception of general tax 
revenue.   

 
The general fund actual expenditures were under the budget by $1,130,066.  The 

following expenditures were under budget which accounts for most of the balance:    
 
 Education      $970,273 
 Overlay        130,210 
 

 
Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

 
Capital Assets 

 

 As of June 30, 2012, the net book value of capital assets recorded by the Town 
increased by $5,352,590.  The increase was caused by capital additions of $7,686,681 
primarily resulting from the Mitchell/Shapleigh and Community Center projects less current 
year depreciation of $2,334,091. Refer to Note 4 of Notes to Financial Statements for 
additional information.  
 

2 0 1 2 2 0 1 1

La n d  a n d  im p ro v e m en ts 1 2 ,57 1 ,9 3 8$   1 2 ,66 1 ,0 6 6$    

B u i ld i ng s  a nd  im p ro v em e n ts 2 7 ,59 4 ,9 5 8    2 1 ,94 6 ,0 8 4     

M a ch in e ry  a nd  e q u ip m e n t 1 ,03 8 ,8 1 0      97 9 ,6 8 8          

V eh ic le s 1 ,60 9 ,4 1 2      1 ,70 5 ,6 0 0       

C o n s tru c t ion  in  p ro g re ss 9 ,12 5 ,4 4 2      9 ,90 1 ,0 1 9       

In fr as tru c tu re 3 ,18 8 ,1 4 5      2 ,58 2 ,6 5 8       

T o ta l 5 5 ,12 8 ,7 0 5$   4 9 ,77 6 ,1 1 5$    

T a b le  4

T o w n  o f K it te ry , M a in e

C a p ita l A s s e ts  (N e t o f D ep rec ia tio n )

J u ne  3 0 ,
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Debt 
 

 At June 30, 2012, the Town had $22.22 million in bonds outstanding versus $17.98 
million last year, an increase of 23.53%. Other obligations include capital leases payable 
and accrued vacation and sick time. Refer to Note 5 of Notes to Financial Statements for 
more detailed information. 
 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

 
 The Town has steadily maintained a sufficient unassigned fund balance to sustain 
government operations for a period of approximately two months, while also maintaining 
significant reserve accounts for future capital and program needs. 

 
Contacting the Town's Financial Management 

 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and 

investors and creditors with a general overview of the Town's finances and to show the 
Town's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or 
need additional financial information, contact the Town Finance Dept. at, 200 Rogers Road 
Ext., P.O. Box 808, Kittery, Maine  03904-0808. 
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G o v e rn m e n t a l B u s in e ss -T y pe

A ct iv i t ie s A c t iv it ie s T o ta l

A S S E T S

  C u r ren t  a ss e ts :

C a sh  a n d  c a sh  e q u i v a le n ts 6 ,0 1 7 ,35 3$        -$                        6 , 01 7 ,35 3$       

I nv e stm e n ts 5 ,3 6 4 ,62 6         -                         5 , 36 4 ,62 6        

A c c o u n ts  rec e iv a b le  (n e t  o f  a l l ow an c e  fo r  u nc o lle c t ib le s) :

T ax es 8 7 8 ,54 2            -                         87 8 ,54 2           

O the r 9 6 ,32 3              3 9 2 ,5 0 1             48 8 ,82 4           

D u e  f ro m  o th e r  g o v e rn m e n ts 3 0 9 ,63 8            8 ,2 8 2                 31 7 ,92 0           

P re p a i d  e x p e n se s 6 9 ,70 0              -                         6 9 ,70 0             

I nv e n t o ry -                       1 8 ,6 3 1               1 8 ,63 1             

I n te rn a l  ba la n c es 9 4 ,96 9              (9 4 ,9 6 9 )              -                       

  T o ta l c u r ren t  a ss e ts 1 2 ,8 3 1 ,15 1       3 2 4 ,4 4 5             1 3 , 15 5 ,59 6      

  N o n cu r re n t  as se ts :

C a p ita l a ss e ts :

La n d ,  in f ra s tru c tu re ,  an d  o t he r  a ss e ts  n o t  be in g  d ep re c ia t ed 1 6 ,3 4 1 ,60 6       4 ,0 0 9 ,9 4 2           2 0 , 35 1 ,54 8      

B u il d i ng s  an d  v eh ic le s  ne t  o f  ac c u m u la te d  d e p re c ia t io n 2 4 ,4 0 3 ,13 9       10 ,3 7 4 ,0 1 8         3 4 , 77 7 ,15 7      

  T o ta l n o nc u r re n t  a s se ts 4 0 ,7 4 4 ,74 5       14 ,3 8 3 ,9 6 0         5 5 , 12 8 ,70 5      

O th e r  as se ts :

B o n d  iss ua n c e  co s ts  (n e t  o f  a m o r t iz a t io n ) -                       5 ,4 7 3                 5 ,47 3               

T O T A L  A S S E T S 5 3 ,5 7 5 ,89 6$      14 ,7 1 3 ,8 7 8$        6 8 , 28 9 ,77 4$      

L IA B IL IT IE S

  C u r ren t  l i ab il i t ie s :

A c c o u n ts  p ay a b le 6 6 9 ,79 2$           1 1 ,9 8 8$              68 1 ,78 0$          

A c c ru ed  e x p e ns e s 7 4 3 ,27 7            -                         74 3 ,27 7           

D e fe r re d  re v e nu e -                       3 ,3 4 5                 3 ,34 5               

P re p a i d  t ax es 9 5 ,18 8              -                         9 5 ,18 8             

O th e r  l ia b il i t ie s 2 4 7 ,85 7            -                         24 7 ,85 7           

C u r ren t  p o r t io n  o f  lo n g - te rm  o b lig a t io ns 1 ,5 3 2 ,16 8         4 1 6 ,4 7 4             1 , 94 8 ,64 2        

  T o ta l c u r ren t  l i ab il i t ie s 3 ,2 8 8 ,28 2         4 3 1 ,8 0 7             3 , 72 0 ,08 9        

  N o n cu r re n t  l ia b i l i t ie s

    N o n c u r re n t  po r t io n  o f  lo n g - te rm  ob lig a t io n s:

      B on d s p a y ab le 1 6 ,9 3 0 ,00 0       3 ,5 2 7 ,1 6 2           2 0 , 45 7 ,16 2      

      C a p ita l le a se  p a ya b le 6 5 8 ,72 9            -                         65 8 ,72 9           

      A cc ru e d  c o m p e ns a ted  a b se n c es 1 ,1 2 2 ,13 5         9 2 ,5 9 4               1 , 21 4 ,72 9        

  T o ta l n o nc u r re n t  l ia b i l i t ie s 1 8 ,7 1 0 ,86 4       3 ,6 1 9 ,7 5 6           2 2 , 33 0 ,62 0      

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S 2 1 ,9 9 9 ,14 6       4 ,0 5 1 ,5 6 3           2 6 , 05 0 ,70 9      

N E T  A S S E T S

    Inv e ste d  in  c ap it a l as se ts ,  ne t  o f  re la te d  de b t 2 1 ,6 2 3 ,84 8       10 ,4 4 0 ,3 2 4         3 2 , 06 4 ,17 2      

    R e str i c ted 2 ,9 3 9 ,09 3         2 7 ,5 0 0               2 , 96 6 ,59 3        

    U n re str ic te d 7 ,0 1 3 ,80 9         1 9 4 ,4 9 1             7 , 20 8 ,30 0        

T O T A L  N E T  A S S E T S 3 1 ,5 7 6 ,75 0       10 ,6 6 2 ,3 1 5         4 2 , 23 9 ,06 5      

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S  A N D  N E T  A S S E T S 5 3 ,5 7 5 ,89 6$      14 ,7 1 3 ,8 7 8$        6 8 , 28 9 ,77 4$      

S e e  ac c o m p an y in g  in d ep e nd e n t  a ud ito rs '  rep o r t  a nd  n o te s to  f i na n c ia l s t a te m e n ts .
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O p e ra t i ng C ap ita l B u s in e ss -

C h a rg es  fo r G ra n ts  & G ran ts  & G o v e rn m e n ta l ty pe

F u n c t io ns /P rog ra m s E x pe n se s S e rv ic e s C on tr ib u t io n s C o n tr ib u t i on s A ct i v i t ie s A c t i v i t ie s T o ta l

G o v e rn m e n ta l  a c t i v i t ie s :

G e n e ra l go v e rn m e n t 7 ,7 8 8 ,3 2 5$       30 9 ,1 03$       3 6 ,9 2 9$           -$                     (7 , 44 2 ,2 93 )$       -$               (7 ,4 42 ,2 9 3 )$     

P u b lic  s a f e ty 3 ,8 4 1 ,2 2 8        8 4 ,6 13         -                      2 9 ,78 3            (3 , 72 6 ,8 32 )       -                (3 ,7 26 ,8 3 2 )      

P u b lic  w o rk s 1 ,8 2 6 ,1 4 0        -                   -                      1 6 8 ,31 2          (1 , 65 7 ,8 28 )       -                (1 ,6 57 ,8 2 8 )      

R e c rea t io n  a nd  c u ltu re 1 ,0 3 7 ,2 8 5        26 6 ,5 29       -                      -                      (77 0 ,7 56 )          -                (7 70 ,7 5 6 )         

H e a lth  an d  sa n ita t io n 6 6 1 ,9 6 3          24 5 ,5 24       -                      -                      (41 6 ,4 39 )          -                (4 16 ,4 3 9 )         

S o c ia l s e rv ic e s 1 6 6 ,4 8 0          -                   -                      -                      (16 6 ,4 80 )          -                (1 66 ,4 8 0 )         

E d u c a t i on 14 ,4 9 8 ,8 0 0      -                   7 3 0 ,7 8 1          -                      (1 3 , 76 8 ,0 19 )      -                (1 3 ,7 68 ,0 1 9 )    

C o u n ty  ta x 8 4 2 ,5 3 7          -                   -                      -                      (84 2 ,5 37 )          -                (8 42 ,5 3 7 )         

S ta te  o f  M a in e  on -b eh a lf  pa y m e n ts 9 5 0 ,8 5 6          -                   9 5 0 ,8 5 6          -                      -                       -                -                      

C a p ita l o u t l ay 5 0 7 ,7 8 0          -                   -                      -                      (50 7 ,7 80 )          -                (5 07 ,7 8 0 )         

G ra n t  fu n d s/m i sc .  a c c ou n ts 2 5 0 ,7 8 4          -                   -                      -                      (25 0 ,7 84 )          -                (2 50 ,7 8 4 )         

O v e r la y -                      -                   -                      -                      -                       -                -                      

U n a llo c a te d  d ep re c ia t io n  (N o te  4 ) 1 1 5 ,4 4 0          -                   -                      -                      (11 5 ,4 40 )          -                (1 15 ,4 4 0 )         

I n te re st  o n  lo n g - te rm  d e b t 1 2 5 ,7 4 6          -                   -                      -                      (12 5 ,7 46 )          -                (1 25 ,7 4 6 )         

       T o t a l  go v e rn m e n ta l a c t iv it ie s 32 ,6 1 3 ,3 6 4      90 5 ,7 69       1 ,7 1 8 ,5 6 6       1 9 8 ,09 5          (2 9 , 79 0 ,9 34 )      -                (2 9 ,7 90 ,9 3 4 )    

B u s in e ss - ty pe  a c t iv it ie s :

  S e w e r  d ep a r tm e n t 1 ,9 9 8 ,4 0 0        1 ,80 0 ,4 84     -                      -                      -                       (19 7 ,9 16 )   (1 97 ,9 1 6 )         

  S c h o o l  lu nc h  p rog ra m 4 2 9 ,0 0 1          23 8 ,7 87       1 7 9 ,9 3 0          -                      -                       (1 0 ,2 84 )     (10 ,2 8 4 )           

       T o t a l  bu s i ne s s- ty p e  ac t iv it i es 2 ,4 2 7 ,4 0 1        2 ,03 9 ,2 71     1 7 9 ,9 3 0          -                      -                       (20 8 ,2 00 )   (2 08 ,2 0 0 )         

       T o t a l  go v e rn m e n t 35 ,0 4 0 ,7 6 5$     2 ,94 5 ,0 40$    1 ,8 9 8 ,4 9 6$      1 9 8 ,09 5$         (2 9 , 79 0 ,9 34 )      (20 8 ,2 00 )   (2 9 ,9 99 ,1 3 4 )    

P ro g ra m  R ev e nu e s

N e t (E x p e ns e )  R e v en u e  &  C h a ng e s

i n  N e t  A ss e ts



STATEMENT B (CONTINUED) 
TOWN OF KITTERY, MAINE 

 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

14 
 

Business-

Governmental type

Activities Activities Total

Changes in net assets:

  Net (expense) revenue (29,790,934)    (208,200)        (29,999,134)   

General revenues:

Taxes:

    Property taxes, levied for general purposes 19,766,701      -                     19,766,701    

    Excise taxes 1,408,407        -                     1,408,407      

Grants and contributions not restricted to

    specific programs 1,807,719        -                     1,807,719      

Investment income 80,305             -                     80,305           

Miscellaneous 7,123,573        49,299            7,172,872      

   Transfers (129,477)         129,477          -                     

  Total general revenues and transfers 30,057,228      178,776          30,236,004    

Change in net assets 266,294           (29,424)          236,870         

NET ASSETS - JULY 1, RESTATED 31,310,456      10,691,739     42,002,195    

NET ASSETS - JUNE 30 31,576,750$    10,662,315$   42,239,065$  

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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Mitchell/ Other Totals

General Shapleigh Community Governmental Governmental

Fund Bldg Project Center Funds Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 5,882,077$      -$                -$                135,276$      6,017,353$   

Investments 4,677,535        -                 -                 687,091        5,364,626     

Accounts receivables (net of allowance for 

uncollectibles):

Taxes/liens 878,542          -                 -                 -                   878,542        

Other 3,842              -                 5,460          87,021          96,323          

Due from other governments 94,233            -                 -                 215,405        309,638        

Prepaid expenses -                      -                 -                 69,700          69,700          

Due from other funds 981,105          23,923        413,195      4,679,214     6,097,437     

TOTAL ASSETS 12,517,334$    23,923$      418,655$    5,873,707$   18,833,619$ 

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 281,850$         -$                110,000$    277,942$      669,792$      

Accrued payroll 743,277          -                 -                 -                   743,277        

Due to other funds 5,141,012        -                 -                 861,456        6,002,468     

Prepaid taxes 95,188            -                 -                 -                   95,188          

Deferred tax revenues 719,885          -                 -                 -                   719,885        

Other liabilities 247,857          -                 -                 -                   247,857        

TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,229,069        -                 110,000      1,139,398     8,478,467     

FUND BALANCES

    Nonspendable -                      -                 -                 69,700          69,700          

    Restricted 970,273          23,923        -                 1,944,897     2,939,093     

    Committed -                      -                 308,655      3,367,439     3,676,094     

    Assigned -                      -                 -                 41,426          41,426          

    Unassigned 4,317,992        -                 -                 (689,153)       3,628,839     

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 5,288,265        23,923        308,655      4,734,309     10,355,152   

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 12,517,334$    23,923$      418,655$    5,873,707$   18,833,619$ 

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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T o ta l

G o ve rn m e n ta l

F u nd s

T o ta l F u n d  B a la nc e s 10 ,3 5 5 ,15 2$   

A m ou n ts  r ep o rte d  fo r  g ov e rn m e n ta l a c t iv i t ie s  in  th e  s ta te m e n t a r e  d if fe re n t be c a u se :

  C a p ita l a s se ts  u s e d  i n  g o v e r nm e n ta l a c t iv i t ie s  a re  n o t fi na n c ia l re so u rc es  a n d

     th e re fo re  a r e  n o t re p o rte d  in  th e  fun d s , ne t o f  a cc u m u la te d  d ep r ec ia t io n 40 ,7 4 4 ,74 5    

  O th e r lo ng -te rm  a s se ts  a r e  n o t a va i la b le  to  p a y  fo r  cu rre n t-p e r io d  ex pe n d itu re s

    a n d  th e r e fo re  a re  d e fe r re d  in  th e  fun d s  sh o w n  a b o v e :

    T a xe s  a nd  l ie n s  re ce iv ab le 7 1 9 ,88 5         

   L o n g -te rm  l ia b i l i t ie s  a re  n o t d u e  a n d  p a y ab le  in  th e  c u rre n t p e r io d  a n d

     th e re fo re  a r e  n o t re p o rte d  in  th e  fun d s :

     B o n d s  p a ya b le ( 18 ,2 7 5 ,00 0 )   

     C a p ita l le a se  p a ya b le (8 4 5 ,89 7 )        

     A c c r ue d  c om p e n sa te d  a bs e n ce s (1 ,1 2 2 ,13 5 )     

N e t as s e ts  o f g o v e rn m en ta l a c t iv i t ie s 31 ,5 7 6 ,75 0$   

S ee  a c co m p a ny in g  in de p e n d e n t a u d ito rs '  re po rt  a n d  n o te s  to  f in a n c ia l s ta tem e n ts .
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M itc h e ll/ T o ta ls

G e ne ra l S h ap le ig h C o m m u n ity N on m a jo r G o v e rn m e n ta l

F u n d B ld g  P ro je c t C e n te r F u nd s F un d s

R E V E N U E S

G e n e ra l tax  rev e n ue 2 1 ,1 28 ,8 1 2$  -$                -$               -$                 21 ,1 2 8 ,8 1 2$  

I n te rg ov e rn m en ta l re v en u e 1 ,7 45 ,8 5 7     -                 -                1 ,02 7 ,6 67   2 ,7 7 3 ,5 2 4     

C h a rge s fo r  se rv ic es 9 05 ,7 6 9        -                 -                -                 9 0 5 ,7 6 9        

I nv e stm e n t  in c o m e 55 ,0 9 0          -                 -                2 5 ,2 15        8 0 ,3 0 5          

S ta te  o f  M a in e  on  -  b e ha lf  p ay m e n ts 9 50 ,8 5 6        -                 -                -                 9 5 0 ,8 5 6        

O th e r  re v e n ue 4 56 ,9 4 8        -                 5 ,6 2 9 ,4 5 6  1 ,03 7 ,1 69   7 ,1 2 3 ,5 7 3     

T O T A L  R E V E N U E S 2 5 ,2 43 ,3 3 2   -                 5 ,6 2 9 ,4 5 6  2 ,09 0 ,0 51   32 ,9 6 2 ,8 3 9   

E X P E N D IT U R E S

  C u r ren t :

G e n e ra l go v e rn m e n t 1 ,6 52 ,0 5 4     -                 5 ,0 6 0 ,2 8 8  72 4 ,9 73      7 ,4 3 7 ,3 1 5     

P u b lic  s a f e ty 3 ,2 02 ,6 4 9     -                 -                30 7 ,7 39      3 ,5 1 0 ,3 8 8     

P u b lic  w o rk s 1 ,0 17 ,3 0 2     -                 -                40 9 ,9 76      1 ,4 2 7 ,2 7 8     

R e c rea t io n  a nd  c u ltu re 1 ,0 29 ,2 8 1     -                 -                -                 1 ,0 2 9 ,2 8 1     

H e a lth  an d  sa n ita t io n 6 53 ,8 1 9        -                 -                -                 6 5 3 ,8 1 9        

S o c ia l s e rv ic e s 1 66 ,4 8 0        -                 -                -                 1 6 6 ,4 8 0        

E d u c a t i on 1 3 ,1 46 ,2 4 0   -                 -                1 ,35 2 ,5 60   14 ,4 9 8 ,8 0 0   

C o u n ty  ta x 8 42 ,5 3 7        -                 -                -                 8 4 2 ,5 3 7        

S ta te  o f  M a in e  on  -  b e ha lf  p ay m e n ts 9 50 ,8 5 6        -                 -                -                 9 5 0 ,8 5 6        

O v e r la y -                   -                 -                -                 -                   

G ra n t  fu n d s/m i sc .  a c c ou n ts 2 50 ,7 8 4        -                 -                -                 2 5 0 ,7 8 4        

D e b t  se rv ic e 3 96 ,4 8 6        -                 -                -                 3 9 6 ,4 8 6        

C a p ita l o u t l ay -                   1 ,0 33 ,5 9 0   -                78 6 ,4 81      1 ,8 2 0 ,0 7 1     

T O T A L  E X P E N D IT U R E S 2 3 ,3 08 ,4 8 8   1 ,0 33 ,5 9 0   5 ,0 6 0 ,2 8 8  3 ,58 1 ,7 29   32 ,9 8 4 ,0 9 5   

E X C E S S  R E V E N U E S  O V E R  (U N D E R )  

   E X P E N D IT U R E S 1 ,9 34 ,8 4 4     (1 ,0 33 ,5 9 0 )  5 6 9 ,1 6 8    (1 ,49 1 ,6 78 )  (2 1 ,2 5 6 )         

O T H E R  F I N A N C I N G  S O U R C E S

O p e ra t in g  t ra n sf e rs  in 18 ,0 0 0          -                 2 0 ,0 0 0      2 ,03 7 ,8 22   2 ,0 7 5 ,8 2 2     

O p e ra t in g  t ra n sf e rs  (o u t) (1 ,9 90 ,1 2 1 )    -                 -                (21 5 ,1 78 )     (2 ,2 0 5 ,2 9 9 )    

T O T A L  O T H E R  F IN A N C IN G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S ) (1 ,9 72 ,1 2 1 )    -                 2 0 ,0 0 0      1 ,82 2 ,6 44   (1 2 9 ,4 7 7 )       

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  A N D  O T H E R  

    S O U R C E S  O V E R  (U N D E R )  E X P E N D IT U R E S

 A N D  O T H E R  (U S E S ) (37 ,2 7 7 )         (1 ,0 33 ,5 9 0 )  5 8 9 ,1 6 8    33 0 ,9 66      (1 5 0 ,7 3 3 )       

F U N D  B A L A N C E S  -  J U L Y  1 ,  R E S T A T E D 5 ,3 25 ,5 4 2     1 ,0 57 ,5 1 3   (2 8 0 ,5 1 3 )   4 ,40 3 ,3 43   10 ,5 0 5 ,8 8 5   

F U N D  B A L A N C E S  -  J U N E  3 0 5 ,2 88 ,2 6 5$    23 ,9 2 3$       3 0 8 ,6 5 5$    4 ,73 4 ,3 09$  10 ,3 5 5 ,1 5 2$  

S e e  ac c o m p an y in g  in d ep e nd e n t  a ud ito rs '  rep o r t  a nd  n o te s to  f i na n c ia l s t a te m e n ts .
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N e t ch a n ge  in  fu n d  b a la n ce s  -  to ta l  g o v e rn m e n ta l fu n ds  (S ta te m e n t E ) (1 5 0 ,7 3 3 )$       

A m ou n ts  r ep o rte d  fo r  g ov e rn m e n ta l a c t iv i t ie s  in  th e  S ta tem e n t o f A c t iv i t ie s

  ( S ta te m e n t B ) a re  d if fe re n t b ec a u se :

G o v er nm e n ta l fu nd s  re p o r t  c a p ita l ou t la y s  a s  e xp e n d itu re s  w h ile  g ov e rn m e n ta l a c t iv i t ie s

   r ep o rt  d e p re c ia t io n  e xp en s e  a l loc a te d  to  th o se  e xp e n d itu re s  o ve r th e  l i fe  o f th e  a ss e ts :

   C ap ita l a s se t p u rch a s es  ca p ita l iz e d 1 3 ,5 8 9 ,0 8 7    

   C ap ita l a s se t d isp o s a ls ( 6 ,1 8 7 ,3 5 2 )     

   D ep r ec ia t io n  e xp e n s e ( 1 ,8 9 0 ,4 2 2 )     

5 ,5 1 1 ,3 1 3      

R e ve n u e s  in  th e  S ta te m e n t o f A c t iv i t ie s  tha t d o  n o t p ro v id e  c u rre n t f ina n c ia l 

  r e so u rc es  a re  n o t re p o rte d .

  T ax es  a n d  l i en s  re ce iv a b l e 4 6 ,2 9 6           

D e b t p ro c e e ds  p ro v id e  c u r re n t f in a n c ia l r es o u rce s  to  g o v e r n m e n ta l fu nd s , b u t

  l on g -te rm  l ia b i l i t ie s  i n  th e  S ta te m e n t o f N e t A s se ts . ( 6 ,1 5 3 ,0 2 4 )     

R e p ay m e n t o f lo n g -te rm  d eb t p r in c ipa l is  a n  e xp e n d itu re  in  th e  g o ve rn m e n ta l

  fu n d s , b u t th e  r ep a y m en t re d u ce s  lo n g - te rm  l ia b i l i t ie s  in  th e  S ta te m e n t o f

  N e t A s s e ts 9 0 6 ,1 7 8         

S om e  e xp e n se s  re po rte d  in  th e  S ta te m e n t o f A c t iv i t ie s  d o  n o t re qu ir e  th e  u se  o f

  c u rre n t f in an c ia l re so u rc e s  a n d  the re fo re  a re  n o t r ep o rte d  a s  e xp e n d i tu re s  in

  g o v e rn m en ta l fu n ds :

  A c c ru ed  c o m pe n s a te d  a b se n c es 1 0 6 ,2 6 4         

C h a ng e  in  n e t a s se ts  o f g o v e r nm e n ta l a c t iv i t ie s  (S ta te m e n t B ) 2 6 6 ,2 9 4$        

S ee  a c co m p a ny in g  in de p e n d e n t a u d ito rs '  re po rt  a n d  n o te s  to  f in a n c ia l s ta tem e n ts .
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Sewer School Lunch

Department Program Totals

ASSETS

  Current assets:

Accounts receivable(net of allowance for 

uncollectibles) 392,501$       -$                    392,501$        

Inventory -                     18,631            18,631            

Due from other governments -                     8,282              8,282              

Due from other funds -                     24,680            24,680            

  Total current assets 392,501         51,593            444,094          

  Noncurrent assets:

Land and buildings 275,200         -                      275,200          

Construction in progress 3,734,742      -                      3,734,742       

Vehicles and equipment 605,529         98,255            703,784          

Plant / infrastructure 14,931,900    -                      14,931,900     

        Total capital assets 19,547,371    98,255            19,645,626     

      Less:  accumulated depreciation (5,164,911)     (96,755)           (5,261,666)      

        Net capital assets 14,382,460    1,500              14,383,960     

Other assets:

Bond issuance costs(net of amortization) 5,473             -                      5,473              

TOTAL ASSETS 14,780,434$  53,093$          14,833,527$   

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

  Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 11,773$         215$               11,988$          

Accrued payroll -                     -                      -                      

Deferred revenue -                     3,345              3,345              

Due to other funds 119,649         -                      119,649          

Current portion of long-term debt 416,474         -                      416,474          

  Total current liabilities 547,896         3,560              551,456          

  Noncurrent liabilities:

Bonds payable 3,527,162      -                      3,527,162       

Accrued compensated absences 92,594           -                      92,594            

  Total noncurrent liabilities 3,619,756      -                      3,619,756       

TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,167,652      3,560              4,171,212       

NET ASSETS

    Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 10,438,824    1,500              10,440,324     

    Restricted 27,500           -                      27,500            

    Unrestricted 146,458         48,033            194,491          

TOTAL NET ASSETS 10,612,782    49,533            10,662,315     

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 14,780,434$  53,093$          14,833,527$   

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements.

Enterprise Funds
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S e w e r S ch o o l L u nc h

D e p ar tm en t P ro g ra m T ota ls

O P E R A T IN G  R E V E N U E S

  In te rg o ve rn m e n ta l re ve n u e -$                    1 7 9 ,9 3 0$         1 7 9 ,9 3 0$         

  C h ar ge s  fo r  se rv ice s  1 ,8 0 0 ,4 8 4       2 3 8 ,7 8 7          2 ,0 3 9 ,2 7 1       

  O th e r 3 8 ,1 7 3            1 1 ,1 2 6            4 9 ,2 9 9            

T O T A L  O P E R A T IN G  R E V E N U E S 1 ,8 3 8 ,6 5 7       4 2 9 ,8 4 3          2 ,2 6 8 ,5 0 0       

O P E R A T IN G  E X P E N S E S

P a yro l l  a n d  ta xe s 1 6 1 ,8 3 3          1 5 1 ,6 1 5          3 1 3 ,4 4 8          

B e n e f i ts 1 3 8 ,2 1 7          2 1 ,3 8 0            1 5 9 ,5 9 7          

T re a tm e n t p la n t 8 1 9 ,9 9 7          -                      8 1 9 ,9 9 7          

P u m p s ta t io ns 3 0 4 ,6 2 8          -                      3 0 4 ,6 2 8          

F o o d  e xp e n s e -                     1 9 1 ,4 2 3          1 9 1 ,4 2 3          

S u p p li es -                     1 3 ,9 5 8            1 3 ,9 5 8            

L in e  e xp e n se 2 1 ,1 7 7            -                      2 1 ,1 7 7            

D e p re c ia t io n 4 4 2 ,1 3 5          1 ,5 3 4              4 4 3 ,6 6 9          

O th e r 3 0 ,5 3 1            4 9 ,0 9 1            7 9 ,6 2 2            

T O T A L  O P E R A T IN G  E X P E N S E S 1 ,9 1 8 ,5 1 8       4 2 9 ,0 0 1          2 ,3 4 7 ,5 1 9       

O P E R A T IN G  IN C O M E  (L O S S ) (7 9 ,8 6 1 )          8 4 2                 (7 9 ,0 1 9 )          

N O N -O P E R A T IN G  IN C O M E  (E X P E N S E )

O p e ra t in g  tra ns fe rs  i n  5 2 ,9 2 5            7 6 ,5 5 2            1 2 9 ,4 7 7          

O p e ra t in g  tra ns fe rs  ( o u t) -                     -                      -                     

In te r es t e xp e ns e (7 9 ,8 8 2 )          -                      (7 9 ,8 8 2 )          

T O T A L  N O N -O P E R A T IN G  IN C O M E  

(E X P E N S E ) (2 6 ,9 5 7 )          7 6 ,5 5 2            4 9 ,5 9 5            

C H A N G E  IN  N E T  A S S E T S (1 0 6 ,8 1 8 )        7 7 ,3 9 4            (2 9 ,4 2 4 )          

N E T  A S S E T S  -  JU LY  1 , R E S T A T E D 1 0 ,7 1 9 ,6 0 0     (2 7 ,8 6 1 )           1 0 ,6 9 1 ,7 3 9     

N E T  A S S E T S  -  JU N E  3 0 1 0 ,6 1 2 ,7 8 2$    4 9 ,5 3 3$           1 0 ,6 6 2 ,3 1 5$    

S ee  a c co m p a ny in g  in de p e n d e n t a u d ito rs '  re po rt  a n d  n o te s  to  f in a n c ia l s ta tem e n ts .

E n te rp r ise  F u n d s
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Sewer School Lunch

Department Program Totals

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

   Receipts from customers 1,808,136$    213,836$        2,021,972$    

   Intergovernmental receipts -                     -                      -                    

   Other receipts 38,173           191,056          229,229         

Internal activity - receipts (payments) from/to      

other funds 348,088         -                      348,088         

   Payments to employees (303,726)        (151,615)         (455,341)       

   Payments to suppliers (1,160,166)     (329,829)         (1,489,995)    

Net cash provide (used) by operating activities 730,505         (76,552)           653,953         

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

    Interest payments on bond payable (79,882)          -                      (79,882)         

    Principal payments on bond payable (418,602)        -                      (418,602)       

    Transfers 52,925           76,552            129,477         

(Purchase) sale of fixed assets (284,946)        -                      (284,946)       

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related 

financing activities (730,505)        76,552            (653,953)       

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH -                     -                      -                    

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JULY 1 -                     -                      -                    

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JUNE 30 -$                   -$                    -$                  

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME 

(LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss) and other financing (79,861)$        842$               (79,019)$       

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net

  cash provided (used) by operating activities:

  Depreciation  and amortization expense 442,135         1,534              443,669         

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

  (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 7,652             2,097              9,749             

  (Increase) decrease in inventory -                     (2,368)             (2,368)           

  (Increase) decrease in due from other governments -                      

  (Increase) decrease in due from other funds 228,439         (24,680)           203,759         

  (Increase) decrease in bond costs 4,394             -                      4,394             

  (Decrease) increase in deferred revenue -                     (1,389)             (1,389)           

  (Decrease) increase in accounts payable 11,773           20                   11,793           

  (Decrease) increase in accrued payroll -                     (21,283)           (21,283)         

  (Decrease) increase in due to other funds 119,649         (31,325)           88,324           

  (Decrease) increase in compensated absences (3,676)            -                      (3,676)           

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY ACTIVITIES 730,505$       (76,552)$         653,953$       

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements.

Enterprise Funds
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Agency Funds

Student

Activities

ASSETS

    Cash and cash equivalents 67,332$             

    Investments -                         

TOTAL ASSETS 67,332$             

LIABILITIES

    Accounts payable -$                       

    Deposits held for others 67,332               

TOTAL LIABILITIES 67,332$             

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to financial statements.  



TOWN OF KITTERY, MAINE 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2012 

23 
 

 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

Reporting Entity 
 

The Town of Kittery was incorporated under the laws of the State of Maine.  The 
Town operates under Town council-manager form of government and provides the 
following services:  general government services, public safety, public works, health and 
sanitation, education, recreation and culture and social services. 
 
 The Town’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its 
pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations).  Governments are also required to 
follow the pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued 
through November 30, 1989 (when applicable) that do not conflict with or contradict GASB 
pronouncements.  Although the Town has the option to apply FASB pronouncements 
issued after that date to its business-type activities and enterprise funds, the Town has 
chosen not to do so.   
 

The Town’s combined financial statements include all accounts and all operations of 
the Town.  We have determined that the Town has no component units as described in 
GASB Statement No. 14 and amended by GASB Statement No. 39. 

 
Government –Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

  
 The Town’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the 
Town as a whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the Town’s major funds).  
 
  Both the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize primary 
activities as either governmental or business-type. The Town’s sewer department and 
school lunch funds are categorized as a business-type activities. All other activities of the 
Town are categorized as governmental. 
 
 In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, both the governmental and 
business-type activities columns are (a) presented on a consolidated basis by column, and 
(b) are reported on a full accrual, economic resources basis, which recognizes all long-
term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations.  The Town's net 
assets are reported in three parts - invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted 
net assets; and unrestricted net assets.  The Town first utilizes restricted resources to 
finance qualifying activities. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of 
each of the Town's functions and business-type activities (general government, public 
safety, etc.).  The functions are also supported by general government revenues (property 
taxes, certain intergovernmental revenues, miscellaneous revenues, etc.).  The Statement 
of Activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues, 
operating and capital grants.  Program revenues must be directly associated with the 
function or a business-type activity.  Operating grants include operating-specific and 
discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital grants column reflects 
capital-specific grants. For the most part, the interfund activity has been eliminated from 
these government–wide financial statements. 
 
 The net costs (by function) are normally covered by general revenue (taxes, certain 
intergovernmental revenues and charges for services, etc.). 
 
 The Town does not allocate indirect costs.  All costs are charged directly to the 
corresponding department. 
 
 The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Town as an entity 
and the change in the Town’s net assets resulting from the current year’s activities. 
 

Measurement Focus - Basic Financial Statements & Fund Financial Statements 
 
 The financial transactions of the Town are reported in the individual funds in the 
fund financial statements.  Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balances, revenues and 
expenditures/expenses.  The various funds are reported by generic classification within the 
financial statements. 
 
 The following fund types are used by the Town: 
  
1. Governmental Funds: 
 
 The focus of the governmental funds' measurement (in the fund statements) is upon 
determination of financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources) 
rather than upon net income.  The following is a description of the governmental funds of 
the Town: 
 

a. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town.  It is used to 
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for 
in another fund.  
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

b. Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific 
revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified 
purposes. 

 

c. Capital Project Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used 
for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities or equipment. 

 

 d. Permanent Funds are used to account for assets held by the Town in trust 
for specific purposes.  

 
2.        Proprietary Funds 
 
 The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating 
income, changes in net assets, financial position, and cash flows.  The generally accepted 
accounting principles applicable are those similar to businesses in the private sector.  
Operating revenues include charges for services, intergovernmental reimbursements and 
other miscellaneous fees which are a direct result of the proprietary activity.  Non-
operating revenues are any revenues which are generated outside of the general 
proprietary activity, i.e. interest income.  The following is a description of the proprietary 
funds of the Town: 
 

a. Enterprise Funds are required to be used to account for operations for which 
a fee is charged to external users for goods or services and the activity (a) is 
financed with debt that is solely secured by a pledge of net revenues, (b) has 
third party requirements that the cost of providing services, including capital 
costs, be recovered with fees and charges or (c) established fees and 
charges based on a pricing policy designed to recover similar costs. 

 
3. Fiduciary Funds: 
  

Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for 
others and therefore are not available to support Town programs.  The reporting focus is 
on net assets and changes in net assets and is reported using accounting principles 
similar to proprietary funds. 

 
The Town’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements 

by type (agency).  Since by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third 
party (other local governments, private parties, etc.) and cannot be used to address 
activities or obligations of the government, these funds are not incorporated into the 
government-wide financial statements. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the 
governmental or business-type activities categories.  Non-major funds by category are 
summarized into a single column, GASB Statement No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria 
(percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenses of either the fund category or 
the governmental and enterprise combined) for the determination of major funds.  The 
nonmajor funds are combined in a column in the fund financial statements. 

 
Basis of Accounting 

 
 Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are 
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements.  Basis of accounting 
relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus 
applied. 
 
1. Accrual 
 
 Governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements and fiduciary 
fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are 
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. 
 
2. Modified Accrual 
 
 The governmental fund financial statements are presented on the modified accrual 
basis of accounting.  Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e., both measurable and available.  "Available" 
means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay 
liabilities of the current period.  Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified 
accrual basis of accounting when the related liability is incurred.  The exception to this 
general rule is that principal and interest on general obligation long-term debt, if any, is 
recognized when due. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF KITTERY, MAINE 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2012 

27 
 

 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

Budget 
 
 The Town’s policy is to adopt an annual budget for operations.  The budget is 
presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting which is consistent with generally 
accepted accounting principles. 
 
 In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 24, 
Accounting and Reporting for Certain Grants and Other Financial Assistance, payments 
made by the State of Maine to the Maine State Retirement System for teachers and certain 
other school employees are reported as offsetting revenues and expenditures of the 
general fund. 
 

Revenues per budgetary basis  $24,310,476 
Add:  On-behalf payments          950,856 
Total GAAP basis    $25,261,332 

 
Expenditures per budgetary basis  $24,347,753 
Add:  On-behalf basis          950,856 
Total GAAP basis    $25,298,609  

 
 
 The following procedures are followed in establishing budgetary data reflected in 
the financial statements: 
 
1. Early in the second half of the year the Town prepares a budget for the fiscal year 

beginning July 1.  The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the 
means of financing them. 

 
2. A meeting of the Town Council was called for the purpose of adopting the proposed 

budget after public notice of the meeting was given. 
 
3.   The budget was adopted subsequent to passage by the Town Council. 
 
4. The Town does not adopt budgets for Special Revenue Funds. 

 
Deposits and Investments 

 
 The Town’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand 
deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from 
the date of acquisition. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 
 The Town’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand 
deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from 
the date of acquisition. 
 
 It is the Town’s policy to value investments at fair value.  None of the Town’s 
investments are reported at amortized cost.  For purposes of the statement of cash flows, 
all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased are 
considered to be a cash equivalent.  The Town Treasurer is authorized by State Statutes 
to invest all excess funds in the following: 
 

- Obligations of the U.S. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities. 
- Certificates of deposits and other evidences of deposits at banks, savings and 

loan associations. 
- Prime bankers acceptances 
- Prime commercial papers 
- Repurchase agreements whose underlying collateral consist of the foregoing 
- Money market mutual funds whose portfolios consist of the foregoing 

 
It is the policy of the Town of Kittery, Maine to invest public funds in a manner in 

which will provide safety of principal with a market rate of return while meeting the daily 
cash flow demands of the town, and conforming to all state and local statutes governing 
the investment of public funds. 

 
Inventories 

 
Inventories of supplies are considered to be expenditures at the time of purchase 

and are not included in the general fund balance sheet.  The enterprise fund inventory 
consists of school lunch supplies and food on hand at the end of the year, valued at cost. 
The cost value is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.  

 
Interfund Receivables and Payables 

 
Any residual balances outstanding between governmental activities and business-

type activities are reported in the governmental-wide financial statements as “internal 
balances”.  Interfund balances and transactions have been eliminated in the government-
wide financial statements. 

 
Transactions Between Funds 

 
Legally authorized transfers are treated as interfund transfers and are included in 

the results of operations of both Governmental and Proprietary Funds. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 
Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 

 
The allowance for uncollectible accounts is estimated to be $40,000 as of June 30, 

2012.  The allowance is for estimated uncollected personal property/real estate taxes in 
the general fund. 

 
Capital Assets 

 
Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more are 

reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost.  Contributed assets are reported at 
fair market value as of the date received.  Additions, improvements and other capital 
outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized.  Infrastructure 
such as streets, traffic signals, and signs are capitalized.  Other costs incurred for repairs 
and maintenance are expensed as incurred.  Depreciation on all assets is provided on the 
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives. 

 
 The assets are valued at historical cost when available and estimated historical 

cost where actual invoices or budgetary data was unavailable.  Donated fixed assets are 
valued at their estimated fair market value on the date received.  All retirements have been 
recorded by eliminating the net carrying values. 
 

Infrastructure assets include roads, bridges, underground pipe (other than related to 
independently owned utilities), traffic signals, etc.  These infrastructure assets are likely to 
be the largest asset class of the Town.  The Town has not retroactively recorded 
infrastructure.  

 
Estimated useful lives are as follows: 

 
  Buildings    20 - 50 years 
  Infrastructure    50 - 100 years 
  Machinery and equipment  3 - 50 years 
  Vehicles    3 - 25 years 
 

Long-term Obligations 
 
The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are 

used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are 
reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements. 

 
All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources is 

reported as liabilities in government-wide statements.  The long-term debt consists 
primarily of notes or bonds payable and compensated absences. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 
Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund 

financial statements.  The debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources and 
payment of principal and interest reported as expenditures.  The accounting for proprietary 
fund is the same in the fund statements as it is in the government-wide statements. 

 
Compensated Absences 

 
The Town’s policies regarding vacation and sick time do permit employees to 

accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick leave.  The liability for these 
compensated absences is recorded as long-term debt in the government-wide financial 
statements.  In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report only the 
compensated absence liability payable from expendable available financial resources, 
while the proprietary funds report the liability as it is incurred.   As of June 30, 2012 the 
Town’s liability for compensated absences is $1,214,729.  

 
Net Assets 

 
Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities.  Net assets 

invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for those assets, 
and adding back unspent proceeds.  Net assets are reported as restricted when there are 
limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislations adopted by the 
Town or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations 
of other governments.   

 
Fund Balance 

 
 In the fund financial statements, fund balance for governmental funds is reported in 
classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the Town is 
bound to honor constraints on the specific purpose for which amounts in the funds can be 
spent.  Fund balance is reported in five components – nonspendable, restricted, 
committed, assigned and unassigned. 
 

Nonspendable – This includes amounts that cannot be spent either because they 
are not in spendable form or because they are legally or contractually required to be 
maintained intact. 

 
Restricted – This includes amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes 

because of constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or because of constraints that 
are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of 
other governments. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 
Committed – This includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes 

determined by a formal action of the inhabitants of the Town.  The inhabitants of the Town 
through Town meetings are the highest level of decision-making authority of the Town.  
Commitments may be established, modified, or rescinded only through a Town meeting 
vote. 

 
Assigned – This includes amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as 

restricted or committed but that are intended to be used for specific purposes.  The 
authority for assigning fund balance is expressed by the Town Council. 

 
Unassigned – This includes all other spendable amounts.  The general fund is the 

only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount.  Other governmental 
funds besides the general fund can only report a negative unassigned fund balance 
amount. 

 
When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and 

unrestricted fund balances are available, the Town considers restricted funds to have been 
spent first.  When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned 
fund balances are available, the Town considers amounts to have been spent first out of 
committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless 
the Town meeting vote has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions. 

 
The Town is in the process of adopting a set of financial policies to guide the 

financial operation of the Town.  Included in the policies will be guidelines for accumulating 
and maintaining an operating position in certain budgeted governmental funds such that 
annual expenditures shall not exceed annual resources, including fund balances.  Other 
funds shall be fully self-supporting to the extent that the fund balance or retained earnings 
of each fund shall be zero or greater. 

 
Revenue Recognition - Property Taxes - Modified Accrual Basis 

 
 The Town's property tax for the current year was levied September 26, 2011 on the 
assessed value listed as of April 1, 2011, for all real and personal property located in the 
Town.  Taxes were due on October 31, 2011.  Interest on unpaid taxes commenced on 
November 1, 2011, at 7% per annum. 
   

Property tax revenues are recognized when they become available.  Available 
includes those property tax receivables expected to be collected within sixty days after 
year end.  The remaining receivables have been recorded as deferred revenues. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 
The Town is permitted by the laws of the State of Maine to levy taxes up to 105% of 

its net budgeted expenditures for the related fiscal period.  The amount raised in excess of 
100% is referred to as overlay, and amounted to $130,210 for the year ended June 30, 
2012. 

 
Tax liens are placed on real property within twelve months following the tax 

commitment date if taxes are delinquent.  The Town has the authority to foreclose on 
property eighteen months after the filing of the lien if tax liens and associated costs remain 
unpaid. 

 
Program Revenues 

 
Program revenues include all directly related income items applicable to a particular 

program (grant income/expenses). 
 

Operating/Non-operating Proprietary Fund Revenues 
 
Operating revenues consist mainly of direct revenue sources and/or charges for 

services applicable to that fund. 
 

Encumbrance Accounting 
 
 Encumbrances are not liabilities and, therefore, are not recorded as expenditures 
until receipt of material or service.  For budgetary purposes, appropriations lapse at fiscal 
year-end.  The Town does not utilize encumbrance accounting for its general fund.   

 
Use of Estimates 

 
During the preparation of the Town’s financial statements, management is required 

to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
and disclosure of contingent items as of the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses/expenditures during the reporting period. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

 
 

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 

The Town’s investment policies, which follow state statutes, require that all 
investments be made considering the safe and sound investment of principal and 
preservation of capital in the overall portfolio, maintenance of sufficient liquidity to meet 
day-to-day operations and other cash requirements and maximization of income, within 
established investment risk guidelines, with consistent cash flows throughout the 
budgetary cycle.  These investment policies apply to all Town funds. 
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NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
 Deposits: 

 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a failure of a 

depository financial institution, the Town will not be able to recover its deposits.  The Town 
does not have a policy covering custodial credit risk for deposits.  However, the Town 
maintains deposits in qualifying financial institutions that are a member of the FDIC or 
NCUSIF as defined in Title 30-A, Section 5706 of the Maine Revised Statutes.  At June 30, 
2012, the Town’s cash balance of $6,017,353 was comprised of bank deposits amounting 
to $6,586,729 and cash equivalents of $15,232.  Of these bank deposits, $6,586,729 was 
insured by federal depository insurance or covered with an irrevocable standby letter of 
credit and consequently not exposed to custodial credit risk.  The cash equivalents of 
$15,232 were registered in the Town’s name and fully covered by the Securities Investor 
Protection Corporation (SIPC) and consequently were not exposed to custodial credit risk. 
 

B a n k  

A c c o u n t  T y p e B a l a n c e

C h e c k i n g  a c c o u n t s 5 8 4 , 1 1 9$        

S a v i n g s 1 0 , 3 4 0           

M o n e y  m a r k e t 1 0 5 , 7 7 9         

S w e e p  a c c o u n t 5 ,8 8 6 , 4 9 2      

C a s h  e q u i v a l e n t s 1 5 , 2 3 2           

6 , 6 0 1 , 9 6 1$     

 
 Investments: 

 
Custodial credit risk for investments is that, in the event of failure of the 

counterparty, the Town will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral 
securities that are in possession of an outside party.  Currently, the Town does not have a 
policy for custodial credit risk for investments.  However, in accordance with its investment 
policy, the Town seeks to minimize custodial credit risk by doing business with authorized 
institutions, depositories and broker/dealers.  As such, the Town’s investments in fixed 
income and equity securities for $687,091 and certificates of deposit of $4,677,535 are not 
exposed to custodial credit risk because those securities are registered in the Town’s 
name and are fully insured or fully covered by the Securities Investor Protection 
Corporation (SIPC).  
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NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

At June 30, 2012, the Town had the following investments and maturities: 
 

F a i r  

I n v e s t m e n t  T y p e V a l u e N / A <  1  Y e a r 1  -  5  Y e a r s

F i x e d  i n c o m e 5 1 2 , 2 3 7$      5 1 2 , 2 3 7$      -$                  -$                  

E q u i t i e s 1 7 4 , 8 5 4       1 7 4 , 8 5 4       -                   -                   

C e r t i f i c a t e s  o f  d e p o s i t 4 , 6 7 7 , 5 3 5    -                   4 , 6 7 7 , 5 3 5    -                   

5 , 3 6 4 , 6 2 6$   6 8 7 , 0 9 1$      4 , 6 7 7 , 5 3 5$   -$                  

 
Credit risk – Statutes for the State of Maine authorize the Town to invest in 

obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies and instrumentalities, other states and Canada, 
provided such securities are rated within the three highest grades by an approved rating 
service of the State of Maine, corporate stocks and bonds within statutory limits, financial 
institutions, mutual funds and repurchase agreements.  The Town does not have an 
investment policy on credit risk. 

 
Interest rate risk – is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the 

fair value of an investment.  The Town does not have a policy related to interest rate risk. 
 
 
NOTE 3 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 
  
 Interfund balances at June 30, 2012 consisted of the following individual fund 
receivables and payables. 
 

R ec e iva b le s P a y ab le s

(D u e  fro m ) (D u e  to )

G e n e ra l fun d 9 8 1 ,1 05$      5 ,14 1 ,0 1 2$    

M itc he ll /S h a p le ig h  b u ild in g  p ro je c t 2 3 ,9 23         -               

C o m m un ity  ce n te r 4 1 3 ,1 95       -               

S pe c ia l re ve n u e  fun d 1 ,4 7 4 ,2 14    74 2 ,3 9 5        

C a p ita l p ro je c t fu nd 2 ,9 9 3 ,2 45    11 9 ,0 6 1        

P er m an e n t fu nd 2 1 1 ,7 55       -               

E n te rp r i se  fu nd 2 4 ,6 80         11 9 ,6 4 9        

6 ,1 2 2 ,1 17$   6 ,12 2 ,1 1 7$    
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NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS  
 

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets at June 30, 2012: 
 

B a la n c e , B a la n ce ,

7 /1 /1 1 A dd it io n s D is p o sa ls 6 /3 0 /1 2

G o v er nm e n ta l a c t iv i t ie s

N o n -d ep re c ia te d  a s se ts :

L a nd 1 0 ,9 50 ,9 0 6$   -$                    -$                   1 0 ,9 5 0 ,9 0 6$   

C o n s tru c t io n  i n  p ro g re s s 6 ,1 87 ,3 5 2      5 ,3 9 0 ,70 0      (6 ,18 7 ,3 5 2 )    5 ,3 9 0 ,7 0 0      

1 7 ,1 38 ,2 5 8    5 ,3 9 0 ,70 0      (6 ,18 7 ,3 5 2 )    1 6 ,3 4 1 ,6 0 6    

D e p re c ia te d  as s e ts :

L a nd  Im p ro ve m e n ts 1 ,8 86 ,8 6 7      -                     -                    1 ,8 8 6 ,8 6 7      

B u i ld in gs 2 7 ,8 48 ,4 7 4    7 ,2 2 0 ,36 6      -                    3 5 ,0 6 8 ,8 4 0    

B u i ld in g  im p ro v e m en ts 1 ,6 05 ,0 1 8      5 ,69 4             -                    1 ,6 1 0 ,7 1 2      

M a c h i ne ry  &  e qu ip m e n t 3 ,2 77 ,2 2 5      1 0 0 ,18 9         (1 6 ,0 0 0 )         3 ,3 6 1 ,4 1 4      

V e h ic le s 3 ,5 97 ,6 7 8      1 1 0 ,63 2         (1 5 ,0 0 0 )         3 ,6 9 3 ,3 1 0      

In fra s tru c tu r e 9 ,6 61 ,4 6 5      7 6 1 ,50 6         -                    1 0 ,4 2 2 ,9 7 1    

4 7 ,8 76 ,7 2 7    8 ,1 9 8 ,38 7      (3 1 ,0 0 0 )         5 6 ,0 4 4 ,1 1 4    

Le s s : a c cu m u la te d  d e p re c i a t io n (2 9 ,7 81 ,5 5 3 )   (1 ,8 9 0 ,42 2 )     3 1 ,0 0 0           (3 1 ,6 4 0 ,9 7 5)   

1 8 ,0 95 ,1 7 4    6 ,3 0 7 ,96 5      -                    2 4 ,4 0 3 ,1 3 9    

N e t ca p ita l as s e ts 3 5 ,2 33 ,4 3 2$   11 ,6 9 8 ,66 5$   (6 ,18 7 ,3 5 2 )$   4 0 ,7 4 4 ,7 4 5$   

 

C u rre n t ye a r d e p re c ia t io n  ex pe n s e : P o lic e 8 8 ,0 2 3$          

G en e ra l g o ve rn m e n t 1 0 1 ,1 6 2         

F ire 2 4 2 ,8 1 7         

H ig h w a y 3 9 8 ,8 6 2         

R e c yc l in g 8 ,1 4 4             

R e c re a t ion 8 ,0 0 4             

T o w n -w id e 1 1 5 ,4 4 0         

S c ho o l D e p a rtm e n t 9 2 7 ,9 7 0         

T o ta l d e p re c ia t io n  e xpe n s e 1 ,8 9 0 ,4 2 2$     
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NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 
 

B a l a n c e , B a l a n c e ,

7 /1 / 1 1 A d d i t i o n s D i s p o s a l s 6 / 3 0 / 1 2

B u s i n e s s - t y p e  a c t i v i t i e s

N o n - d e p r e c i a t e d  a s s e t s :

  L a n d  /  c o n s t r u c t i o n  i n  p r o g r e s s 3 , 9 8 8 , 8 6 7$     2 1 , 0 7 5$         -$                4 , 0 0 9 ,9 4 2$     

3 , 9 8 8 , 8 6 7      2 1 , 0 7 5          -                 4 , 0 0 9 ,9 4 2      

D e p r e c i a t e d  a s s e t s :

  I n f r a s t r u c t u r e -                     2 5 , 7 6 8          2 5 ,7 6 8           

  B u i l d i n g s 1 4 , 8 8 4 , 2 8 2    2 1 , 8 5 0          -                 1 4 , 9 0 6 ,1 3 2    

  V e h i c l e s 1 5 6 , 4 2 6         4 9 , 4 2 3          -                 2 0 5 ,8 4 9         

  M a c h i n e r y  &  e q u i p m e n t 3 3 1 , 1 0 5         1 6 6 , 8 3 0        -                 4 9 7 ,9 3 5         

1 5 , 3 7 1 , 8 1 3    2 6 3 , 8 7 1        -                 1 5 , 6 3 5 ,6 8 4    

L e s s :  a c c u m u l a t e d  d e p r e c i a t i o n ( 4 , 8 1 7 , 9 9 7 )     ( 4 4 3 , 6 6 9 )       -                 ( 5 , 2 6 1 ,6 6 6 )     

1 0 , 5 5 3 , 8 1 6    ( 1 7 9 , 7 9 8 )       -                 1 0 , 3 7 4 ,0 1 8    

N e t  c a p i t a l  a s s e t s 1 4 , 5 4 2 , 6 8 3$   ( 1 5 8 , 7 2 3 )$      -$                1 4 , 3 8 3 ,9 6 0$   

 
NOTE 5 - LONG TERM DEBT 
 

The following is a summary of changes in the long-term debt for the year ended 
June 30, 2012: 
 

Due

Balance, Balance, Within

7/1/11 Additions Deletions 6/30/12 One Year

Governmental Activities

Bonds payable 13,615,000$  5,500,000$  (840,000)$     18,275,000$  1,345,000$  

Capital leases payable 259,051         653,024       (66,178)         845,897         187,168       

Accrued compensated

  absences 1,228,399      -                   (106,264)       1,122,135      -                   

Total Governmental Activities 15,102,450$  6,153,024$  (1,012,442)$  20,243,032$  1,532,168$  

Business-type Activities

Bonds payable 4,362,238$    -$             (418,602)$     3,943,636$    416,474$     

Accrued compensated

  absences 96,270           -               (3,676)           92,594           -               

Total Business-type Activities 4,458,508$    -$             (422,278)$     4,036,230$    416,474$     
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NOTE 5 - LONG TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 

The following is a summary of outstanding bonds payable: 
 

G ov e rnm en ta l B u s in e ss - ty pe

B o n ds

$ 7 ,20 0 ,0 00 ,  2 0 1 0  G e n era l O b li ga t io n  B on d s d u e  in  an n u a l  p r i nc ip a l a n d  i n te re st  

in s ta l lm e n ts  th ro ug h  D ec e m b e r  20 3 2 .  In t e re st  is  c h a rge d  a t  a  ra te  f ro m  2 .0 0  %  

to  4 .0 0  % . 7 ,20 0 ,0 00$         -$                         

 $ 3 ,1 05 ,0 0 0 ,  2 0 0 6  G e n e ra l O b li ga t io n  B on d  d ue  i n  a n nu a l p r in c ip a l  in s ta llm en ts  

a n d  s e m ia n nu a l in te res t  in s t a l lm e n t s  th rou g h  N o v e m b er  2 0 15 .   In te re st  i s  

c h a rg e d  a t  a  ra te  f ro m  5 .2 5 %  to  5 .7 5 %  p e r  an n u m . 1 ,38 0 ,0 00          -                          

 $ 2 ,6 60 ,0 0 0 ,  2 0 0 6  G e n e ra l O b li ga t io n  B on d  d ue  i n  a n nu a l p r in c ip a l  in s ta llm en ts  

a n d  s e m ia n nu a l in te res t  in s t a l lm e n t s  th rou g h  N o v e m b er  2 0 26 .   In te re st  i s  

c h a rg e d  a t  a  ra te  f ro m  4 .2 5 %  to  4 .5 %  p e r  a nn u m .  A n n ua l In s ta l lm e n ts  a re  

$ 1 10 ,0 0 0  t o  $ 1 5 5 ,0 0 0 .  1 ,88 5 ,0 00          -                          

 $ 4 ,0 00 ,0 0 0 ,  1 9 9 2  G e n e ra l O b li ga t io n  B on d  d ue  i n  a n nu a l p r in c ip a l  in s ta llm en ts  

a n d  s e m ia n nu a l in te res t  in s t a l lm e n t s  th rou g h  O c tob e r  2 01 2 .   In te re s t  is  ch a rg ed  

a t  a  ra te  o f  4 . 10 %  pe r  a n nu m .  A n n u a l p r in c ip a l In s ta ll m e n ts  a re  $ 2 00 ,0 0 0 .  -                        2 00 ,0 0 0               

 $ 1 ,3 23 ,0 0 0 ,  2 0 0 3A  W a ste  W a te r  S ta te  R ev o lv in g  L o a n  d u e  in  an n u a l  p r i nc ip a l 

in s ta l lm e n ts  a n d  s e m ia n nu a l in te res t  in s t a ll m e n ts  th rou g h  O c tob e r  2 02 2 .   

In te res t  is  c ha rg e d  a t  1 .9 4%  p e r  an n u m .  A n nu a l p r in c ip a l in s ta llm e n ts  v a ry .  -                        7 73 ,2 5 8               

 $ 4 ,2 20 ,0 0 0 ,  2 0 0 2  G e n e ra l O b li ga t io n  B on d  d ue  i n  a n nu a l p r in c ip a l  in s ta llm en ts  

a n d  s e m ia n nu a l in te res t  in s t a l lm e n t s  th rou g h  D e c e m b er  2 0 2 2 .   In te re st  i s  

c h a rg e d  a t  a  ra te  f ro m  3 .2 5 %  to  4 .7 5 %  p e r  an n u m . 2 ,31 0 ,0 00          -                          

 $ 3 ,4 00 ,0 0 0 ,  2 0 1 0  G e n e ra l O b li ga t io n  B on d  d ue  i n  a n nu a l p r in c ip a l  in s ta llm en ts  

a n d  s e m ia n nu a l in te res t  in s t a l lm e n t s  th rou g h  A p r i l  20 3 0 .   In te re s t  is  ch a rg ed  a t  

1 .0 0%  p e r  an n u m .  A n nu a l p r in c ip a l ins ta llm e n ts  v a ry .  -                        2 ,9 70 ,3 7 8            

 $ 5 ,5 00 ,0 0 0 ,  2 0 1 2  G e n e ra l O b li ga t io n  B on d  d ue  i n  a n nu a l p r in c ip a l  in s ta llm en ts  

a n d  s e m ia n nu a l in te res t  in s t a l lm e n t s  th rou g h  J an u a ry  2 0 1 2 .   In te re st  i s  c h a rg e d  

a t  a  ra te  f ro m  2 .0%  to  3 .1 5%  p e r  a n n um . 5 ,50 0 ,0 00          -                          

1 8 ,27 5 ,0 00$       3 ,9 43 ,6 3 6$           
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NOTE 5 - LONG TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

 
The following is a summary of outstanding bond principal and interest requirements 

for the following fiscal years ending June 30: 
 

G o v er nm e n ta l A c t iv i t ie s

P r in c ip a l  T o ta l

P r in c ip a l C re d its In te r es t D eb t S e rv ice

20 1 3 1 ,3 4 5 ,0 00$     -$                    5 8 2 ,1 6 5$        1 ,9 2 7 ,1 6 5$     

20 1 4 1 ,3 4 5 ,0 00      -                     5 4 0 ,2 6 5         1 ,8 8 5 ,2 6 5      

20 1 5 1 ,3 4 5 ,0 00      -                     4 9 2 ,2 0 2         1 ,8 3 7 ,2 0 2      

20 1 6 1 ,3 4 5 ,0 00      -                     4 4 4 ,0 2 7         1 ,7 8 9 ,0 2 7      

20 1 7 9 7 0 ,0 00         -                     4 0 6 ,1 8 2         1 ,3 7 6 ,1 8 2      

20 1 8 -2 0 2 2 4 ,8 1 0 ,0 00      -                     1 ,6 0 1 ,7 7 4      6 ,4 1 1 ,7 7 4      

20 2 3 -2 0 2 7 3 ,9 4 0 ,0 00      -                     8 9 3 ,0 2 6         4 ,8 3 3 ,0 2 6      

20 2 8 -2 0 3 2 3 ,1 7 5 ,0 00      -                     3 0 3 ,3 3 9         3 ,4 7 8 ,3 3 9      

18 ,2 7 5 ,0 00$   -$                    5 ,2 6 2 ,9 8 0$     2 3 ,5 3 7 ,9 8 0$   

B us in e ss  -  T y pe  A c t iv i t ie s

P r in c ip a l T o ta l

P r in c ip a l C re d its In te r es t D eb t S e rv ice

20 1 3 4 1 6 ,4 74$        -$                    5 8 ,6 3 9$          4 7 5 ,1 1 3$        

20 1 4 2 1 8 ,9 09         -                     4 9 ,6 4 3           2 6 8 ,5 5 2         

20 1 5 2 2 1 ,3 99         -                     4 7 ,1 3 1           2 6 8 ,5 3 0         

20 1 6 2 2 3 ,9 46         -                     4 4 ,5 6 2           2 6 8 ,5 0 8         

20 1 7 2 2 6 ,5 52         -                     4 2 ,2 3 3           2 6 8 ,7 8 5         

20 1 8 -2 0 2 2 1 ,1 7 4 ,0 65      (6 ,59 4 )            1 6 7 ,9 7 9         1 ,3 3 5 ,4 5 0      

20 2 3 -2 0 2 7 9 2 9 ,5 62         (5 ,62 3 )            9 9 ,5 4 8           1 ,0 2 3 ,4 8 7      

20 2 8 -2 0 3 2 5 3 2 ,7 29         -                     3 7 ,8 6 0           5 7 0 ,5 8 9         

3 ,9 4 3 ,6 36$     (1 2 ,21 7 )$         5 4 7 ,5 9 5$        4 ,4 7 9 ,0 1 4$     

 
All bonds payable are direct obligations of the Town, for which its full faith and credit 

are pledged.  The Town is not obligated for any special assessment debt.  All debt is 
payable from taxes levied on all taxable property within the Town.  Principal credit 
represents the Town’s portion of savings realized by the Maine Municipal Bond Bank upon 
debt refunding, amortized over the remaining life of the bond. 
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NOTE 5 - LONG TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 
 The following is a summary of outstanding capital leases payable: 
 

C a p i ta l  Le a se s

G ov e rnm en ta l B u s in e ss - ty pe

 $ 5 9 , 18 0 ,  2 01 0  C ap ita l L e a se  p ay a b le  to  N o r th w a y  B a n k  fo r  c o p i e rs  d ue  in  

a n nu a l in s ta l lm e n ts  o f  $ 1 3 ,22 5  th rou g h  A u g u st  2 0 15 .   In te re st  i s  c h a rg e d  a t  a  

ra te  o f  3 .9 3%  p e r  a n n um . 3 6 ,7 62$              -$                         

 T h e  S c ho o l D ep a r tm e n t Le a se s  so f tw a re  u n de r  a  n on -c a nc e la b le  le as e  

a g ree m e n t.   T h e  te rm  o f  th e  l ea s e  i s   f o r  a  f iv e  ye a r  p e r io d  e x p ir in g  in  A ug u st  o f  

2 0 12 .   In te re st  is  c h a rg e d  a t  a  ra te  o f  3 .1 0%  p e r  a n n um . 1 9 ,8 00               -                          

$ 5 8 ,6 4 5 , 20 0 3 C ap it a l L e a se p a y ab le to O ld N a t io na l B an k fo r e q u ip m e n t d u e in

a n nu a l i ns ta l lm e n ts th ro u gh J u ly 2 0 14 . In te re st i s c h a rg e d a t a ra te o f 5 % p e r

a n nu m . 6 2 ,7 23               -                          

 $ 1 77 ,7 1 9 ,  20 0 8  C a p ita l L e as e  pa y a b l e  to  M .S .T .  G o v e rn m e n t Le a s i ng ,  L L C  f o r  

p h o to c o p y eq u ip m e n t d u e  in  an n u a l  in s ta llm en ts  o f  $ 40 ,0 5 5  t h ro u gh  A u gu s t  

2 0 12 .   In te re st  is  c h a rg e d  a t  a  ra te  o f  4 .1 2%  p e r  a n n um . 16 8 ,7 19             -                          

 $ 8 4 , 43 3 ,  2 01 0  C ap ita l L e a se  p ay a b le  to  O c e a n  B a n k  fo r  e q u ip m e n t d ue  i n  

a n nu a l in s ta l lm e n ts  o f  $ 1 8 ,68 6  th rou g h  J an u a ry  2 0 14 .   I n te re st  i s  c h a rg e d  a t  a  

ra te  o f  4 .2 5%  p e r  a n n um . 3 5 ,1 18               -                          

$ 5 22 ,7 7 5 , 2 0 1 1 C a p i ta l Le a se p ay a b le to G orh a m L e as in g fo r H V A C e qu ip m e n t

d u e in a n n ua l in s ta llm en ts o f $ 11 5 ,2 28 t h ro u gh A u gu s t 2 0 16 . In te re st is c h a rge d

a t  a  ra te  o f  3 . 33 %  pe r  a n nu m . 52 2 ,7 75             -                          

84 5 ,8 97$            -$                         
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NOTE 5 - LONG TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

 
 Future minimum payments, by year and in the aggregate, under these leases are 
as follows: 
 

20 1 3 2 1 8 ,4 0 0$         

20 1 4 2 1 8 ,0 9 2          

20 1 5 1 8 6 ,0 6 3          

20 1 6 1 5 2 ,4 8 2          

20 1 7 1 5 2 ,4 8 1          

20 1 8 -2 0 2 1 -                     

    T o ta l m in im u m  lea s e  pa y m e nts 9 2 7 ,5 1 8          

    L e s s : A m o u nt re p re s e n tin g  in te re s t (8 1 ,6 2 1 )          

    P re s e n t v a lu e  o f fu tu re  m in im u m  le a s e  p a y m e n ts 8 4 5 ,8 9 7$         

 
NOTE 6 - RESTRICTED FUND BALANCES 
  

At June 30, 2012, the Town had the following restricted fund balances: 
 

G e n e r a l  F u n d :

E d u c a t i o n 9 7 0 , 2 7 3$         

M i t c h e l l / S h a p l e i g h  b u i l d i n g  p r o je c t 2 3 , 9 2 3            

N o n m a j o r  s p e c i a l  r e v e n u e  f u n d s  ( S c h e d u l e  D ) 6 0 , 9 0 5            

N o n m a j o r  c a p i t a l  p r o j e c t  f u n d s  ( S c h e d u l e  F ) 8 5 2 , 6 3 1          

N o n m a j o r  p e r m a n e n t  f u n d s  ( S c h e d u l e  H ) 1 , 0 3 1 , 3 6 1       

2 , 9 3 9 , 0 9 3$      

 
 

NOTE 7 - COMMITTED FUND BALANCES 
 
 At June 30, 2012, the Town had the following committed fund balances: 

C o m m u n i t y  C e n t e r 3 0 8 , 6 5 5$         

N o n m a j o r  s p e c i a l  r e v e n u e  f u n d s  ( S c h e d u l e  D ) 1 , 2 1 6 , 0 8 1       

N o n m a j o r  c a p i t a l  p r o j e c t  f u n d s  ( S c h e d u l e  F ) 2 , 1 5 1 , 3 5 8       

3 , 6 7 6 , 0 9 4$      
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NOTE 8 - ASSIGNED FUND BALANCES 
 
 At June 30, 2012, the general fund had the following assigned fund balances: 

N o n m a j o r  s p e c i a l  r e v e n u e  f u n d s  ( S c h e d u l e  D ) 4 1 , 4 2 6$           

 
  
NOTE 9 - OVERLAPPING DEBT 
 
 The Town is responsible for its proportionate share of County debt. As of June 
30, 2012, the Town’s share was as follows:  
 

O u ts ta n d i ng T ow n ’s T o ta l

D e b t P e rc e n tag e S h ar e

C o u nty  o f Y o rk 9 ,9 00 ,0 0 0$      5 .4 1 % 5 3 5,4 4 1$        

 
NOTE 10 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 
 

MAINE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
 

A.  Plan Description 
 
 Town employees contribute to the Participating Local Districts (PLDs) 
Consolidated Plan, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan 
administered by the Maine Public Employees Retirement System.  The PLDs 
Consolidated Plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living 
adjustments and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.  Title 5 of the Maine 
Revised Statutes Annotated assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit 
provisions to the PLD’s Consolidated Plan Board of Trustees.  The Maine Public 
Employees Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report that includes 
financial statements and required supplementary information for PLDs Consolidated 
Plan.  That report may be obtained by writing to Maine Public Employees Retirement 
System, 46 State House Station, Augusta, Maine 04333 or by calling (800) 451-9800. 
 
 B.  Funding Policy 
 
 The contribution requirements of plan members and the Town are established 
and may be amended by the PLD’s Consolidated Board of Trustees.  The Town’s police 
department employees are part of the PLD’s special plan “1C” and are required to 
contribute 6.5% of their annual salary, while all other employees are part of the PLD’s 
plan “AC” and are also required to contribute 6.5% of their annual salary.  The Town is 
required to contribute 10.2% of special plan “1C” members’ covered payroll and 4.4% of  
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NOTE 10 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 
the plan “AC” members’ covered payroll annually to the system along with a 
predetermined initial unpooled unfunded actuarial liability (IUUAL) rate set by the 
system.  The IUUAL can either be a monthly payment or credit, which is added to or 
subtracted from the employer’s percentage of employees’ covered payroll to determine 
the employers actual cost. 
 

As of June 30, 2011, the Town had an unfunded actuarial accrued liability credit 
computed using the actuarial method used for funding purposes.  (The amount of the 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability credit as of June 30, 2012 is not currently available.)  
This credit is being used to reduce future contributions and is being amortized over a 
closed period of 10 years.  Actual plan contributions made by the Town and employees 
after the unfunded actuarial accrued liability credit was deducted from the annual 
pension cost were $407,315, $426,314 and $339,339 for the years ended June 30, 
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 

 
Education Employees Retirement 

 
A.  Plan Description 

 
All school teachers, plus other qualified educators, participate in the Maine Public 

Employees Retirement System’s teacher retirement program.  The teacher’s program is 
a cost-sharing plan with a special funding situation, established by the Maine State 
Legislature. The program requires that both employees and the Department contribute, 
and provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Employees are eligible for normal 
retirement upon reaching the age of sixty and early retirement after completing twenty-
five or more years of credited service. The authority to establish and amend benefit 
provisions rests with the State Legislature. The funding status and progress for the 
teacher retirement program may be obtained by contacting the Maine Public Employees 
Retirement System, 46 State House Station, Augusta, Maine 04333-0046 or by calling 
(800) 451-9800. 

 
 B.  Funding Policy 
 

Program members are required to contribute 7.65% of their compensation to the 
retirement system. The Department’s payroll for employees covered by this program 
was approximately $6,640,057 for the year ended June 30, 2012. The State of Maine is 
required to contribute the employer contribution which amounts to 14.32% of 
compensation.  Contributions paid by the State were approximately $950,856 for the 
year ended June 30, 2012. There is no contribution required by the Department, except 
for federally funded teachers.  The Department’s contributions to the plan for 2012, 
2011, and 2010 were $307,265, $332,719 and $272,123, respectively. 
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NOTE 11 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 
 

INTERNATIONAL CITY MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION RETIREMENT 
CORPORATION 

 
A.  Plan Description 

 
The Town contributes to a deferred compensation plan created in accordance 

with Internal Revenue Service Code Section 457 through the International City 
Management Association Retirement Corporation (ICMA-RC).  The plan, available to all 
Town employees permits them to defer a portion of their salary, in addition to Town 
contributions, until future years.  The deferred compensation is not available to 
employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseen emergency.  All amounts 
of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those 
amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid 
or made available to the employee or other beneficiary) to be held in a trust for the 
exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries.   

 
 It is the opinion of the Town’s management that the Town has no liability for 
losses under the plan but does have the duty of due care that would be required of an 
ordinary prudent investor. 
 
 B.  Funding Policy 
 
 The contribution requirements of plan members and the Town are established 
and may be amended by the Town Council.  The Town will contribute 1% of annual 
salary for professional level employees that participate in the Town’s defined benefit 
plan.  For professional employees that choose to participate in the 457 plan alone, the 
Town will contribute an amount equal to the required employer contribution for the 
defined benefit plan plus 1.00%.  For the Town’s office workers, highway and police 
department employees that choose not to join the Town’s defined benefit plan, the 
Town will contribute an amount up to 5.3% of their annual salary.  For this group, the 
Town’s minimum required contribution to the defined benefit plan is 5.00%.  Employee 
match provisions apply thereafter to bring contributions up to the required minimum. 
 

The Town’s contributions to the plan including employee contributions for 2012, 
2011, and 2010 were $81,979, $75,286, and $97,083, respectively. 
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NOTE 12 - EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS 
 
 At June 30, 2012, the Town had the following overspent appropriations: 

 

P u b l i c  S a f e t y 1 1 3 , 3 2 1$         

R e c r e a t i o n  a n d  c u l t u r e 3 4 , 5 6 6            

D e b t  s e r v i c e 9 , 2 0 6              

      T o t a l 1 5 7 , 0 9 3$         

 
 
NOTE 13 - DEFICIT FUND BALANCES 
 
 At June 30, 2012, the Town had the following deficit fund balances/net assets: 
 

Non-major funds:

Storm damage/FEMA 748$               

Munis loan 11,497            

Accrued compensated absences 120,680          

Legal ads 2,185              

Outfall pipe water test 4,039              

Harbor planning grant 518                 

Spruce creek 319 grant 19,748            

Town pier repair 403,204          

Harbor pier 2,712              

Shellfish conservation commission 265                 

Traip mechanical retrofit 1,148              

Office restrooms 1                     

Public works shed/office building 11,713            

Public works lid Town hall 887                 

PW lid Rt. 1 northgarden 1,054              

Traffic light Rt. 236 MACN 20,336            

Haley field project 13,850            

Municipal facility maint. reserve 3,727              

Total 618,312$        

 
  
NOTE 14 - CONTINGENCIES  
 
 With regard to pending legal claims or any unasserted claims, it is not feasible at 
this time to predict or determine their outcome.  Management believes, however, that 
settlement amounts, if any, will not have a material adverse effect on the Town’s financial 
position. 
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NOTE 14 - CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 
 
 The Town participates in various intergovernmental grant programs which may be 
subject to future program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives.  
Accordingly, the Town’s compliance with applicable grant requirement may be established 
at some future date.  The amount, if any, of any liabilities arising from the disallowance of 
expenditures or ineligibility of grant revenues cannot be determined at this time. 
 
 
NOTE 15 - RISK MANAGEMENT – PARTICIPATION IN A PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOL 
 
 The Town is a member of the Maine Municipal Association – Worker Compensation 
Trust Fund (“Fund”).  The Fund was created to formulate, develop and administer a 
program of modified self-funding for the Fund’s membership, obtain lower costs for 
worker’s compensation coverage and develop a comprehensive loss control program.  The 
Town pays an annual premium to the fund for its worker’s compensation coverage.  The 
Town’s agreement with the Fund provides that the fund will be self-sustaining through 
member premiums and will provide, through commercial company’s reinsurance contracts, 
individual stop loss coverage for member Town’s for claims in excess of $400,000 with an 
excess limit of $2,000,000. 
 

The Town is also a member of the Maine Municipal Association – Property and 
Casualty Pool (“Pool”).  As with the Fund above, the Pool was created to obtain lower 
rates for its members.  The Town pays an annual premium for its property and liability 
coverage.  Under the property coverage portion of the Pool, coverage is provided after the 
deductible is met, to $26,000,000.  Under the liability portion of the Pool, coverage is 
provided after the deductible is met, to $1,000,000.   
 
 
NOTE 16 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the Department paid an individual to 

run the clock at basketball games.  This individual is related to a member of the school 
committee.  During fiscal year 2012, payments for these services totaled $490. The 
Department also contracted with a vendor to perform electrical work. The individual hired is 
related to a member of the school committee. In fiscal year 2012, payments for these 
services totaled $6,747. We understand each of the school committee members recused 
themselves in any matters concerning the related parties.  
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NOTE 17 - RESTATEMENT  
 
 As of July 1, 2011, the net assets in the Town’s proprietary fund - sewer department 
have been restated by $27,901. This change was made to adjust prior year accounts 
payable. The proprietary fund - sewer fund net assets have increased by $27,901 as of 
July 1, 2011. The Town’s governmental fund - special revenue funds were also restated as 
of July 1, 2011.  This restatement of $103,100 was done as a result of timing issues 
between the School and Town which have been resolved during the current fiscal year.  
Both the governmental fund - special revenue fund balance and net assets have increased 
by $103,100 as of July 1, 2011. 
 
NOTE 18 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
 
 The Town, in accordance with various collective bargaining agreements, is 
committed to provide health and other benefits to eligible retirees and their spouses.  
Benefits are established and amended through negotiations between the Town and the 
various unions representing Town employees.  The percentage contribution of employees 
and retirees for medical benefits are negotiated with the various unions representing the 
employees.  Retired plan members and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits are 
required to contribute specified amounts towards the cost of receiving benefits under the 
Town’s medical benefits program. 
 

Funding policy – The Town currently funds claims and administrative costs for 
postemployment benefits through its health insurance company or through current year 
expenditures. 
 
 The following is the current census of Town benefit participants as of June 30, 
2012: 

Active members 50$                

Retirees and spouses 14                  

Total 64$                

 
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligations 

 

 The Town of Kittery’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost is 
calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC), an amount actuarially 
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement #45.  Actuarial 
valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of occurrence of future events.  Assumptions include future employment, 
mortality, and healthcare and other benefit cost trends.  Amounts determined regarding the 
funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject 
to continual revision as accrual results are compared with past expectations and new 
estimates are mad about the future. 
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NOTE 18 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 
 
 The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected 
to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding 
excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.  The following table shows the 
components of the Town’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed 
to the plan, and changes in the Town’s net OPEB obligation (asset): 

A n n u a l re q u i re d  c o n tr ib u t io n  (A R C ) 2 8 5 ,9 5 4$      

In te re s t o n  n e t O P E B  o b lig a t io n 5 ,5 5 3           

A d ju s tm e n t to  a n nu a l re q u ire d  co n tr ib u t io n -                   

A n n u a l O P E B  co s t 2 9 1 ,5 0 7       

C o n tr i bu t io n s  m a d e (1 1 5 ,0 0 0 )      

In c re as e  in  ne t O P E B  o b lig a t io n 1 7 6 ,5 0 7       

N e t O P E B  ob lig a t io n , b eg in n in g  o f y e a r 1 ,0 1 6 ,0 5 5    

N e t O P E B  ob lig a t io n , e nd  o f ye a r 1 ,1 9 2 ,5 6 2$   

 
 The Town’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to 
the plan and the net OPEB obligation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 is presented 
below.  Data is presented for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009. The 
information for June 30, 2012 is not available. 
 

F is c a l A n n u a l P e rc e n ta g e N e t

Y ea r O P E B A c tua l o f A O C O P E B

E n d in g C o st (A O C ) C o n tr ib u t io n C on tr ib u te d O b lig a t io n

6 /3 0 /2 0 0 9 4 48 ,4 4 6$    1 1 5 ,00 0$        2 5 .6 % 3 8 7,6 1 8$      

6 /3 0 /2 0 1 0 6 15 ,5 9 4$    1 1 5 ,00 0$        1 8 .7 % 1 ,0 1 6 ,0 5 5$   

6 /3 0 /2 0 1 1 2 91 ,5 0 7$    1 1 5 ,00 0$        3 9 .5 % 1 ,1 9 2 ,5 6 2$    
 
 Projections for benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the 
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include 
the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of 
sharing benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point.  The actuarial 
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects 
of short term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, 
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 
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NOTE 18 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 
 
 In the June 30, 2011 actuarial valuation, the entry age normal cost method was 
used.  The actuarial assumptions include a 4% investment rate of return, which is the rate 
of the expected long-term investment returns of plan assets calculated based on the 
funding policy of the plan at the valuation date. 
 
 An annual healthcare cost blended trend rate of 7.5% is used initially, decreasing at 
a variable rate per year to an ultimate rate of 4.0% for 2029 and later.  The remaining 
amortization period at June 30, 2011 was 20 years.  As of June 30, 2011, the most recent 
actuarial valuation date, the plan was 0% funded.  The actuarial accrued liability for 
benefits was approximately $3,146,751, and the actuarial value of assets was $0, resulting 
in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of approximately $3,146,751. 
 
 The schedule of funding profess, presented below, presents multi-year trend 
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing 
over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.  Data is only presented for 
June 30, 2011 due to this being the first certified valuation. 

A ctu a r ia l U F A L  a s  a

A c tua r i a l A c cr ue d %  o f

A c tua r ia l V a l ue  o f L ia b i l i ty  ( A A L ) F u n de d C o v e re d C o ve re d

V a lu a t io n A ss e ts E n tr y  A g e R a tio P a yro l l P a yro l l

G ro u p D a te ( a ) (b ) (a /b ) (c ) ((b -a )/c )

U n io n 6 /3 0 /20 0 9 -$                3 ,63 2 ,6 1 9$     0 .0 % N /A N /A

N o n -u n io n 6 /3 0 /20 0 9 -$                92 4 ,5 8 2$        0 .0 % N /A N /A

A c tive 6 /3 0 /20 1 0 -$                3 ,86 8 ,7 5 3$     0 .0 % N /A N /A

R etir ee s 6 /3 0 /20 1 0 -$                5 ,00 6 ,6 2 5$     0 .0 % N /A N /A

A c tive 6 /3 0 /20 1 1 -$                1 ,74 1 ,5 2 6$     0 .0 % N /A N /A

R etir ee s 6 /3 0 /20 1 1 -$                1 ,40 5 ,2 2 5$     0 .0 % N /A N /A

S c h ed u le  o f F u nd in g  P ro g re ss

 
 These numbers are based on information that was presented on October 2011 for 
June 30, 2011.  The amortization method that was used to calculate the numbers is 
presented below. 
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NOTE 18 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 
 

Level Level %

Dollar of Pay

Discount rate 4.00% 4.00%

Payroll growth assumption N/A 3.00%

Accrued liability 3,146,751$    3,146,751$    

Value of assets -                     -                     

Unfunded liability 3,146,751$    3,146,751$    

Normal cost 105,423$       105,423$       

Amortization of unfunded 174,978         120,245         

Interest 5,553             4,469             

Annual required contribution 285,954$       230,137$       
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Required Supplementary Information 
 
Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures that are 
required by the Government Accounting Standards Board but are not considered a part of 
the basic financial statements.  Such information includes: 
 

● Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Budgetary Basis – Budget and Actual -
General Fund 

 
● Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Budgetary Basis – Budget and Actual – 

General Fund Revenues  
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V a r ia n ce

A c tu a l P os it iv e

O r ig in a l F in a l A m o u n ts (N eg a t iv e )

B u d ge ta ry  F un d  B a l an c e ,  J u ly  1  5 ,3 25 ,5 4 2$           5 ,32 5 ,5 42$            5 ,3 25 ,5 4 2$        -$                     

R e so u rc e s  ( In f lo w s ):

G e n e ra l tax  rev e n ue 2 1 ,2 49 ,4 7 2          2 1 ,24 9 ,4 72           2 1 ,1 28 ,8 1 2       (1 20 ,6 6 0 )         

I n te rg ov e rn m en ta l re v en u e 1 ,6 39 ,4 7 4            1 ,70 8 ,6 28            1 ,7 45 ,8 5 7         37 ,2 2 9            

C h a rge s fo r  se rv ic es 7 76 ,6 1 4               77 6 ,6 14               9 05 ,7 6 9            1 29 ,1 5 5          

I nv e stm e n t  in c o m e 50 ,0 0 0                 5 0 ,0 00                 55 ,0 9 0              5 ,0 9 0              

O th e r  re v e n ue 2 52 ,2 0 0               41 6 ,4 09               4 56 ,9 4 8            40 ,5 3 9            

T ra n sf e rs  f ro m  o th e r  fu n ds 14 ,4 0 0                 1 4 ,4 00                 18 ,0 0 0              3 ,6 0 0              

  A m o u n ts  A v a ila b l e  f o r  A pp ro p r i a t i on 2 9 ,3 07 ,7 0 2          2 9 ,54 1 ,0 65           2 9 ,6 36 ,0 1 8       94 ,9 5 3            

C h a rg e s to  A p p ro p r ia t io n  (O u t f lo w s) :

C u r re n t :

G e n e ra l go v e rn m e n t 1 ,6 65 ,1 6 5            1 ,66 5 ,1 65            1 ,6 52 ,0 5 4         13 ,1 1 1            

P u b lic  s a f e ty 3 ,0 89 ,3 2 8            3 ,08 9 ,3 28            3 ,2 02 ,6 4 9         (1 13 ,3 2 1 )         

P u b lic  w o rk s 1 ,0 81 ,6 9 3            1 ,08 1 ,6 93            1 ,0 17 ,3 0 2         64 ,3 9 1            

R e c rea t io n  a nd  c u ltu re 9 94 ,7 1 5               99 4 ,7 15               1 ,0 29 ,2 8 1         (34 ,5 6 6 )           

H e a lth  an d  sa n ita t io n 6 73 ,6 3 5               67 3 ,6 35               6 53 ,8 1 9            19 ,8 1 6            

S o c ia l s e rv ic e s 1 74 ,4 9 4               17 4 ,4 94               1 66 ,4 8 0            8 ,0 1 4              

E d u c a t i on 1 3 ,6 34 ,7 5 2          1 4 ,11 6 ,5 13           1 3 ,1 46 ,2 4 0       9 70 ,2 7 3          

C o u n ty  ta x 8 42 ,5 3 8               84 2 ,5 38               8 42 ,5 3 7            1                     

D e b t  se rv ic e 3 87 ,2 8 0               38 7 ,2 80               3 96 ,4 8 6            (9 ,2 0 6 )             

O v e r la y 1 30 ,2 1 0               13 0 ,2 10               -                       1 30 ,2 1 0          

G ra n t  fu n d s/m i sc  a c c ou n ts 2 93 ,2 5 7               29 3 ,2 57               2 50 ,7 8 4            42 ,4 7 3            

T ra n sf e rs  to  o the r  f un d s 1 ,6 09 ,7 5 2            2 ,02 8 ,9 91            1 ,9 90 ,1 2 1         38 ,8 7 0            

T o ta l C ha rg e s to  A p p ro p r ia t io ns 2 4 ,5 76 ,8 1 9          2 5 ,47 7 ,8 19           2 4 ,3 47 ,7 5 3       1 ,1 30 ,0 6 6        

B u d ge ta ry  F un d  B a l an c e ,  J u ne  3 0 4 ,7 30 ,8 8 3$           4 ,06 3 ,2 46$            5 ,2 88 ,2 6 5$        1 ,2 25 ,0 1 9$       

U t i l i z a t i on  o f  u n a ss ign e d  fu n d  b a la n c e 3 24 ,2 2 9$              55 4 ,0 36$              -$                      (5 54 ,0 3 6 )$        

U t i l i z a t i on  o f  a s s ig n ed  f u nd  b a l an c e 2 70 ,4 3 0               70 8 ,2 60               -                       (7 08 ,2 6 0 )         

5 94 ,6 5 9$              1 ,26 2 ,2 96$            -$                      (1 ,2 62 ,2 9 6 )$     

S e e  ac c o m p an y in g  in d ep e nd e n t  a ud ito rs '  rep o r t .

B u d ge te d  A m o un ts
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V a r ia n ce

O rig in a l  F in a l A c tu a l P o s it iv e

B u d g e t B u d g et (N e g a t ive )

R E V E N U E S

G e n e ra l tax  rev e n ue s

P ro p e r ty  tax es 19 ,7 83 ,7 6 1$          1 9 ,7 8 3 ,76 1$          1 9 ,7 20 ,4 0 5$          (6 3 ,3 56 )$           

V eh ic le  e x c is e  tax es 1 ,4 30 ,7 1 1            1 ,4 3 0 ,71 1            1 ,3 75 ,0 4 2            (5 5 ,6 69 )           

B oa t  e x c is e  tax es 35 ,0 0 0                 3 5 ,00 0                 33 ,3 6 5                 (1 ,6 35 )             

I n te rg ov e rn m en ta l re v en u e s

E du c a t io n  s u bs id y 6 51 ,6 7 0               6 4 9 ,67 6               6 49 ,6 7 6               -                      

S ta te  re v en u e  sh a r i ng 5 48 ,3 5 9               5 8 8 ,40 2               5 88 ,4 0 2               -                      

H o m e s tea d  e x e m p t io n 1 15 ,8 4 5               1 1 5 ,84 5               1 28 ,8 2 8               1 2 ,9 83             

O the r  e d uc a t io n  rev e n ue 50 ,0 0 0                 8 1 ,10 5                 81 ,1 0 5                 -                      

G M H  H o us in g 2 60 ,0 0 0               2 6 0 ,00 0               2 59 ,8 7 5               (1 25 )                

T ree  g row th -                           -                           1 ,0 4 2                   1 ,0 42               

G en e ra l  as s i s ta n c e 13 ,6 0 0                 1 3 ,60 0                 36 ,9 2 9                 2 3 ,3 29             

C h a rge s fo r  se rv ic es

R e c re a t i on  f ee s 12 ,1 0 0                 1 2 ,10 0                 -                           (1 2 ,1 00 )           

C o d e  en f o rc e m e n t fe e s 1 24 ,0 0 0               1 2 4 ,00 0               2 31 ,0 3 4               10 7 ,0 34           

R e g is t ra t i on  f ee s 29 ,3 7 5                 2 9 ,37 5                 26 ,8 0 7                 (2 ,5 68 )             

T ow n  c l e rk  f ee s 23 ,5 6 4                 2 3 ,56 4                 20 ,4 2 0                 (3 ,1 44 )             

P lan n in g  fe e s 2 ,5 0 0                   2 ,50 0                   9 ,5 7 8                   7 ,0 78               

S ign  /  o rd in an c e s 5 ,7 0 0                   5 ,70 0                   3 ,7 2 0                   (1 ,9 80 )             

S o li d  w as te  /  re c yc l ing 1 37 ,0 6 0               1 3 7 ,06 0               1 44 ,4 9 4               7 ,4 34               

S o li d  w as te  /  p e rm its 1 30 ,6 3 5               1 3 0 ,63 5               1 01 ,0 3 0               (2 9 ,6 05 )           

F o r t  F o s te r  f e es 1 25 ,0 0 0               1 2 5 ,00 0               1 73 ,9 4 8               4 8 ,9 48             

E lio t  d isp a tc h i ng  s e rv ic e s 60 ,0 0 0                 6 0 ,00 0                 60 ,0 0 0                 -                      

P o li c e  d e p a r tm en t 18 ,1 0 0                 1 8 ,10 0                 19 ,6 1 0                 1 ,5 10               

A n im a l  c on tro l 2 ,0 0 0                   2 ,00 0                   5 ,0 0 3                   3 ,0 03               

M o o r in g / la un c h  fe e s 99 ,0 0 0                 9 9 ,00 0                 92 ,5 8 1                 (6 ,4 19 )             

O the r 7 ,5 8 0                   7 ,58 0                   17 ,5 4 4                 9 ,9 64               

I nv e stm e n t  in c o m e :

Inv e stm en t  i nc o m e 50 ,0 0 0                 5 0 ,00 0                 55 ,0 9 0                 5 ,0 90               

O th e r  in c om e :

In t e re st  /  fe e s o n  ta x e s 52 ,0 0 0                 5 2 ,00 0                 64 ,8 3 7                 1 2 ,8 37             

O the r  in c o m e 76 ,2 0 0                 7 6 ,20 0                 1 03 ,9 0 2               2 7 ,7 02             

O the r  e d uc a t io n  1 24 ,0 0 0               2 8 8 ,20 9               2 88 ,2 0 9               -                      

T ra n sf e rs  f ro m  o th e r  fu n ds

E n te rp r ise  f un d 14 ,4 0 0                 1 4 ,40 0                 18 ,0 0 0                 3 ,6 00               

S pe c ia l re v e n u e  f u nd s -                           -                           -                           -                      

C a p ita l p ro jec t  fu nd s -                           -                           -                           -                      

P e rm a n e n t  f u nd s -                           -                           -                           -                      

T o ta l re v e n u es 23 ,9 82 ,1 6 0$          2 4 ,2 1 5 ,52 3$          2 4 ,3 10 ,4 7 6$          9 4 ,9 53$            

S e e  ac c o m p an y in g  in d ep e nd e n t  a ud ito rs '  rep o r t .
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Other supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules not 
required by the Government Accounting Standards Board, nor a part of the basic financial 
statements, but are presented for purposes of additional analysis. 
 

● Schedule of Departmental Operations – General Fund 
 
● Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

 
● Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Nonmajor Governmental Funds  
 
  ● Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds  
 

● Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 

 
● Combining Balance Sheet – Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds 
 
● Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 

Fund Balances – Nonmajor Capital Project Funds 
 

● Combining Balance Sheet – Nonmajor Permanent Funds 
 
● Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 

Fund Balances – Nonmajor Permanent Funds 
 
● Schedule of General Capital Assets by Function 

  
  ● Schedule of Changes in General Capital Assets by Function 
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B u d g e t F in a l B a la n c es

B u dg e t A d j us tm e n ts A v a il ab le A c tu a l P o s i t iv e  (N e ga t iv e )

G e n e ra l  g o v e rn m e n t

A d m in is t ra t io n 8 26 ,4 1 0$              -$                         8 2 6 ,4 1 0$              8 31 ,0 7 8$              (4 ,6 68 )$                

A s se ss in g 1 83 ,8 5 2               -                          1 8 3 ,8 5 2               1 61 ,3 3 0               2 2 ,5 22                

C o d e  e n fo rc e m e n t 1 22 ,1 2 2               -                          1 2 2 ,1 2 2               1 16 ,9 6 3               5 ,1 59                  

T o w n  p la n ne r 2 04 ,3 1 4               -                          2 0 4 ,3 1 4               2 06 ,6 3 6               (2 ,3 22 )                 

I ns u ra n c e 2 90 ,8 5 0               -                          2 9 0 ,8 5 0               3 10 ,6 0 9               (1 9 ,7 59 )               

P l an n in g  b o a rd 16 ,7 7 9                -                          1 6 ,7 7 9                14 ,2 1 8                2 ,5 61                  

E l ec t io n s 10 ,2 8 8                -                          1 0 ,2 8 8                7 ,5 7 6                  2 ,7 12                  

C o u nc il 10 ,5 5 0                -                          1 0 ,5 5 0                3 ,6 4 4                  6 ,9 06                  

1 ,6 65 ,1 6 5            -                          1 ,6 6 5 ,1 6 5            1 ,6 52 ,0 5 4            1 3 ,1 11                

P u b lic  s a fe ty

P o lic e  d e pa r tm e n t 2 ,5 54 ,9 1 6            -                          2 ,5 5 4 ,9 1 6            2 ,6 70 ,5 6 9            (11 5 ,6 53 )             

F i re  d e p a r tm en t 2 38 ,7 4 9               -                          2 3 8 ,7 4 9               2 37 ,9 6 1               7 88                     

S tre e t  l ig h ts 1 00 ,1 0 0               -                          1 0 0 ,1 0 0               1 00 ,1 5 5               (55 )                      

H y d ran ts 1 93 ,2 1 3               -                          1 9 3 ,2 1 3               1 93 ,9 6 4               (7 51 )                    

C iv i l  em erg e nc y  p re pa re dn e ss 2 ,3 5 0                  -                          2 ,3 5 0                  -                          2 ,3 50                  

3 ,0 89 ,3 2 8            -                          3 ,0 8 9 ,3 2 8            3 ,2 02 ,6 4 9            (11 3 ,3 21 )             

P u b lic  w o r ks :

H ig h w a y s 1 ,0 81 ,6 9 3            -                          1 ,0 8 1 ,6 9 3            1 ,0 17 ,3 0 2            6 4 ,3 91                

1 ,0 81 ,6 9 3            -                          1 ,0 8 1 ,6 9 3            1 ,0 17 ,3 0 2            6 4 ,3 91                

H e a lth  a n d  s a n ita t io n :

S o lid  w as te 6 73 ,6 3 5               -                          6 7 3 ,6 3 5               6 53 ,8 1 9               1 9 ,8 16                

6 73 ,6 3 5               -                          6 7 3 ,6 3 5               6 53 ,8 1 9               1 9 ,8 16                

S o c ia l  se r v ice s

G e n e ra l as s is ta nc e 40 ,0 0 0                -                          4 0 ,0 0 0                58 ,9 9 1                (1 8 ,9 91 )               

F r i sb e e  s c ho o l f ac i l i ty 1 18 ,1 9 6               -                          1 1 8 ,1 9 6               98 ,0 6 1                2 0 ,1 35                

C o m m u n ity  a ge n c ie s 15 ,7 1 3                -                          1 5 ,7 1 3                9 ,1 7 1                  6 ,5 42                  

P u b lic  h e a l th  s e rv i ce s 5 8 5                     -                          5 8 5                     2 5 7                     3 28                     

1 74 ,4 9 4               -                          1 7 4 ,4 9 4               1 66 ,4 8 0               8 ,0 14                  
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B u d g e t F i n a l B a l a n c e s

B u d g e t A d j u s t m e n t s A v a i l a b l e A c t u a l P o s i t i v e  ( N e g a t i v e )

R e c r e a t i o n  a n d  c u l t u r e :

P a r k s 2 7 2 , 8 7 1               -                          2 7 2 , 8 7 1               3 0 6 , 5 4 8               ( 3 3 , 6 7 7 )               

R e c r e a t i o n 1 9 4 , 1 7 3               -                          1 9 4 , 1 7 3               1 9 3 , 0 5 7               1 , 1 1 6                  

L i b r a r y 4 3 4 , 4 0 0               -                          4 3 4 , 4 0 0               4 3 4 , 4 0 0               -                          

P o r t  A u t h o r i t y 9 3 , 2 7 1                -                          9 3 , 2 7 1                9 5 , 2 7 6                ( 2 , 0 0 5 )                 

9 9 4 , 7 1 5               -                          9 9 4 , 7 1 5               1 , 0 2 9 , 2 8 1            ( 3 4 , 5 6 6 )               

E d u c a t i o n 1 3 , 6 3 4 , 7 5 2          4 8 1 , 7 6 1               1 4 , 1 1 6 , 5 1 3          1 3 , 1 4 6 , 2 4 0          9 7 0 , 2 7 3               

C o u n t y  t a x 8 4 2 , 5 3 8               -                          8 4 2 , 5 3 8               8 4 2 , 5 3 7               1                         

D e b t  s e r v i c e

P r i n c i p a l 2 8 5 , 0 0 0               -                          2 8 5 , 0 0 0               2 8 5 , 0 0 0               -                          

I n t e r e s t 1 0 2 , 2 8 0               -                          1 0 2 , 2 8 0               1 1 1 , 4 8 6               ( 9 , 2 0 6 )                 

3 8 7 , 2 8 0               -                          3 8 7 , 2 8 0               3 9 6 , 4 8 6               ( 9 , 2 0 6 )                 

O v e r l a y 1 3 0 , 2 1 0               -                          1 3 0 , 2 1 0               -                          1 3 0 , 2 1 0               

G r a n t  f u n d s / m i s c  a c c o u n t s

G r o w t h  m a n a g e m e n t 4 , 5 4 9                  -                          4 , 5 4 9                  2 , 1 2 7                  2 , 4 2 2                  

E P A  s t o r m w a t e r  p r o g r a m 2 0 , 0 0 0                -                          2 0 , 0 0 0                1 9 , 6 1 7                3 8 3                     

C o m p u t e r  r e p a i r 5 2 , 7 3 7                -                          5 2 , 7 3 7                6 3 , 4 3 0                ( 1 0 , 6 9 3 )               

M e m o r i a l  d a y  a c t i v i t i e s 7 0 0                     -                          7 0 0                     6 7 2                     2 8                       

A m b u l a n c e  s e r v i c e s 7 5 , 8 4 0                -                          7 5 , 8 4 0                2 5 , 0 0 0                5 0 , 8 4 0                

S e a c o a s t  s h i p y a r d 1 , 5 0 0                  -                          1 , 5 0 0                  1 , 5 0 0                  -                          

S h e l l f i s h  c o n s e r v a t i o n 2 , 8 0 0                  -                          2 , 8 0 0                  2 , 7 5 0                  5 0                       

M o s q u i t o / t i c k  c o n t r o l 5 7 , 2 0 0                -                          5 7 , 2 0 0                5 7 , 2 0 0                -                          

G I S / w e b  a c c o u n t 3 , 6 0 0                  -                          3 , 6 0 0                  3 , 6 0 0                  -                          

P S A P  p a i d  t o  Y o r k  p o l i c e  d e p t . 2 0 , 0 0 0                -                          2 0 , 0 0 0                1 9 , 0 8 6                9 1 4                     

B a n k  f e e s / c h a r g e s 2 5 0                     -                          2 5 0                     3                         2 4 7                     

A d u l t  e d u c a t i o n 5 4 , 0 8 1                -                          5 4 , 0 8 1                5 4 , 0 8 1                -                          

F I C A  e m p l o y e r -                          -                          -                          1 , 7 1 8                  ( 1 , 7 1 8 )                 

2 9 3 , 2 5 7               -                          2 9 3 , 2 5 7               2 5 0 , 7 8 4               4 2 , 4 7 3                

T o t a l  E x p e n d i t u r e s 2 2 , 9 6 7 , 0 6 7$         4 8 1 , 7 6 1$              2 3 , 4 4 8 , 8 2 8$         2 2 , 3 5 7 , 6 3 2$         1 , 0 9 1 , 1 9 6$           

S e e  a c c o m p a n y i n g  i n d e p e n d e n t  a u d i t o r s '  r e p o r t .  
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S p ec ia l C ap ita l T o ta l N o n m a jo r

R e ve n u e P ro je c t P e rm a ne n t G ov e rn m e n ta l

F u n d s F u n d s F u n ds F u n ds

A S S E T S

   C as h  a nd  c a sh  e q u iva le n ts 1 3 1$             -$                   1 3 5 ,14 5$       1 3 5 ,2 7 6$        

   In v e s tm e n ts -                   -                    6 8 7 ,09 1        6 8 7 ,0 9 1         

   A c c ou n ts  r ec e iv ab le  (n e t o f  a l lo w a n ce

 fo r  u nc o l le c t ib le s ) 4 5 ,7 4 3         4 1 ,2 7 8          -                    8 7 ,0 2 1           

D u e  fro m  o th e r g o ve rn m e n ts 2 1 5 ,4 0 5       -                    -                    2 1 5 ,4 0 5         

P re p a id  e xp e n se s -                   6 9 ,7 0 0          -                    6 9 ,7 0 0           

   D ue  fro m  o th e r  fun d s 1 ,4 7 4 ,2 1 4    2 ,9 9 3 ,2 4 5     2 1 1 ,75 5        4 ,6 7 9 ,2 1 4      

T o ta l a s se ts 1 ,7 3 5 ,4 9 3$   3 ,1 0 4 ,2 2 3$    1 ,0 3 3 ,99 1$    5 ,8 7 3 ,7 0 7$     

L IA B IL IT IE S

   A c c ou n ts  p a y a b le 2 4 4 ,7 7 7$      3 0 ,5 3 5$         2 ,63 0$           2 7 7 ,9 4 2$        

   B o n d  a n t ic ip a t io n  n o te -                   -                    -                    -                     

   D ue  to  o th e r  fu n d s 7 4 2 ,3 9 5       1 1 9 ,0 6 1        -                    8 6 1 ,4 5 6         

T o ta l l i ab i l i t ie s 9 8 7 ,1 7 2       1 4 9 ,5 9 6        2 ,63 0            1 ,1 3 9 ,3 9 8      

F U N D  B A L A N C E S

    N on s p en d a b le -                   6 9 ,7 0 0          -                    6 9 ,7 0 0           

    R es tr ic ted 6 0 ,9 0 5         8 5 2 ,6 3 1        1 ,0 3 1 ,36 1     1 ,9 4 4 ,8 9 7      

    C om m itte d 1 ,2 1 6 ,0 8 1    2 ,1 5 1 ,3 5 8     -                    3 ,3 6 7 ,4 3 9      

    A s s i gn e d 4 1 ,4 2 6         -                    -                    4 1 ,4 2 6           

    U na s s ig n e d (5 7 0 ,0 9 1 )      (1 1 9 ,0 6 2 )       -                    (6 8 9 ,1 5 3 )        

T o ta l fu n d  b a la n c e s 7 4 8 ,3 2 1       2 ,9 5 4 ,6 2 7     1 ,0 3 1 ,36 1     4 ,7 3 4 ,3 0 9      

T o ta l l i ab i l i t ie s  a nd  fu n d  

ba la n c e s 1 ,7 3 5 ,4 9 3$   3 ,1 0 4 ,2 2 3$    1 ,0 3 3 ,99 1$    5 ,8 7 3 ,7 0 7$     

S ee  a c co m p a ny in g  in de p e n d e n t a u d ito rs '  re po rt .
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S p e c ia l C a p ita l T o ta l N on m a jo r

R e ve n u e P ro je c t P e r m a n e n t G ov e rn m e n ta l

F un d s F u n ds F u nd s F u n d s

R E V E N U E S

In te r go v e rn m en ta l re v e nu e 8 5 9 ,35 5$      16 8 ,3 1 2$      -$                  1 ,0 2 7 ,6 6 7$       

O th e r in c om e 9 3 0 ,83 2       6 6 ,0 3 0         4 0 ,3 0 7         1 ,0 3 7 ,1 6 9        

In ve s tm e n t in co m e 2 ,32 7           7 ,0 5 2           1 5 ,8 3 6         2 5 ,2 1 5             

T O T A L  R E V E N U E S 1 ,7 9 2 ,51 4    24 1 ,3 9 4       5 6 ,1 4 3         2 ,0 9 0 ,0 5 1        

E X P E N D IT U R E S

A d m in is tra t io n 6 0 6 ,86 0       2 0 ,9 2 2         9 7 ,1 9 1         7 2 4 ,9 7 3           

P u b lic  s a fe ty 8 0 ,26 7         22 7 ,4 7 2       -                   3 0 7 ,7 3 9           

P u b lic  w o rk s -                   40 9 ,9 7 6       -                   4 0 9 ,9 7 6           

E d u ca t io n 1 ,0 7 6 ,97 2    27 3 ,9 3 3       1 ,6 5 5           1 ,3 5 2 ,5 6 0        

C a p ita l ou t la y 7 8 6 ,48 1       -                   -                   7 8 6 ,4 8 1           

T O T A L  E X P E N D IT U R E S 2 ,5 5 0 ,58 0    93 2 ,3 0 3       9 8 ,8 4 6         3 ,5 8 1 ,7 2 9        

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  O V E R  (U N D E R ) 

E X P E N D IT U R E S (7 5 8 ,06 6 )      ( 69 0 ,9 0 9 )      (4 2 ,7 0 3 )        (1 ,4 9 1 ,6 7 8 )       

O T H E R  F IN A N C IN G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S )

  O p e ra t in g  T r an s fe rs  In 5 2 4 ,29 1       1 ,51 3 ,5 3 1    -                   2 ,0 3 7 ,8 2 2        

  O p e ra t in g  T r an s fe rs  (O u t) (1 3 2 ,94 1 )      (8 2 ,2 3 7 )        -                   (2 1 5 ,1 7 8 )          

T O T A L  O T H E R  F IN A N C IN G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S ) 3 9 1 ,35 0       1 ,43 1 ,2 9 4    -                   1 ,8 2 2 ,6 4 4        

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  A N D  O T H E R  

S O U R C E S  O V E R  (U N D E R ) 

E X P E N D IT U R E S  A N D  O T H E R  ( U S E S ) (3 6 6 ,71 6 )      74 0 ,3 8 5       (4 2 ,7 0 3 )        3 3 0 ,9 6 6           

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U L Y  1 , R E S T A T E D 1 ,1 1 5 ,03 7    2 ,21 4 ,2 4 2    1 ,0 7 4 ,0 6 4    4 ,4 0 3 ,3 4 3        

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U N E  3 0 7 4 8 ,32 1$      2 ,95 4 ,6 2 7$   1 ,0 3 1 ,3 6 1$   4 ,7 3 4 ,3 0 9$       

S ee  a c co m p a ny in g  in de p e n d e n t a u d ito rs '  re po rt .
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Special Revenue Funds 
 

Special revenue funds are established to account for the proceeds of specific 
revenue sources (other than expendable trusts or for major capital projects) that are legally 
restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. 
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S e w e r S e w e r G M H  S to rm F ire H ig hw a y

Im p a c t B e tte rm e n t P o lic e  /  F i re D a m ag e  /  H a zm a t In te rn a l

F e es F e e s R e s cu e F E M A S p i l l  C le a nu p S e rv ic e s

A S S E T S

C a s h  a n d  ca s h  e q u iv a l en ts -$                -$                -$                -$             -$             -$             

D u e  fro m  o th e r g o ve rn m e n ts -                 -                 -                 -              -              -              

A cc o u n ts  re c e iv a b le  (n e t o f a l lo w an c e

     fo r  u n co lle c t ib le s ) -                 2 3 ,3 69       -                 4 ,55 7      -              -              

D u e  fro m  o th e r fu n ds 5 3 1 ,98 4     4 3 ,1 69       1 ,0 3 2         -              2 ,1 5 0      3 ,1 8 1      

T O T A L  A S S E T S 5 3 1 ,98 4$    6 6 ,5 38$      1 ,0 3 2$        4 ,55 7$     2 ,1 5 0$     3 ,1 8 1$     

L IA B IL IT IE S

  A c c ou n ts  pa y a b l e 1 6 0 ,01 4$    -$                -$                -$             -$             -$             

  D u e  to  o th e r  fu n d s -                 -                 -                 5 ,30 5      -              -              

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S 1 6 0 ,01 4     -                 -                 5 ,30 5      -              -              

F U N D  B A L A N C E S

  N o ns p e nd a b le -                 -                 -                 -              -              -              

  R e s tr ic te d -                 -                 1 ,0 3 2         -              2 ,1 5 0      -              

  C o m m itte d 3 7 1 ,97 0     6 6 ,5 38       -                 -              -              -              

  A s s ig ne d -                 -                 -                 -              -              3 ,1 8 1      

  U n as s ign e d -                 -                 -                 ( 74 8 )        -              -              

T O T A L  F U N D  B A L A N C E S 3 7 1 ,97 0     6 6 ,5 38       1 ,0 3 2         ( 74 8 )        2 ,1 5 0      3 ,1 8 1      

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S  A N D  F U N D  

B A LA N C E S 5 3 1 ,98 4$    6 6 ,5 38$      1 ,0 3 2$        4 ,55 7$     2 ,1 5 0$     3 ,1 8 1$     
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P o lic e

N e w  O ff ic e r M u n is S u b  H o s t G IS G IS  W e b

G ra n t L oa n O il &  M o re P ro g ra m W o rk A c co u n t

A S S E T S

C a s h  a n d  ca s h  e q u iv a l en ts -$                -$                -$                -$             -$             -$             

D u e  fro m  o th e r g o ve rn m e n ts -                 -                 -                 -              -              -              

A cc o u n ts  re c e iv a b le  (n e t o f a l lo w an c e

     fo r  u n co lle c t ib le s ) -                 -                 -                 -              -              -              

D u e  fro m  o th e r fu n ds 1 0 ,82 8       -                 1 6 ,7 4 2       -              -              -              

T O T A L  A S S E T S 1 0 ,82 8$      -$                1 6 ,7 4 2$      -$             -$             -$             

L IA B IL IT IE S

  A c c ou n ts  pa y a b l e -$                -$                -$                -$             -$             -$             

  D u e  to  o th e r  fu n d s -                 1 1 ,4 97       -                 -              -              -              

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S -                 1 1 ,4 97       -                 -              -              -              

F U N D  B A L A N C E S

  N o ns p e nd a b le -                 -                 -                 -              -              -              

  R e s tr ic te d 1 0 ,82 8       -                 -                 -              -              -              

  C o m m itte d -                 -                 1 6 ,7 4 2       -              -              -              

  A s s ig ne d -                 -                 -                 -              -              -              

  U n as s ign e d -                 (1 1 ,4 97 )      -                 -              -              -              

T O T A L  F U N D  B A L A N C E S 1 0 ,82 8       (1 1 ,4 97 )      1 6 ,7 4 2       -              -              -              

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S  A N D  F U N D  

B A LA N C E S 1 0 ,82 8$      -$                1 6 ,7 4 2$      -$             -$             -$             
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A c cru e d S e lf G r an t

V o lu n te e r M e m o ria l C o m p e n sa te d C ha n n e l In s u ra n ce M a tc h in g

R e co g n it io n D a y A c t iv i t ie s A b s e n ce s 2 2 C la im F u n ds

A S S E T S

C a s h  a n d  ca s h  e q u iv a l en ts -$                -$                   -$                    -$               -$             -$             

D u e  fro m  o th e r g o ve rn m e n ts -                 -                    -                     -                -              -              

A cc o u n ts  re c e iv a b le  (n e t o f a l lo w an c e

     fo r  u n co lle c t ib le s ) -                 -                    -                     -                -              -              

D u e  fro m  o th e r fu n ds 4 9              6 2 6                -                     13 0 ,7 6 6    2 6 ,8 0 7    5 ,1 80      

T O T A L  A S S E T S 4 9$             6 2 6$               -$                    13 0 ,7 6 6$   2 6 ,8 0 7$   5 ,1 80$     

L IA B IL IT IE S

  A c c ou n ts  pa y a b l e -$                -$                   -$                    -$               -$             -$             

  D u e  to  o th e r  fu n d s -                 -                    1 2 0 ,6 8 0         -                -              -              

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S -                 -                    1 2 0 ,6 8 0         -                -              -              

F U N D  B A L A N C E S

  N o ns p e nd a b le -                 -                    -                     -                -              -              

  R e s tr ic te d -                 -                    -                     -                -              5 ,1 80      

  C o m m itte d -                 -                    -                     13 0 ,7 6 6    2 6 ,8 0 7    -              

  A s s ig ne d 4 9              6 2 6                -                     -                -              -              

  U n as s ign e d -                 -                    (1 2 0 ,6 8 0 )        -                -              -              

T O T A L  F U N D  B A L A N C E S 4 9              6 2 6                (1 2 0 ,6 8 0 )        13 0 ,7 6 6    2 6 ,8 0 7    5 ,1 80      

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S  A N D  F U N D  

B A LA N C E S 4 9$             6 2 6$               -$                    13 0 ,7 6 6$   2 6 ,8 0 7$   5 ,1 80$     
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E m e rg e n cy B a llo t G e ne r a l K it te ry

F u e l C o u n tin g A s s is ta n ce L e g a l E n er g y /E a rth

A c co u n t M a ch in e s P ro g ra m A d s D a y

A S S E T S

C a s h  a n d  ca s h  e q u iv a l en ts -$               -$             -$             -$           -$                  

D u e  fro m  o th e r g o ve rn m e n ts -                -              -              -            -                   

A cc o u n ts  re c e iv a b le  (n e t o f a l lo w an c e

     fo r  u n co lle c t ib le s ) -                -              -              -            -                   

D u e  fro m  o th e r fu n ds 4 0 ,0 0 0       1 5 ,5 7 2    9 ,8 70      -            9 5                

T O T A L  A S S E T S 4 0 ,0 0 0$      1 5 ,5 7 2$   9 ,8 70$     -$           9 5$               

L IA B IL IT IE S

  A c c ou n ts  pa y a b l e -$               -$             -$             -$           -$                  

  D u e  to  o th e r  fu n d s -                -              -              2 ,1 8 5    -                   

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S -                -              -              2 ,1 8 5    -                   

F U N D  B A L A N C E S

  N o ns p e nd a b le -                -              -              -            -                   

  R e s tr ic te d -                -              -              -            -                   

  C o m m itte d 4 0 ,0 0 0       1 5 ,5 7 2    9 ,8 70      -            9 5                

  A s s ig ne d -                -              -              -            -                   

  U n as s ign e d -                -              -              ( 2 ,1 8 5 )   -                   

T O T A L  F U N D  B A L A N C E S 4 0,0 0 0       1 5 ,5 7 2    9 ,8 70      ( 2 ,1 8 5 )   9 5                

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S  A N D  F U N D  

B A LA N C E S 4 0,0 0 0$      1 5 ,5 7 2$   9 ,8 70$     -$           9 5$               
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U N H  S p ru c e O utfa l l H a rb o r S pr u ce S p ru ce W o od

C re e k P ip e  W a te r P la n n in g C re e k C re ek Is la n d  S ta te

G ra n t T e s t G ra n t 3 19  G ra n t 3 1 9  G ra n t G ra n t

A S S E T S

C a s h  a n d  ca s h  e q u iv a l en ts -$                 -$               -$           -$              -$             -$                

D u e  fro m  o th e r g o ve rn m e n ts -                  -                -            -               -              -                 

A cc o u n ts  re c e iv a b le  (n e t o f a l lo w an c e

     fo r  u n co lle c t ib le s ) -                  -                -            -               -              -                 

D u e  fro m  o th e r fu n ds -                  -                -            -               -              1 ,9 7 1         

T O T A L  A S S E T S -$                 -$               -$           -$              -$             1 ,9 7 1$        

L IA B IL IT IE S

  A c c ou n ts  pa y a b l e -$                 -$               -$           -$              3 ,7 3 6$     -$                

  D u e  to  o th e r  fu n d s -                  4 ,0 3 9         51 8       -               1 6 ,0 1 2    -                 

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S -                  4 ,0 3 9         51 8       -               1 9 ,7 4 8    -                 

F U N D  B A L A N C E S

  N o ns p e nd a b le -                  -                -            -               -              -                 

  R e s tr ic te d -                  -                -            -               -              1 ,9 7 1         

  C o m m itte d -                  -                -            -               -              -                 

  A s s ig ne d -                  -                -            -               -              -                 

  U n as s ign e d -                  (4 ,0 3 9)       ( 51 8 )      -               (1 9 ,7 4 8 )   -                 

T O T A L  F U N D  B A L A N C E S -                  (4 ,0 3 9)       ( 51 8 )      -               (1 9 ,7 4 8 )   1 ,9 7 1         

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S  A N D  F U N D  

B A LA N C E S -$                 -$               -$           -$              -$             1 ,9 7 1$        
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T r ee A S A  A p p lica n t P ie r Y o r k C o nc e rts

P la n t in g C o d e T o w n  P ie r C o n d it io n H a rb o r H o sp ita l In  T he

G ra n t E n fo rc e m e n t R e pa ir R e po rt P ie r S c h o l a r sh ip P a rk

A S S E T S

C a s h  a n d  ca s h  e q u iv a l en ts -$                -$                -$                -$             -$             -$             -$             

D u e  fro m  o th e r g o ve rn m e n ts -                 -                 -                 -              -              -              -              

A cc o u n ts  re c e iv a b le  (n e t o f a l lo w an c e

     fo r  u n co lle c t ib le s ) -                 -                 -                 -              -              -              -              

D u e  fro m  o th e r fu n ds -                 1 2 ,4 13       -                 1 ,09 8      -              1 0 ,8 0 7    2 ,0 2 7      

T O T A L  A S S E T S -$                1 2 ,4 13$      -$                1 ,09 8$     -$             1 0 ,8 0 7$   2 ,0 2 7$     

L IA B IL IT IE S

  A c c ou n ts  pa y a b l e -$                1 ,0 65$        5 4 ,9 5 7$      -$             -$             -$             -$             

  D u e  to  o th e r  fu n d s -                 -                 3 4 8 ,2 4 7     -              2 ,7 1 2      -              -              

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S -                 1 ,0 65         4 0 3 ,2 0 4     -              2 ,7 1 2      -              -              

F U N D  B A L A N C E S

  N o ns p e nd a b le -                 -                 -                 -              -              -              -              

  R e s tr ic te d -                 -                 -                 -              -              1 0 ,8 0 7    -              

  C o m m itte d -                 -                 -                 1 ,09 8      -              -              2 ,0 2 7      

  A s s ig ne d -                 1 1 ,3 48       -                 -              -              -              -              

  U n as s ign e d -                 -                 (4 0 3 ,2 0 4)    -              (2 ,7 1 2 )     -              -              

T O T A L  F U N D  B A L A N C E S -                 1 1 ,3 48       (4 0 3 ,2 0 4)    1 ,09 8      (2 ,7 1 2 )     1 0 ,8 0 7    2 ,0 2 7      

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S  A N D  F U N D  

B A LA N C E S -$                1 2 ,4 13$      -$                1 ,09 8$     -$             1 0 ,8 0 7$   2 ,0 2 7$     
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O p e n S h e ll f is h P h a se  2 A lte r na t iv e

S p ac e C o n se rv a t io n C o n se rv a t io n W e tla n ds S p ru c e  C re e k E ne rg y

R e se rv e C o m m itte e C o m m itte e M i ti ga t io n P ip e  T e s t F u n d R e c re a ti on

A S S E T S

C a s h  a n d  ca s h  e q u iv a l en ts -$             -$                -$                -$             -$             -$              -$               

D u e  fro m  o th e r g o ve rn m e n ts -              -                 -                 -              -              -               -                

A cc o u n ts  re c e iv a b le  (n e t o f a l lo w an c e

     fo r  u n co lle c t ib le s ) -              -                 -                 -              -              -               -                

D u e  fro m  o th e r fu n ds 48 ,3 6 3    -                 1 ,4 9 9         50 ,3 2 9    -              2 4 ,7 16     2 7 ,9 3 0      

T O T A L  A S S E T S 48 ,3 6 3$   -$                1 ,4 9 9$        50 ,3 2 9$   -$             2 4 ,7 16$    2 7 ,9 3 0$     

L IA B IL IT IE S

  A c c ou n ts  pa y a b l e -$             -$                -$                -$             -$             -$              1 1 ,5 0 3$     

  D u e  to  o th e r  fu n d s -              2 6 5            -                 -              -              -               -                

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S -              2 6 5            -                 -              -              -               1 1 ,5 0 3      

F U N D  B A L A N C E S

  N o ns p e nd a b le -              -                 -                 -              -              -               -                

  R e s tr ic te d -              -                 -                 -              -              -               -                

  C o m m itte d 48 ,3 6 3    -                 1 ,4 9 9         50 ,3 2 9    -              2 4 ,7 16     -                

  A s s ig ne d -              -                 -                 -              -              -               1 6 ,4 2 7      

  U n as s ign e d -              (2 6 5 )           -                 -              -              -               -                

T O T A L  F U N D  B A L A N C E S 48 ,3 6 3    (2 6 5 )           1 ,4 9 9         50 ,3 2 9    -              2 4 ,7 16     1 6 ,4 2 7      

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S  A N D  F U N D  

B A LA N C E S 48 ,3 6 3$   -$                1 ,4 9 9$        50 ,3 2 9$   -$             2 4 ,7 16$    2 7 ,9 3 0$     
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Traip

Property Mechanical Langdon Block School

Valuation Retrofit Defibrillators Gravel Pit Party Grants Totals

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents -$              -$              -$               -$            -$           131$         131$            

Due from other governments -                -                -                 -              -             215,405    215,405       

Accounts receivable (net of allowance

     for uncollectibles) -                -                -                 -              -             17,817      45,743         

Due from other funds 80,000      -                7,348         4,000      12,542   351,120    1,474,214    

TOTAL ASSETS 80,000$    -$              7,348$       4,000$    12,542$ 584,473$  1,735,493$  

LIABILITIES

  Accounts payable -$              -$              5,706$       -$            5,693$   2,103$      244,777$     

  Due to other funds -                1,148         -                 -              -             229,787    742,395       

TOTAL LIABILITIES -                1,148         5,706         -              5,693     231,890    987,172       

FUND BALANCES

  Nonspendable -                -                -                 -              -             -                -                   

  Restricted -                -                -                 -              -             28,937      60,905         

  Committed 80,000      -                -                 4,000      6,849     318,840    1,216,081    

  Assigned -                -                1,642         -              -             8,153        41,426         

  Unassigned -                (1,148)       -                 -              -             (3,347)       (570,091)      

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 80,000      (1,148)       1,642         4,000      6,849     352,583    748,321       

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND 

BALANCES 80,000$    -$              7,348$       4,000$    12,542$ 584,473$  1,735,493$  

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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S e w e r S ew er G M H  S to rm F ire H ig h w a y

I m p ac t B e t te rm en t P o li c e  /  F ire D am ag e  /  H a z m a t In te rna l

F e e s F e e s R e sc u e F E M A S p il l  C l ea n up S e rv ic es

R E V E N U E S

I n te rg ov e rn m en ta l re v en u e -$                     -$                    -$                       2 2 ,78 3$         -$                  -$                 

O th e r  in c om e 56 ,6 8 0            -                    -                        4 ,55 7            5 6 5               -                  

I nv e stm e n t in c o m e 2 ,1 0 6              1 34                -                        8 7                 -                   -                  

T O T A L  R E V E N U E S 58 ,7 8 6            1 34                -                        2 7 ,42 7          5 6 5               -                  

E X P E N D IT U R E S

A d m in is t ra t io n -                      -                    -                        -                   -                   -                  

P u b lic  s a f e ty -                      -                    3 ,28 9                5 5 ,92 0          1 ,8 8 3            -                  

E d u c a t i on -                      -                    -                        -                   -                   -                  

C a p ita l o u t l ay 2 59 ,5 0 9          -                    -                        -                   -                   -                  

T O T A L  E X P E N D IT U R E S 2 59 ,5 0 9          -                    3 ,28 9                5 5 ,92 0          1 ,8 8 3            -                  

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  O V E R  (U N D E R )  

E X P E N D IT U R E S (2 00 ,7 2 3 )         1 34                (3 ,28 9 )               (2 8 ,49 3 )         (1 ,3 1 8 )           -                  

O T H E R  F I N A N C I N G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S )

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  In -                      -                    -                        -                   -                   -                  

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  (O u t) (21 ,0 7 5 )           -                    -                        -                   -                   -                  

T O T A L  O T H E R  F IN A N C IN G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S ) (21 ,0 7 5 )           -                    -                        -                   -                   -                  

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  A N D  O T H E R  S O U R C E S  

O V E R  (U N D E R )  E X P E N D I T U R E S  A N D  O T H E R  (U S E S ) (2 21 ,7 9 8 )         1 34                (3 ,28 9 )               (2 8 ,49 3 )         (1 ,3 1 8 )           -                  

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U L Y  1 ,  R E S T A T E D 5 93 ,7 6 8          6 6 ,4 04           4 ,32 1                2 7 ,74 5          3 ,4 6 8            3 ,1 8 1           

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U N E  3 0 3 71 ,9 7 0$          6 6 ,5 38$          1 ,03 2$               (74 8 )$             2 ,1 5 0$           3 ,1 8 1$          



SCHEDULE E (CONTINUED) 
TOWN OF KITTERY, MAINE 

 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NONMAJOR  SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

 

68 
 

P o lic e

N e w  O f f i ce r M un is S u b  H o st G I S G IS  W e b

G ra n t L o an O il &  M o re P ro g ra m W o rk A c c ou n t

R E V E N U E S

I n te rg ov e rn m en ta l re v en u e -$                     -$                    -$                       -$                  -$                  -$                 

O th e r  in c om e -                      -                    5 7 ,11 1              -                   -                   -                  

I nv e stm e n t in c o m e -                      -                    -                        -                   -                   -                  

T O T A L  R E V E N U E S -                      -                    5 7 ,11 1              -                   -                   -                  

E X P E N D IT U R E S

A d m in is t ra t io n -                      1 8 ,6 12           6 1 ,40 4              -                   -                   -                  

P u b lic  s a f e ty -                      -                    -                        -                   5 ,9 6 0            -                  

E d u c a t i on -                      -                    -                        -                   -                   -                  

C a p ita l o u t l ay -                      -                    -                        -                   -                   -                  

T O T A L  E X P E N D IT U R E S -                      1 8 ,6 12           6 1 ,40 4              -                   5 ,9 6 0            -                  

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  O V E R  (U N D E R )  

E X P E N D IT U R E S -                      (1 8 ,6 12 )          (4 ,29 3 )               -                   (5 ,9 6 0 )           -                  

O T H E R  F I N A N C I N G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S )

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  In -                      1 8 ,6 87           -                        77 6               -                   -                  

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  (O u t) -                      -                    -                        -                   (6 ,0 5 6 )           (1 ,8 0 0 )          

T O T A L  O T H E R  F IN A N C IN G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S ) -                      1 8 ,6 87           -                        77 6               (6 ,0 5 6 )           (1 ,8 0 0 )          

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  A N D  O T H E R  S O U R C E S  

O V E R  (U N D E R )  E X P E N D I T U R E S  A N D  O T H E R  (U S E S ) -                      75                  (4 ,29 3 )               77 6               (1 2 ,0 1 6 )         (1 ,8 0 0 )          

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U L Y  1 ,  R E S T A T E D 10 ,8 2 8            (1 1 ,5 72 )          2 1 ,03 5              (77 6 )              1 2 ,0 1 6          1 ,8 0 0           

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U N E  3 0 10 ,8 2 8$           (1 1 ,4 97 )$         1 6 ,74 2$             -$                  -$                  -$                 
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A c cru e d S e lf G ran t

V o lu n te e r M em or ia l C o m p e ns a t ed C h an n e l In s u ra n c e M atc h in g

R e c o gn it i on D a y  A c t iv it ie s A b se nc e s 2 2 C la im F un d s

R E V E N U E S

I n te rg ov e rn m en ta l re v en u e -$                     -$                    -$                       -$                  -$                  -$                 

O th e r  in c om e -                      -                    -                        1 4 9 ,43 7        8 3 8               -                  

I nv e stm e n t in c o m e -                      -                    -                        -                   -                   -                  

T O T A L  R E V E N U E S -                      -                    -                        1 4 9 ,43 7        8 3 8               -                  

E X P E N D IT U R E S

A d m in is t ra t io n -                      -                    7 8 ,30 2              1 8 ,67 1          -                   -                  

P u b lic  s a f e ty -                      -                    -                        -                   -                   -                  

E d u c a t i on -                      -                    -                        -                   -                   -                  

C a p ita l o u t l ay -                      -                    -                        -                   3 ,6 7 5            -                  

T O T A L  E X P E N D IT U R E S -                      -                    7 8 ,30 2              1 8 ,67 1          3 ,6 7 5            -                  

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  O V E R  (U N D E R )  

E X P E N D IT U R E S -                      -                    (7 8 ,30 2 )             1 3 0 ,76 6        (2 ,8 3 7 )           -                  

O T H E R  F I N A N C I N G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S )

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  In -                      -                    1 2 5 ,00 0            -                   -                   -                  

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  (O u t) -                      -                    -                        -                   -                   -                  

T O T A L  O T H E R  F IN A N C IN G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S ) -                      -                    1 2 5 ,00 0            -                   -                   -                  

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  A N D  O T H E R  S O U R C E S  

O V E R  (U N D E R )  E X P E N D I T U R E S  A N D  O T H E R  (U S E S ) -                      -                    4 6 ,69 8              1 3 0 ,76 6        (2 ,8 3 7 )           -                  

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U L Y  1 ,  R E S T A T E D 4 9                   6 26                (1 6 7 ,37 8 )           -                   2 9 ,6 4 4          5 ,1 8 0           

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U N E  3 0 4 9$                  6 26$               (1 2 0 ,68 0 )$          1 3 0 ,76 6$       2 6 ,8 0 7$         5 ,1 8 0$          
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E m erg e n cy B a llo t G e ne ra l K it te ry

F u e l C o u n t i ng A ss is ta n c e L e g a l E n e rg y /E a r th

A cc o u n t M ac h in e s P ro g ra m A d s D ay

R E V E N U E S

I n te rg ov e rn m en ta l re v en u e -$                   -$                -$                  -$                  -$                      

O th e r  in c om e -                    -                 -                   -                   -                       

I nv e stm e n t in c o m e -                    -                 -                   -                   -                       

T O T A L  R E V E N U E S -                    -                 -                   -                   -                       

E X P E N D IT U R E S

A d m in is t ra t io n -                    -                 -                   -                   -                       

P u b lic  s a f e ty -                    -                 -                   -                   -                       

E d u c a t i on -                    -                 -                   -                   -                       

C a p ita l o u t l ay -                    -                 -                   -                   -                       

T O T A L  E X P E N D IT U R E S -                    -                 -                   -                   -                       

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  O V E R  (U N D E R )  

E X P E N D IT U R E S -                    -                 -                   -                   -                       

O T H E R  F I N A N C I N G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S )

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  In 2 0 ,0 0 0          5 ,1 44         -                   -                   -                       

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  (O u t) -                    -                 -                   -                   -                       

T O T A L  O T H E R  F IN A N C IN G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S ) 2 0 ,0 0 0          5 ,1 44         -                   -                   -                       

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  A N D  O T H E R  S O U R C E S  

O V E R  (U N D E R )  E X P E N D I T U R E S  A N D  O T H E R  (U S E S ) 2 0 ,0 0 0          5 ,1 44         -                   -                   -                       

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U L Y  1 ,  R E S T A T E D 2 0 ,0 0 0          1 0 ,4 28       9 ,8 70            (2 ,18 5 )           95                     

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U N E  3 0 4 0 ,0 0 0$          1 5 ,5 72$       9 ,8 70$           (2 ,18 5 )$          95$                    
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U N H  S p ru c e O u tf a ll H a rb o r S p ruc e S p ruc e  C ree k W o o d

C re e k P i pe  W a te r P la n n in g C re ek 3 19  G ra n t Is la nd  S ta te

G ran t T e st G ra n t 31 9  G ra n t P ha se  I I G ran t

R E V E N U E S

I n te rg ov e rn m en ta l re v en u e -$                     -$                   -$              -$                -$                        -$                    

O th e r  in c om e -                      -                    -               -                 5 6 ,7 7 3                -                    

I nv e stm e n t in c o m e -                      -                    -               -                 -                         -                    

T O T A L  R E V E N U E S -                      -                    -               -                 5 6 ,7 7 3                -                    

E X P E N D IT U R E S

A d m in is t ra t io n -                      3 ,8 84            -               -                 -                         -                    

P u b lic  s a f e ty -                      -                    -               -                 -                         -                    

E d u c a t i on -                      -                    -               -                 -                         -                    

C a p ita l o u t l ay -                      -                    -               -                 4 8 ,8 2 8                -                    

T O T A L  E X P E N D IT U R E S -                      3 ,8 84            -               -                 4 8 ,8 2 8                -                    

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  O V E R  (U N D E R )  

E X P E N D IT U R E S -                      (3 ,8 84 )           -               -                 7 ,9 4 5                  -                    

O T H E R  F I N A N C I N G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S )

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  In -                      -                    -               -                 6 ,0 8 4                  -                    

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  (O u t) (7 ,9 2 6 )              -                    -               (1 ,0 17 )        -                         -                    

T O T A L  O T H E R  F IN A N C IN G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S ) (7 ,9 2 6 )              -                    -               (1 ,0 17 )        6 ,0 8 4                  -                    

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  A N D  O T H E R  S O U R C E S  

O V E R  (U N D E R )  E X P E N D I T U R E S  A N D  O T H E R  (U S E S ) (7 ,9 2 6 )              (3 ,8 84 )           -               (1 ,0 17 )        1 4 ,0 2 9                -                    

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U L Y  1 ,  R E S T A T E D 7 ,9 2 6               (1 55 )              (5 1 8 )         1 ,0 17          (3 3 ,7 7 7 )               1 ,9 7 1             

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U N E  3 0 -$                     (4 ,0 39 )$          (5 1 8 )$        -$                (1 9 ,7 4 8 )$              1 ,9 7 1$            
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T re e A S A  A p p lic a n t P ie r Y o rk C o nc e r ts

P la n t in g C od e T o w n  P ie r C o nd it i on H a rb o r H os p ita l In  T h e

G ra n t E n fo rc e m e n t R e p a i r R e po r t P i e r S c h o la rsh ip P a rk

R E V E N U E S

I n te rg ov e rn m en ta l re v en u e -$             -$                    -$                 -$                -$                -$                    -$               

O th e r  in c om e -              20 ,5 2 6           4 3 ,6 0 0        -                 -                 1 8 ,6 00           2 ,0 5 3        

I nv e stm e n t in c o m e -              -                    -                 -                 -                 -                     -                

T O T A L  R E V E N U E S -              20 ,5 2 6           4 3 ,6 0 0        -                 -                 1 8 ,6 00           2 ,0 5 3        

E X P E N D IT U R E S

A d m in is t ra t io n 1 , 19 8       22 ,2 7 2           -                 -                 -                 -                     -                

P u b lic  s a f e ty -              -                    -                 -                 -                 -                     -                

E d u c a t i on -              -                    -                 -                 -                 -                     -                

C a p ita l o u t l ay -              -                    4 4 2 ,2 7 6      -                 7 ,7 1 2         1 3 ,6 59           1 ,2 5 1        

T O T A L  E X P E N D IT U R E S 1, 19 8       22 ,2 7 2           4 4 2 ,2 7 6      -                 7 ,7 1 2         1 3 ,6 59           1 ,2 5 1        

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  O V E R  (U N D E R )  

E X P E N D IT U R E S (1 , 19 8 )      (1 ,7 4 6 )            (3 9 8 ,6 7 6 )     -                 (7 ,7 1 2 )        4 ,9 41             8 0 2           

O T H E R  F I N A N C I N G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S )

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  In -              -                    7 0 ,0 0 0        -                 -                 -                     -                

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  (O u t) -              -                    (9 0 ,0 0 0 )       -                 -                 -                     -                

T O T A L  O T H E R  F IN A N C IN G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S ) -              -                    (2 0 ,0 0 0 )       -                 -                 -                     -                

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  A N D  O T H E R  S O U R C E S  

O V E R  (U N D E R )  E X P E N D I T U R E S  A N D  O T H E R  (U S E S ) (1 , 19 8 )      (1 ,7 4 6 )            (4 1 8 ,6 7 6 )     -                 (7 ,7 1 2 )        4 ,9 41             8 0 2           

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U L Y  1 ,  R E S T A T E D 1, 19 8       13 ,0 9 4           1 5 ,4 7 2        1 ,0 9 8         5 ,0 0 0         5 ,8 66             1 ,2 2 5        

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U N E  3 0 -$             11 ,3 4 8$          (4 0 3 ,2 0 4 )$    1 ,0 9 8$        (2 ,7 1 2 )$       1 0 ,8 07$          2 ,0 2 7$       
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O p e n S he ll f is h P h a se  2 A lte rn a t i v e

S pa c e C o ns e rv a t io n C on s e rv a t io n W e t la n ds S p ruc e  C ree k E n e rgy

R es e rv e C o m m it te e C om m it te e M i t ig a t i on P i pe  T e st F u n d R e c re a t i on

R E V E N U E S

I n te rg ov e rn m en ta l re v en u e -$                -$                    -$                       -$                -$                -$                 -$                  

O th e r  in c om e -                 -                    -                        1 0 ,5 00       -                 -                  2 91 ,4 3 3        

I nv e stm e n t in c o m e -                 -                    -                        -                 -                 -                  -                   

T O T A L  R E V E N U E S -                 -                    -                        1 0 ,5 00       -                 -                  2 91 ,4 3 3        

E X P E N D IT U R E S

A d m in is t ra t io n -                 -                    -                        -                 -                 -                  3 70 ,9 1 9        

P u b lic  s a f e ty -                 -                    -                        -                 -                 -                  -                   

E d u c a t i on -                 -                    -                        -                 -                 -                  -                   

C a p ita l o u t l ay 3 ,2 1 0         -                    2 13                   -                 6 ,1 4 8         -                  -                   

T O T A L  E X P E N D IT U R E S 3 ,2 1 0         -                    2 13                   -                 6 ,1 4 8         -                  3 70 ,9 1 9        

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  O V E R  (U N D E R )  

E X P E N D IT U R E S (3 ,2 1 0 )        -                    (2 13 )                  1 0 ,5 00       (6 ,1 4 8 )        -                  (79 ,4 8 6 )        

O T H E R  F I N A N C I N G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S )

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  In -                 -                    -                        -                 -                 -                  -                   

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  (O u t) -                 -                    -                        -                 (5 ,0 6 7 )        -                  -                   

T O T A L  O T H E R  F IN A N C IN G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S ) -                 -                    -                        -                 (5 ,0 6 7 )        -                  -                   

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  A N D  O T H E R  S O U R C E S  

O V E R  (U N D E R )  E X P E N D I T U R E S  A N D  O T H E R  (U S E S ) (3 ,2 1 0 )        -                    (2 13 )                  1 0 ,5 00       (11 ,2 1 5 )      -                  (79 ,4 8 6 )        

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U L Y  1 ,  R E S T A T E D 51 ,5 7 3       (2 65 )               1 ,7 12                3 9 ,8 29       11 ,2 1 5       24 ,7 1 6         95 ,9 1 3          

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U N E  3 0 48 ,3 6 3$       (2 65 )$              1 ,4 99$               5 0 ,3 29$       -$                24 ,7 1 6$        16 ,4 2 7$         
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Traip Other

Property Mechanical Langdon Block School

Valuation Retrofit Defibrillators Gravel Pit Party Grants Totals

REVENUES

Intergovernmental revenue -$               -$                  7,000$            -$               -$               829,572$       859,355$          

Other income -                 -                    3,098             -                 25,925       189,136         930,832            

Investment income -                 -                    -                     -                 -                 -                     2,327                

TOTAL REVENUES -                 -                    10,098            -                 25,925       1,018,708      1,792,514         

EXPENDITURES

Administration -                 -                    -                     3,000         28,598       -                     606,860            

Public safety -                 -                    13,215            -                 -                 -                     80,267              

Education -                 16,148          -                     -                 -                 1,060,824      1,076,972         

Capital outlay -                 -                    -                     -                 -                 -                     786,481            

TOTAL EXPENDITURES -                 16,148          13,215            3,000         28,598       1,060,824      2,550,580         

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 

EXPENDITURES

-                 (16,148)         (3,117)            (3,000)        (2,673)        (42,116)          (758,066)           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Operating Transfers In 40,000       -                    8,000             -                 -                 230,600         524,291            

  Operating Transfers (Out) -                 -                    -                     -                 -                 -                     (132,941)           

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)         40,000                     -               8,000                  -                  -           230,600             391,350 

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER 

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER (USES) 40,000       (16,148)         4,883             (3,000)        (2,673)        188,484         (366,716)           

FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, RESTATED 40,000       15,000          (3,241)            7,000         9,522         164,099         1,115,037         

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30 80,000$      (1,148)$         1,642$            4,000$       6,849$       352,583$       748,321$          

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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Capital Projects Funds 
 

 Capital projects funds are established to account for financial resources to be used 
for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities, other than those financed by 
proprietary or trust fund. 
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L an d  /  F ire

S ta te  A id D ra in ag e E m e ry S ta t io n  /  R e c R o ad S i de w a lk

to  R o a ds P ro je c ts F ie ld F ie ld C on s tru c t io n P rog ra m

A S S E T S

   A c c o u n ts  rec e iv a b le  (n e t  o f  a l l ow an c e

    fo r  un c o lle c t ib le s) 4 1 ,2 78$         -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

   P re p a i d  e x p e n se s -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   D u e  f ro m  o th e r  f u nd s 74 7 ,4 27        8 0 7               7 8 3               1 ,7 78            7 , 53 4            29 ,2 5 1          

T O T A L  A S S E T S 78 8 ,7 05$       8 0 7$              7 8 3$              1 ,7 78$           7 , 53 4$           29 ,2 5 1$         

L IA B IL IT IE S

A c c o u n ts  p ay a b le 1 0 ,9 00$         8 0$                -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

   D u e  to  o th e r  fu n ds -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S 1 0 ,9 00          8 0                 -                    -                    -                    -                    

F U N D  B A L A N C E S

   N o n sp e nd a b l e -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   R e str i c t ed 77 7 ,8 05        -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   C o m m i t ted -                    7 2 7               7 8 3               1 ,7 78            7 , 53 4            29 ,2 5 1          

   A s s ig n e d -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   U n a ss ign e d -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

T O T A L  F U N D  B A LA N C E S 77 7 ,8 05        7 2 7               7 8 3               1 ,7 78            7 , 53 4            29 ,2 5 1          

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S  A N D  F U N D  

B A L A N C E S 78 8 ,7 05$       8 0 7$              7 8 3$              1 ,7 78$           7 , 53 4$           29 ,2 5 1$         
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A s ph a lt S o l id  W as te F o r t F ire

S u r fa c e V e h ic le F o s te r R e c rea t io n H ig hw ay D ep t

M a in te na n c e F u n d M an a g em e n t V eh ic l e V e h ic le V e h ic le

A S S E T S

   A c c o u n ts  rec e iv a b le  (n e t  o f  a l l ow an c e

    fo r  un c o lle c t ib le s) -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

   P re p a i d  e x p e n se s -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   D u e  f ro m  o th e r  f u nd s 1 4 9               3 4 ,6 06          2 , 31 9            68 ,0 5 3          4 9 ,9 02          5 ,23 9            

T O T A L  A S S E T S 1 4 9$              3 4 ,6 06$         2 , 31 9$           68 ,0 5 3$         4 9 ,9 02$         5 ,23 9$           

L IA B IL IT IE S

A c c o u n ts  p ay a b le -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

   D u e  to  o th e r  fu n ds -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

F U N D  B A L A N C E S

   N o n sp e nd a b l e -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   R e str i c t ed -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   C o m m i t ted 1 4 9               3 4 ,6 06          2 , 31 9            68 ,0 5 3          4 9 ,9 02          5 ,23 9            

   A s s ig n e d -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   U n a ss ign e d -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

T O T A L  F U N D  B A LA N C E S 1 4 9               3 4 ,6 06          2 , 31 9            68 ,0 5 3          4 9 ,9 02          5 ,23 9            

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S  A N D  F U N D  

B A L A N C E S 1 4 9$              3 4 ,6 06$         2 , 31 9$           68 ,0 5 3$         4 9 ,9 02$         5 ,23 9$           
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P ark s B u ild in g S to rm P o r t B a dg e rs

D e p t S w im m i ng T he rm a l D ra in A u t ho r ity Is la nd F ire

V e h i c le P o o l Im a g er M a p p i ng B oa t C e m e te ry S ta t io n

A S S E T S

   A c c o u n ts  rec e iv a b le  (n e t  o f  a l l ow an c e

    fo r  un c o lle c t ib le s) -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

   P re p a i d  e x p e n se s -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   D u e  f ro m  o th e r  f u nd s 4 0 ,3 9 0          20 ,5 3 6          2 53               6 ,9 0 3            8 ,8 8 5            4 3 ,4 88          17 6               

T O T A L  A S S E T S 4 0 ,3 9 0$         20 ,5 3 6$         2 53$              6 ,9 0 3$           8 ,8 8 5$           4 3 ,4 88$         17 6$              

L IA B IL IT IE S

A c c o u n ts  p ay a b le -$                   -$                   -$                   1 ,5 0 0$           -$                   -$                   -$                   

   D u e  to  o th e r  fu n ds -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S -                    -                    -                    1 ,5 0 0            -                    -                    -                    

F U N D  B A L A N C E S

   N o n sp e nd a b l e -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   R e str i c t ed -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    4 3 ,4 88          -                    

   C o m m i t ted 4 0 ,3 9 0          20 ,5 3 6          2 53               5 ,4 0 3            8 ,8 8 5            -                    17 6               

   A s s ig n e d -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   U n a ss ign e d -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

T O T A L  F U N D  B A LA N C E S 4 0 ,3 9 0          20 ,5 3 6          2 53               5 ,4 0 3            8 ,8 8 5            4 3 ,4 88          17 6               

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S  A N D  F U N D  

B A L A N C E S 4 0 ,3 9 0$         20 ,5 3 6$         2 53$              6 ,9 0 3$           8 ,8 8 5$           4 3 ,4 88$         17 6$              
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P o lic e P o lic e S o lid

D rug V e h ic le W as te C o m pu te r P u b l ic O f f ic e

C o m p u t e r F o r f e i tu re E q u ip m e n t E q u ip m e n t M a pp in g S a fe ty R e s troo m s

A S S E T S

   A c c o u n ts  rec e iv a b le  (n e t  o f  a l l ow an c e

    fo r  un c o lle c t ib le s) -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

   P re p a i d  e x p e n se s -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   D u e  f ro m  o th e r  f u nd s 3 7 ,5 4 7          26 ,9 9 3          2 7 ,2 06          5 0 ,9 2 4          -                    5 8 ,2 13          -                    

T O T A L  A S S E T S 3 7 ,5 4 7$         26 ,9 9 3$         2 7 ,2 06$         5 0 ,9 2 4$         -$                   5 8 ,2 13$         -$                   

L IA B IL IT IE S

A c c o u n ts  p ay a b le -$                   -$                   1 7 ,0 99$         -$                   -$                   -$                   1$                  

   D u e  to  o th e r  fu n ds -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S -                    -                    1 7 ,0 99          -                    -                    -                    1                   

F U N D  B A L A N C E S

   N o n sp e nd a b l e -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   R e str i c t ed -                    26 ,9 9 3          -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   C o m m i t ted 3 7 ,5 4 7          -                    1 0 ,1 07          5 0 ,9 2 4          -                    5 8 ,2 13          -                    

   A s s ig n e d -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   U n a ss ign e d -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (1 )                  

T O T A L  F U N D  B A LA N C E S 3 7 ,5 4 7          26 ,9 9 3          1 0 ,1 07          5 0 ,9 2 4          -                    5 8 ,2 13          (1 )                  

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S  A N D  F U N D  

B A L A N C E S 3 7 ,5 4 7$         26 ,9 9 3$         2 7 ,2 06$         5 0 ,9 2 4$         -$                   5 8 ,2 13$         -$                   
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M u n ic ip a l P u b lic  W o rk s P u b l ic P W  L id T ra f f i c T ra f f ic C ro c ke t t

R o o f S h ed  O f f ic e W ork s  L i d R t.  1 L i gh t  R t . L ig h t  R t . N ec k  R d .

D e p re c ia t io n B u ild in g T o w n  H a ll N .  R a ing a rd en 2 3 6  M R T N 23 6  M A C N C u lv e r t

A S S E T S

   A c c o u n ts  rec e iv a b le  (n e t  o f  a l l ow an c e

    fo r  un c o lle c t ib le s) -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

   P re p a i d  e x p e n se s -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   D u e  f ro m  o th e r  f u nd s 9 0 ,6 8 3          -                    -                    -                    2 ,8 8 9            -                    1 0 9 , 77 0        

T O T A L  A S S E T S 9 0 ,6 8 3$         -$                   -$                   -$                   2 ,8 8 9$           -$                   1 0 9 , 77 0$       

L IA B IL IT IE S

A c c o u n ts  p ay a b le -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

   D u e  to  o th e r  fu n ds -                    11 ,7 1 3          8 87               1 ,0 5 4            -                    2 0 ,3 36          -                    

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S -                    11 ,7 1 3          8 87               1 ,0 5 4            -                    2 0 ,3 36          -                    

F U N D  B A L A N C E S

   N o n sp e nd a b l e -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   R e str i c t ed -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   C o m m i t ted 9 0 ,6 8 3          -                    -                    -                    2 ,8 8 9            -                    1 0 9 , 77 0        

   A s s ig n e d -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   U n a ss ign e d -                    (11 ,7 1 3 )         (8 87 )              (1 ,0 5 4 )           -                    (2 0 ,3 36 )         -                    

T O T A L  F U N D  B A LA N C E S 9 0 ,6 8 3          (11 ,7 1 3 )         (8 87 )              (1 ,0 5 4 )           2 ,8 8 9            (2 0 ,3 36 )         1 0 9 , 77 0        

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S  A N D  F U N D  

B A L A N C E S 9 0 ,6 8 3$         -$                   -$                   -$                   2 ,8 8 9$           -$                   1 0 9 , 77 0$       



TOWN OF KITTERY, MAINE                                   SCHEDULE F (CONTINUED) 
 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS  
JUNE 30, 2012 

81 
 

F o r t H a le y B u ild in g s C o m pu te r M u n i c pa l P ub li c

F o s te r B o a t i ng F ie ld an d R e p a ir F a c il i ty S a fe ty  R ad io

R e st ro o m s In f ras tru c tu re P ro je c t G ro u n ds R e p la c em en t M a i n t .  R e srv . A n te nn a

A S S E T S

   A c c o u n ts  rec e iv a b le  (n e t  o f  a l l ow an c e

    fo r  un c o lle c t ib le s) -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

   P re p a i d  e x p e n se s -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   D u e  f ro m  o th e r  f u nd s 3 ,1 7 4            90 ,0 0 0          -                    1 7 ,1 1 3          17 ,5 4 6          -                    -                    

T O T A L  A S S E T S 3 ,1 7 4$           90 ,0 0 0$         -$                   1 7 ,1 1 3$         17 ,5 4 6$         -$                   -$                   

L IA B IL IT IE S

A c c o u n ts  p ay a b le -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

   D u e  to  o th e r  fu n ds -                    -                    1 3 ,8 50          -                    -                    3 ,7 27            -                    

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S -                    -                    1 3 ,8 50          -                    -                    3 ,7 27            -                    

F U N D  B A L A N C E S

   N o n sp e nd a b l e -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   R e str i c t ed -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   C o m m i t ted 3 ,1 7 4            90 ,0 0 0          -                    1 7 ,1 1 3          17 ,5 4 6          -                    -                    

   A s s ig n e d -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   U n a ss ign e d -                    -                    (1 3 ,8 50 )         -                    -                    (3 ,7 27 )           -                    

T O T A L  F U N D  B A LA N C E S 3,1 7 4            90 ,0 0 0          (1 3 ,8 50 )         1 7 ,1 1 3          17 ,5 4 6          (3 ,7 27 )           -                    

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S  A N D  F U N D  

B A L A N C E S 3,1 7 4$           90 ,0 0 0$         -$                   1 7 ,1 1 3$         17 ,5 4 6$         -$                   -$                   
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B o n d  H il l F o r t  F o ste r S ew er T re a tm e n t

C re e k P ark V e h ic le S e w e r P la n t R e co rd s P ep p ere ll

D r iv e B e nc h R e s e rv e D e p rec ia t io n U p g rad e  I I P res e rv a t io n B u tte rw or th

A S S E T S

   A c c o u n ts  rec e iv a b le  (n e t  o f  a l l ow an c e

    fo r  un c o lle c t ib le s) -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

   P re p a i d  e x p e n se s -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   D u e  f ro m  o th e r  f u nd s 1 ,0 0 0            11 ,8 4 1          2 9 ,4 38          7 5 5 ,1 2 0        3 ,3 0 5            4 9 ,7 87          8 4 , 39 0          

T O T A L  A S S E T S 1 ,0 0 0$           11 ,8 4 1$         2 9 ,4 38$         7 5 5 ,1 2 0$       3 ,3 0 5$           4 9 ,7 87$         8 4 , 39 0$         

L IA B IL IT IE S

A c c o u n ts  p ay a b le -$                   -$                   -$                   9 5 5$              -$                   -$                   -$                   

   D u e  to  o th e r  fu n ds -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S -                    -                    -                    9 5 5               -                    -                    -                    

F U N D  B A L A N C E S

   N o n sp e nd a b l e -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   R e str i c t ed 1 ,0 0 0            -                    -                    -                    3 ,3 0 5            -                    -                    

   C o m m i t ted -                    11 ,8 4 1          2 9 ,4 38          7 5 4 ,1 6 5        -                    4 9 ,7 87          8 4 , 39 0          

   A s s ig n e d -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   U n a ss ign e d -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

T O T A L  F U N D  B A LA N C E S 1,0 0 0            11 ,8 4 1          2 9 ,4 38          7 5 4 ,1 6 5        3 ,3 0 5            4 9 ,7 87          8 4 , 39 0          

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S  A N D  F U N D  

B A L A N C E S 1,0 0 0$           11 ,8 4 1$         2 9 ,4 38$         7 5 5 ,1 2 0$       3 ,3 0 5$           4 9 ,7 87$         8 4 , 39 0$         
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T re a tm en t S c h oo l C ap ita l S h a p le ig h F F

A rc h ite c tu ra l P la n t M a in te na n c e I m pro v e m e n t T rac k  P ro tec t i v e

B a r r ie r U p g rad e R e se rv e F un d R e p l ac e m e n t C l o th in g T o ta ls

A S S E T S

   A c c o u n ts  rec e iv a b le  (n e t  o f  a l l ow an c e

    fo r  un c o lle c t ib le s) -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   4 1 ,27 8$          

   P re p a i d  e x p e n se s -                    -                    -                    69 ,7 00          -                    -                    6 9 ,70 0           

   D u e  f ro m  o th e r  f u nd s 5 3 ,2 36          4 0                 4 0 4 ,3 2 1        -                    23 0               -                    2 ,9 9 3 ,24 5      

T O T A L  A S S E T S 5 3 ,2 36$         4 0$                4 0 4 ,3 2 1$       69 ,7 00$         23 0$              -$                   3 ,1 0 4 ,22 3$     

L IA B IL IT IE S

A c c o u n ts  p ay a b le -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   3 0 ,53 5$          

   D u e  to  o th e r  fu n ds -                    -                    -                    67 ,4 94          -                    -                    1 1 9 ,06 1         

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S -                    -                    -                    67 ,4 94          -                    -                    1 4 9 ,59 6         

F U N D  B A L A N C E S

   N o n sp e nd a b l e -                    -                    -                    69 ,7 00          -                    -                    6 9 ,70 0           

   R e str i c t ed -                    4 0                 -                    -                    -                    -                    8 5 2 ,63 1         

   C o m m i t ted 5 3 ,2 36          -                    4 0 4 ,3 2 1        -                    23 0               -                    2 ,1 5 1 ,35 8      

   A s s ig n e d -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

   U n a ss ign e d -                    -                    -                    (67 ,4 94 )         -                    -                    (1 1 9 ,06 2 )        

T O T A L  F U N D  B A LA N C E S 5 3 ,2 36          4 0                 4 0 4 ,3 2 1        2 ,2 06            23 0               -                    2 ,9 5 4 ,62 7      

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S  A N D  F U N D  

B A L A N C E S 5 3 ,2 36$         4 0$                4 0 4 ,3 2 1$       69 ,7 00$         23 0$              -$                   3 ,1 0 4 ,22 3$     

S e e  ac c o m p an y in g  in d ep e nd e n t a ud ito rs '  rep o r t .
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L a nd  /  F i re

S ta te  A id D ra in a ge E m e ry S ta t i on  /  R e c R o a d S id ew a lk

to  R o a ds P ro je c ts F ie ld F i e l d C o ns truc t i on P rog ra m

R E V E N U E S

I n te rg ov e rn m en ta l re v en u e 16 8 ,3 12$       -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

O th e r  in c om e -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    5 ,0 0 0            

I nv e stm e n t in c o m e 2 ,1 56            7 3                 8                   4                   1 2                 6 4                 

T O T A L  R E V E N U E S 17 0 ,4 68        7 3                 8                   4                   1 2                 5 ,0 6 4            

E X P E N D IT U R E S

A d m in is t ra t io n -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

P u b lic  s a f e ty -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

P u b lic  w o rk s 22 9 ,8 45        2 6 ,20 0          1 ,7 0 0            -                    -                    -                    

E d u c a t i on -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

C a p ita l o u t l ay -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

T O T A L  E X P E N D IT U R E S 22 9 ,8 45        2 6 ,20 0          1 ,7 0 0            -                    -                    -                    

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  O V E R  (U N D E R )  

E X P E N D IT U R E S (5 9 ,3 77 )         (2 6 ,12 7 )         (1 ,6 9 2 )           4                   1 2                 5 ,0 6 4            

O T H E R  F I N A N C I N G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S )

  B o n d  p ro c ee d s -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  In 15 9 ,3 44        8 ,00 0            -                    8 86               7 ,50 0            1 0 ,0 0 0          

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  (O u t) -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

T O T A L  O T H E R  F IN A N C IN G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S ) 15 9 ,3 44        8 ,00 0            -                    8 86               7 ,50 0            1 0 ,0 0 0          

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  A N D  O T H E R  S O U R C E S  

O V E R  (U N D E R )  E X P E N D I T U R E S  A N D  O T H E R  

(U S E S ) 9 9 ,9 67          (1 8 ,12 7 )         (1 ,6 9 2 )           8 90               7 ,51 2            1 5 ,0 6 4          

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U L Y  1 67 7 ,8 38        1 8 ,85 4          2 ,4 7 5            8 88               2 2                 1 4 ,1 8 7          

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U N E  3 0 77 7 ,8 05$       72 7$              7 8 3$              1 ,7 78$           7 ,53 4$           2 9 ,2 5 1$         
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A sp h a l t S o li d  W a ste F o r t F i re

S ur f ac e V e h i c le F o ste r R ec re a t io n H ig h w a y D e p t

M a i n te n a nc e F u nd M a n ag e m e n t V e h ic le V e h i c le V eh ic le

R E V E N U E S

I n te rg ov e rn m en ta l re v en u e -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

O th e r  in c om e -                    -                    -                    -                    1 ,2 0 0            -                    

I nv e stm e n t in c o m e 1                   6 2                 1 2                 1 80               1 2 5               1 8                 

T O T A L  R E V E N U E S 1                   6 2                 1 2                 1 80               1 ,3 2 5            1 8                 

E X P E N D IT U R E S

A d m in is t ra t io n -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

P u b lic  s a f e ty -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

P u b lic  w o rk s 28 0               -                    1 ,3 6 1            -                    3 6 ,5 0 4          -                    

E d u c a t i on -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

C a p ita l o u t l ay -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

T O T A L  E X P E N D IT U R E S 28 0               -                    1 ,3 6 1            -                    3 6 ,5 0 4          -                    

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  O V E R  (U N D E R )  

E X P E N D IT U R E S (27 9 )              6 2                 (1 ,3 4 9 )           1 80               (3 5 ,1 7 9 )         1 8                 

O T H E R  F I N A N C I N G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S )

  B o n d  p ro c ee d s -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  In -                    3 1 ,8 2 7          -                    2 3 ,0 00          8 8 ,0 5 7          79 ,0 0 0          

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  (O u t) -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (79 ,0 0 0 )         

T O T A L  O T H E R  F IN A N C IN G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S ) -                    3 1 ,8 2 7          -                    2 3 ,0 00          8 8 ,0 5 7          -                    

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  A N D  O T H E R  S O U R C E S  

O V E R  (U N D E R )  E X P E N D I T U R E S  A N D  O T H E R  

(U S E S ) (27 9 )              3 1 ,8 8 9          (1 ,3 4 9 )           2 3 ,1 80          5 2 ,8 7 8          1 8                 

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U L Y  1 42 8               2 ,7 1 7            3 ,6 6 8            4 4 ,8 73          (2 ,9 7 6 )           5 ,2 2 1            

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U N E  3 0 14 9$              3 4 ,6 0 6$         2 ,3 1 9$           6 8 ,0 53$         4 9 ,9 0 2$         5 ,2 3 9$           
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P a rk s B u il d i ng S to rm P or t B a d ge rs

D ep t S w im m in g T h erm a l D ra in A u th o r it y Is la n d F ire

V e h ic le P o o l Im a g e r M ap p in g B o a t C e m e te ry S ta t ion

R E V E N U E S

I n te rg ov e rn m en ta l re v en u e -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

O th e r  in c om e -                    5 ,4 7 9            -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

I nv e stm e n t in c o m e 17 7               3 9                 7                   23                 3 0                 1 4 6               1                   

T O T A L  R E V E N U E S 17 7               5 ,5 1 8            7                   23                 3 0                 1 4 6               1                   

E X P E N D IT U R E S

A d m in is t ra t io n -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

P u b lic  s a f e ty -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

P u b lic  w o rk s -                    -                    1 ,9 4 8            1 9 ,5 62          -                    -                    -                    

E d u c a t i on -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

C a p ita l o u t l ay -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

T O T A L  E X P E N D IT U R E S -                    -                    1 ,9 4 8            1 9 ,5 62          -                    -                    -                    

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  O V E R  (U N D E R )  

E X P E N D IT U R E S 17 7               5 ,5 1 8            (1 ,9 4 1 )           (1 9 ,5 39 )         3 0                 1 4 6               1                   

O T H E R  F I N A N C I N G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S )

  B o n d  p ro c ee d s -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  In 1 2 ,98 3          4 ,7 6 1            -                    2 3 ,9 17          -                    -                    -                    

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  (O u t) -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

T O T A L  O T H E R  F IN A N C IN G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S ) 1 2 ,98 3          4 ,7 6 1            -                    2 3 ,9 17          -                    -                    -                    

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  A N D  O T H E R  S O U R C E S  

O V E R  (U N D E R )  E X P E N D I T U R E S  A N D  O T H E R  

(U S E S ) 1 3 ,16 0          1 0 ,2 7 9          (1 ,9 4 1 )           4 ,3 78            3 0                 1 4 6               1                   

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U L Y  1 2 7 ,23 0          1 0 ,2 5 7          2 ,1 9 4            1 ,0 25            8 ,8 5 5            43 ,3 4 2          1 75               

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U N E  3 0 4 0 ,39 0$         2 0 ,5 3 6$         2 5 3$              5 ,4 03$           8 ,8 8 5$           43 ,4 8 8$         1 76$              
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P o lic e P o l ic e S o lid

D ru g V e h i c l e W a s te C o m p u te r P ub li c O ff ic e

C om pu te r F o r fe itu re E q u ip m e n t E q u ipm en t M ap p in g S a f e ty R e stro o m s

R E V E N U E S

I n te rg ov e rn m en ta l re v en u e -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

O th e r  in c om e -                    -                    3 ,2 8 0            -                    -                    3 4 ,7 1 5          -                    

I nv e stm e n t in c o m e 1 26               9 7                 1 3 2               1 3 8               1 1                 1 0 8               -                    

T O T A L  R E V E N U E S 1 26               9 7                 3 ,4 1 2            1 3 8               1 1                 3 4 ,8 2 3          -                    

E X P E N D IT U R E S

A d m in is t ra t io n -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    1                   

P u b lic  s a f e ty -                    2 ,06 2            6 9 ,8 9 9          -                    -                    -                    -                    

P u b lic  w o rk s -                    -                    -                    9 ,9 9 9            -                    -                    -                    

E d u c a t i on -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

C a p ita l o u t l ay -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

T O T A L  E X P E N D IT U R E S -                    2 ,06 2            6 9 ,8 9 9          9 ,9 9 9            -                    -                    1                   

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  O V E R  (U N D E R )  

E X P E N D IT U R E S 1 26               (1 ,96 5 )           (6 6 ,4 8 7 )         (9 ,8 6 1 )           1 1                 3 4 ,8 2 3          (1 )                  

O T H E R  F I N A N C I N G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S )

  B o n d  p ro c ee d s -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  In -                    -                    6 5 ,0 0 0          38 ,4 4 0          -                    3 ,1 0 3            -                    

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  (O u t) -                    -                    -                    -                    (3 ,23 7 )           -                    -                    

T O T A L  O T H E R  F IN A N C IN G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S ) -                    -                    6 5 ,0 0 0          38 ,4 4 0          (3 ,23 7 )           3 ,1 0 3            -                    

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  A N D  O T H E R  S O U R C E S  

O V E R  (U N D E R )  E X P E N D I T U R E S  A N D  O T H E R  

(U S E S ) 1 26               (1 ,96 5 )           (1 ,4 8 7 )           28 ,5 7 9          (3 ,22 6 )           3 7 ,9 2 6          (1 )                  

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U L Y  1 37 ,4 21          2 8 ,95 8          1 1 ,5 9 4          22 ,3 4 5          3 ,22 6            2 0 ,2 8 7          -                    

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U N E  3 0 37 ,5 47$         2 6 ,99 3$         1 0 ,1 0 7$         50 ,9 2 4$         -$                   5 8 ,2 1 3$         (1 )$                 
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M u n ic ip a l P u b l ic  W ork s P ub lic P W  L id T ra f f ic T ra f f ic C roc k e t t

R oo f S h e d  O ff ic e W o rk s L id R t.  1 L ig h t  R t . L ig h t  R t . N e c k  R d .

D ep re c ia t io n B u i ld in g T o w n  H a ll N .  R a in g a rd e n 2 36  M R T N 2 3 6  M A C N C u lv e r t

R E V E N U E S

I n te rg ov e rn m en ta l re v en u e -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

O th e r  in c om e -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

I nv e stm e n t in c o m e 2 35               -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

T O T A L  R E V E N U E S 2 35               -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

E X P E N D IT U R E S

A d m in is t ra t io n -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

P u b lic  s a f e ty -                    -                    -                    -                    7 ,11 1            4 9 ,9 0 0          -                    

P u b lic  w o rk s -                    5 ,11 8            -                    -                    -                    -                    15 ,2 3 0          

E d u c a t i on -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

C a p ita l o u t l ay -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

T O T A L  E X P E N D IT U R E S -                    5 ,11 8            -                    -                    7 ,11 1            4 9 ,9 0 0          15 ,2 3 0          

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  O V E R  (U N D E R )  

E X P E N D IT U R E S 2 35               (5 ,11 8 )           -                    -                    (7 ,11 1 )           (4 9 ,9 0 0 )         (15 ,2 3 0 )         

O T H E R  F I N A N C I N G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S )

  B o n d  p ro c ee d s -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  In 40 ,1 28          -                    -                    -                    -                    1 4 ,7 8 2          1 25 ,0 0 0        

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  (O u t) -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

T O T A L  O T H E R  F IN A N C IN G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S ) 40 ,1 28          -                    -                    -                    -                    1 4 ,7 8 2          1 25 ,0 0 0        

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  A N D  O T H E R  S O U R C E S  

O V E R  (U N D E R )  E X P E N D I T U R E S  A N D  O T H E R  

(U S E S ) 40 ,3 63          (5 ,11 8 )           -                    -                    (7 ,11 1 )           (3 5 ,1 1 8 )         1 09 ,7 7 0        

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U L Y  1 50 ,3 20          (6 ,59 5 )           (8 8 7 )              (1 ,0 5 4 )           1 0 ,00 0          1 4 ,7 8 2          -                    

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U N E  3 0 90 ,6 83$         (1 1 ,71 3 )$        (8 8 7 )$             (1 ,0 5 4 )$          2 ,88 9$           (2 0 ,3 3 6 )$        1 09 ,7 7 0$       
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F o rt H a le y B u ild in gs C o m p u te r M un ic p a l P u b lic

F o ste r B o a t i ng  F ie ld a n d R e p a ir F a c il i ty S a f e ty  R a d io

R e stro om s In fra s truc tu re P ro je c t G ro un d s R e p l ac e m e n t M a in t .  R e srv . A n ten n a

R E V E N U E S

I n te rg ov e rn m en ta l re v en u e -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

O th e r  in c om e -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

I nv e stm e n t in c o m e -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

T O T A L  R E V E N U E S -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

E X P E N D IT U R E S

A d m in is t ra t io n -                    -                    -                    -                    6 ,86 8            -                    -                    

P u b lic  s a f e ty -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    48 ,5 0 0          

P u b lic  w o rk s -                    -                    -                    19 ,8 0 3          -                    -                    -                    

E d u c a t i on -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

C a p ita l o u t l ay -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

T O T A L  E X P E N D IT U R E S -                    -                    -                    19 ,8 0 3          6 ,86 8            -                    48 ,5 0 0          

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  O V E R  (U N D E R )  

E X P E N D IT U R E S -                    -                    -                    (19 ,8 0 3 )         (6 ,86 8 )           -                    (48 ,5 0 0 )         

O T H E R  F I N A N C I N G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S )

  B o n d  p ro c ee d s -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  In -                    9 0 ,00 0          -                    22 ,9 2 6          -                    -                    48 ,5 0 0          

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  (O u t) -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

T O T A L  O T H E R  F IN A N C IN G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S ) -                    9 0 ,00 0          -                    22 ,9 2 6          -                    -                    48 ,5 0 0          

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  A N D  O T H E R  S O U R C E S  

O V E R  (U N D E R )  E X P E N D I T U R E S  A N D  O T H E R  

(U S E S ) -                    9 0 ,00 0          -                    3 ,1 2 3            (6 ,86 8 )           -                    -                    

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U L Y  1 3 ,1 74            -                    (1 3 ,8 5 0 )         13 ,9 9 0          2 4 ,41 4          (3 ,7 2 7 )           -                    

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U N E  3 0 3 ,1 74$           9 0 ,00 0$         (1 3 ,8 5 0 )$        17 ,1 1 3$         1 7 ,54 6$         (3 ,7 2 7 )$          -$                   
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B o nd  H il l F o r t  F o ste r S e w e r T re a tm en t

C re ek P a rk V e h i c l e S e w e r P la n t R e c o rds P e p pe re ll

D r i v e B e n c h R e se rv e D ep re c ia t io n U p gra d e  I I P re se rv a t ion B u tte rw o r th

R E V E N U E S

I n te rg ov e rn m en ta l re v en u e -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

O th e r  in c om e -                    1 0 ,80 0          3 ,3 5 0            -                    -                    -                    -                    

I nv e stm e n t in c o m e -                    -                    1 6 3               2 ,5 9 0            7 4                 9 2                 -                    

T O T A L  R E V E N U E S -                    1 0 ,80 0          3 ,5 1 3            2 ,5 9 0            7 4                 9 2                 -                    

E X P E N D IT U R E S

A d m in is t ra t io n -                    5 ,37 1            -                    -                    -                    3 ,0 7 2            5 ,6 1 0            

P u b lic  s a f e ty -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

P u b lic  w o rk s -                    -                    -                    20 ,5 7 6          2 1 ,85 0          -                    -                    

E d u c a t i on -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

C a p ita l o u t l ay -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

T O T A L  E X P E N D IT U R E S -                    5 ,37 1            -                    20 ,5 7 6          2 1 ,85 0          3 ,0 7 2            5 ,6 1 0            

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  O V E R  (U N D E R )  

E X P E N D IT U R E S -                    5 ,42 9            3 ,5 1 3            (17 ,9 8 6 )         (2 1 ,77 6 )         (2 ,9 8 0 )           (5 ,6 1 0 )           

O T H E R  F I N A N C I N G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S )

  B o n d  p ro c ee d s -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  In -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    4 9 ,4 0 0          90 ,0 0 0          

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  (O u t) -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

T O T A L  O T H E R  F IN A N C IN G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S ) -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    4 9 ,4 0 0          90 ,0 0 0          

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  A N D  O T H E R  S O U R C E S  

O V E R  (U N D E R )  E X P E N D I T U R E S  A N D  O T H E R  

(U S E S ) -                    5 ,42 9            3 ,5 1 3            (17 ,9 8 6 )         (2 1 ,77 6 )         4 6 ,4 2 0          84 ,3 9 0          

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U L Y  1 1 ,0 00            6 ,41 2            2 5 ,9 2 5          7 72 ,1 5 1        2 5 ,08 1          3 ,3 6 7            -                    

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U N E  3 0 1 ,0 00$           1 1 ,84 1$         2 9 ,4 3 8$         7 54 ,1 6 5$       3 ,30 5$           4 9 ,7 8 7$         84 ,3 9 0$         
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T rea tm e n t S c ho o l C a p ita l S h ap le ig h F F

A rc h ite ctu ra l P la n t   M a in te na n c e Im pro v em en t T ra ck P ro te c t iv e

B a rr i e r U p g rad e R es e rv e F u n d R ep la c e m e n t C lo th in g T o ta ls

R E V E N U E S

I n te rg ov e rn m en ta l re v en u e -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   1 6 8 ,31 2$       

O th e r  in c om e -                    -                    -                    2 ,2 06            -                    -                    6 6 ,03 0         

I nv e stm e n t in c o m e 14 8               -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    7 ,05 2           

T O T A L  R E V E N U E S 14 8               -                    -                    2 ,2 06            -                    -                    2 4 1 ,39 4       

E X P E N D IT U R E S

A d m in is t ra t io n -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    2 0 ,92 2         

P u b lic  s a f e ty -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    50 ,0 0 0          2 2 7 ,47 2       

P u b lic  w o rk s -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    4 0 9 ,97 6       

E d u c a t i on -                    -                    84 ,1 6 3          -                    1 8 9 ,7 7 0        -                    2 7 3 ,93 3       

C a p ita l o u t l ay -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   

T O T A L  E X P E N D IT U R E S -                    -                    84 ,1 6 3          -                    1 8 9 ,7 7 0        50 ,0 0 0          9 3 2 ,30 3       

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  O V E R  (U N D E R )  

E X P E N D IT U R E S 14 8               -                    (84 ,1 6 3 )         2 ,2 06            (1 8 9 ,7 7 0 )       (50 ,0 0 0 )         (6 9 0 ,90 9 )      

O T H E R  F I N A N C I N G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S )

  B o n d  p ro c ee d s -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  In 1 7 ,73 8          -                    2 19 ,2 3 9        -                    1 9 0 ,0 0 0        50 ,0 0 0          1 ,5 1 3 ,53 1     

  O p e ra t ing  T ra n sf e rs  (O u t) -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (8 2 ,23 7 )        

T O T A L  O T H E R  F IN A N C IN G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S ) 1 7 ,73 8          -                    2 19 ,2 3 9        -                    1 9 0 ,0 0 0        50 ,0 0 0          1 ,4 3 1 ,29 4     

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  A N D  O T H E R  S O U R C E S  

O V E R  (U N D E R )  E X P E N D I T U R E S  A N D  O T H E R  

(U S E S ) 1 7 ,88 6          -                    1 35 ,0 7 6        2 ,2 06            2 3 0               -                    7 4 0 ,38 5       

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U L Y  1 3 5 ,35 0          4 0                 2 69 ,2 4 5        -                    -                    -                    2 ,2 1 4 ,24 2$    

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U N E  3 0 5 3 ,23 6$         4 0$                4 04 ,3 2 1$       2 ,2 06$           2 3 0$              -$                   2 ,9 5 4 ,62 7$    

S e e  ac c o m p an y in g  in d ep e nd e n t a ud ito rs '  rep o r t .
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Permanent Funds 
 

 Permanent funds are used to account for assets held by the Town of Kittery, Maine 
in trust or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units 
and/or other funds.  These funds have been established for the provision and/or 
maintenance of the cemeteries, Public Health Trust and Lester Raynes Trust and the 
school department scholarships. 
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P ub lic M a ry L e s te r

C e m e te ry H e a lth S a ffo r d R a yn e s

T ru s t T r us t W ild e s T ru s t

A S S E T S

C a s h  a n d  ca s h  e q u iv a l en ts -$                -$                3 3 ,2 21$      -$                

In ve s tm e n ts -                 -                 6 8 7 ,0 91     -                 

D u e  fro m  o th e r fu n ds 1 0 0 ,7 6 2     27 ,2 7 5       -                 9 ,0 0 9         

T O T A L  A S S E T S 1 0 0 ,7 6 2$    27 ,2 7 5$      7 2 0 ,3 12$    9 ,0 0 9$        

L IA B IL IT IE S

A cc o u n ts  p a ya b le 2 ,6 3 0$        -$                -$                -$                

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S 2 ,6 3 0         -                 -                 -                 

F U N D  B A L A N C E S

    N on s p en d a b le -                 -                 -                 -                 

    R es tr ic ted 9 8 ,1 3 2       27 ,2 7 5       7 2 0 ,3 12     9 ,0 0 9         

    C om m itte d -                 -                 -                 -                 

    A s s i gn e d -                 -                 -                 -                 

    U na s s ig n e d -                 -                 -                 -                 

T O T A L  F U N D  B A L A N C E S 9 8 ,1 3 2       27 ,2 7 5       7 2 0 ,3 12     9 ,0 0 9         

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S  A N D  F U N D  

B A LA N C E S 1 0 0 ,7 6 2$    27 ,2 7 5$      7 2 0 ,3 12$    9 ,0 0 9$        
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S ch o o l R e cy c l ing S am u e ls

T r us t S ch o la rs h ip B e a u tif ica t io n

F u n ds F u nd F u n d s T o ta ls

A S S E T S

   C as h  a nd  c a sh  e q u iva le n ts 1 0 1 ,9 24$      -$                -$                   13 5 ,1 4 5$       

   In v e s tm e n ts -                  -                 -                    68 7 ,0 9 1        

   D ue  fro m  o th e r  fun d s -                  1 7 ,1 5 3       5 7 ,5 5 6           21 1 ,7 5 5        

T O T A L  A S S E T S 1 0 1 ,9 24$      1 7 ,1 5 3$      5 7 ,5 5 6$          1 ,03 3 ,9 9 1$    

L IA B IL IT IE S

   A c c ou n ts  p a y a b le -$                 -$                -$                   2 ,6 3 0$           

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S -                  -                 -                    2 ,6 3 0            

F U N D  B A L A N C E S

    N on s p en d a b le -                  -                 -                    -                    

    R es tr ic ted 1 0 1 ,9 24       1 7 ,1 5 3       5 7 ,5 5 6           1 ,03 1 ,3 6 1     

    C om m itte d -                  -                 -                    -                    

    A s s i gn e d -                  -                 -                    -                    

    U na s s ig n e d -                  -                 -                    -                    

T O T A L  F U N D  B A L A N C E S 1 0 1 ,9 24       1 7 ,1 5 3       5 7 ,5 5 6           1 ,03 1 ,3 6 1     

T O T A L  L IA B IL IT IE S  A N D  F U N D  

B A LA N C E S 1 0 1 ,9 24$      1 7 ,1 5 3$      5 7 ,5 5 6$          1 ,03 3 ,9 9 1$    

S ee  a c co m p a ny in g  in de p e n d e n t a u d ito rs '  re po rt .
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Public Mary Lester

Cemetery Health Safford Raynes

Trust Trust Wildes Trust

REVENUES

Investment income 398$          90$            14,929$     30$            

Other income 500            -                 30,456       -                 

TOTAL REVENUES 898            90              45,385       30              

EXPENDITURES

Education -                 -                 -                 -                 

Town wide 23,270       -                 54,421       -                 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 23,270       -                 54,421       -                 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 

EXPENDITURES (22,372)      90              (9,036)        30              

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Operating Transfers In -                 -                 -                 -                 

  Operating Transfers (Out) -                 -                 -                 -                 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) -                 -                 -                 -                 

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER 

SOURCES OVER (UNDER) 

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER (USES) (22,372)      90              (9,036)        30              

FUND BALANCES, JULY 1 120,504     27,185       729,348     8,979         

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30 98,132$     27,275$     720,312$   9,009$       
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S c h o o l R e cy c l in g S a m u e ls

T ru s t S c h o la rsh ip B e a u ti fi ca t io n

F un d s F u n d F u n ds T o ta l s

R E V E N U E S

In ve s tm e n t in co m e 9 8$             98$             1 9 3$              1 5 ,8 3 6$         

O th e r in c om e 2 7 5            9 ,0 76         -                    4 0 ,3 0 7          

T O T A L  R E V E N U E S 3 7 3            9 ,1 74         1 9 3               5 6 ,1 4 3          

E X P E N D IT U R E S

E d u ca tio n 1 ,6 5 5         -                 -                    1 ,6 5 5            

T o w n w id e -                 1 9 ,5 00       -                    9 7 ,1 9 1          

T O T A L  E X P E N D IT U R E S 1,6 5 5         1 9 ,5 00       -                    9 8 ,8 4 6          

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  O V E R  (U N D E R ) 

E X P E N D IT U R E S ( 1 ,2 8 2 )        (1 0 ,3 26 )      1 9 3               (4 2 ,7 0 3 )         

O T H E R  F IN A N C IN G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S )

  O p e ra t in g  T r an s fe rs  In -                 -                 -                    -                    

  O p e ra t in g  T r an s fe rs  (O u t) -                 -                 -                    -                    

T O T A L  O T H E R  F IN A N C IN G  S O U R C E S  (U S E S ) -                 -                 -                    -                    

E X C E S S  O F  R E V E N U E S  A N D  O T H E R  

S O U R C E S  O V E R  (U N D E R ) E X P E N D IT U R E S  

A N D  O T H E R  (U S E S ) ( 1 ,2 8 2 )        (1 0 ,3 26 )      1 9 3               (4 2 ,7 0 3 )         

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U L Y  1  1 0 3 ,2 0 6     2 7 ,4 79       5 7 ,3 6 3          1 ,07 4 ,0 6 4     

F U N D  B A L A N C E S , J U N E  3 0 1 0 1 ,9 2 4$    1 7 ,1 53$      5 7 ,5 5 6$         1 ,03 1 ,3 6 1$    

S ee  a c co m p a ny in g  in de p e n d e n t a u d ito rs '  re po rt .  
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 General capital assets are those assets related to activities reported in the 
governmental funds.  These assets are reported in the governmental activities column of 
the government-wide statement of net assets.  
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F u rn itu re ,

L a nd  a n d B u ild in g s , F ix tu re s ,

N o n -d ep re c ia b le B u ild in g  Im pr ov e m e nts E q u ip m e n t

A ss e ts &  L an d  Im p ro ve m e n ts &  V e h ic les In fra s tru c tu re T o ta ls

P o l ice -$                       8 4 ,4 5 8$                      9 8 2 ,3 6 0$        -$                  1 ,0 6 6 ,8 1 8$     

G e n e ra l g ov e rn m e nt -                        2 ,6 8 9 ,4 8 5                  2 1 9 ,3 8 7         -                   2 ,9 0 8 ,8 7 2      

F ire 3 53 ,2 0 0            3 ,4 8 4 ,5 3 7                  2 ,2 1 3 ,5 1 5      -                   6 ,0 5 1 ,2 5 2      

H ig h w a y 8 ,6 28 ,9 0 0         3 ,4 2 2 ,6 5 0                  3 ,0 0 9 ,2 2 5      9 ,9 8 0 ,69 5    2 5 ,0 4 1 ,4 7 0    

R e cy c l ing -                        9 8 ,2 2 6                       2 9 ,2 8 8           4 4 2 ,27 6       5 6 9 ,7 9 0         

R e cre a t io n 5 ,3 40 ,8 0 0         1 5 1 ,2 5 4                     8 6 ,1 5 9           -                   5 ,5 7 8 ,2 1 3      

L i b r a r y -                        8 ,7 1 1                         -                    -                   8 ,7 1 1             

T o w n -w id e 1 ,9 73 ,3 0 0         3 ,2 5 8 ,9 0 4                  6 1 ,0 5 8           -                   5 ,2 9 3 ,2 6 2      

S ch o o l D e p ar tm e n t 45 ,4 0 6              2 5 ,3 1 5 ,9 3 1                5 0 5 ,9 9 5         -                   2 5 ,8 6 7 ,3 3 2    

S ew e r D e p a rtm e n t 4 ,0 09 ,9 4 2         1 4 ,9 0 6 ,1 3 2                6 0 5 ,5 2 9         2 5 ,76 8         1 9 ,5 4 7 ,3 7 1    

S ch o o l L un c h  P ro g r am -                        -                                9 8 ,2 5 5           -                   9 8 ,2 5 5           

T o ta l G e n er a l C ap ita l A s se ts 2 0 ,3 51 ,5 4 8       5 3 ,4 2 0 ,2 8 8                7 ,8 1 0 ,7 7 1      10 ,4 4 8 ,73 9  9 2 ,0 3 1 ,3 4 6    

Le s s : A c cu m u la te d  D e pr ec ia t io n -                        (2 4 ,4 7 9 ,4 9 8 )              (5 ,1 6 2 ,5 4 9 )    (7 ,2 6 0 ,59 4 )   (3 6 ,9 0 2 ,6 4 1)   

N e t G e n e ra l C a p ita l A s se ts 2 0 ,3 51 ,5 4 8$      2 8 ,9 4 0 ,7 9 0$               2 ,6 4 8 ,2 2 2$     3 ,1 8 8 ,14 5$   5 5 ,1 2 8 ,7 0 5$   

S ee  a c co m p a ny in g  in de p e n d e n t a u d ito rs '  re po rt .
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G e ne ra l G e ne r a l

C a p ita l C a p ita l

A ss e ts A ss e ts

7 /1 /1 1 A d d it io ns D e le t io n s 6 /30 /1 2

P o l ice 9 4 8 ,4 1 8$              1 1 8 ,4 00$        -$                    1 ,0 6 6 ,8 1 8$           

G e n e ra l g ov e rn m e nt 2 ,8 9 0 ,2 0 1            1 8 ,6 71           -                     2 ,9 0 8 ,8 7 2            

F ire 6 ,0 3 8 ,0 3 7            1 3 ,2 15           -                     6 ,0 5 1 ,2 5 2            

H ig h w a y 2 4 ,6 0 6 ,6 8 7          4 3 4 ,7 83         -                     2 5 ,0 4 1 ,4 7 0          

R e cy c l ing 1 4 3 ,5 1 4               4 4 2 ,2 76         ( 16 ,0 0 0 )          5 6 9 ,7 9 0               

R e cre a t io n 2 3 7 ,4 1 3               5 ,3 4 0 ,8 00      -                     5 ,5 7 8 ,2 1 3            

L i b r a r y 8 ,7 1 1                   -                    -                     8 ,7 1 1                   

T o w n -w id e 5 ,2 9 3 ,2 6 2            -                    -                     5 ,2 9 3 ,2 6 2            

S ch o o l D e p ar tm e n t 2 4 ,8 4 8 ,7 4 2          1 ,0 3 3 ,5 90      ( 15 ,0 0 0 )          2 5 ,8 6 7 ,3 3 2          

S ew e r D e p a rtm e n t 1 9 ,2 6 2 ,4 2 5          2 8 4 ,9 46         -                     1 9 ,5 4 7 ,3 7 1          

S ch o o l L un c h  P ro g r am 9 8 ,2 5 5                 -                    -                     9 8 ,2 5 5                 

T o ta l G e n er a l C ap ita l A s se ts 8 4 ,3 7 5 ,6 6 5          7 ,6 8 6 ,6 81      ( 31 ,0 0 0 )          9 2 ,0 3 1 ,3 4 6          

Le s s : A c cu m u la te d  D e pr ec ia t io n (3 4 ,5 9 9 ,5 5 0)        ( 2 ,3 3 4 ,0 91 )    31 ,0 0 0           (3 6 ,9 0 2 ,6 4 1)        

N e t G e n e ra l C a p ita l A s se ts 4 9 ,7 7 6 ,1 1 5$         5 ,3 5 2 ,5 90$     -$                    5 5 ,1 2 8 ,7 0 5$         

S ee  a c co m p a ny in g  in de p e n d e n t a u d ito rs '  re po rt .
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F ed e ra l G ra n to r F e d e ra l P a ss  T h ru

  P a ss  T h ro u gh  G ra n to r C F D A G ra n to r F e d e ra l

    P ro g ra m  T it le N um b e r N u m b e r E xp en d itu re s

U .S . D e p ar tm e n t o f A g r icu ltu re

  P a s se d  th ro u g h  S ta te  o f M a ine  -

  o f  E d u ca t io n  a n d  C u ltu ra l S e rv ice s :

    F o o d  D is tr ib u t ion 1 0 .55 0 N /A 3 6 ,61 3$         

    S c h o o l B r ea k fa s t P ro g ra m 1 0 .55 5 0 1 3 -0 6A - 71 2 7 -0 5 3 8 ,09 0          

    S c h o o l L u n ch  P ro g ra m 1 0 .55 5 0 1 3 -0 6A - 71 2 8 -9 5 1 0 6 ,68 1        

T o ta l D ep a rtm e n t o f A g r ic u ltu re 1 8 1 ,38 4        

U .S . D e p ar tm e n t o f E du c a t ion

  P a s se d  th ro u g h  S ta te  o f M a ine -D e pa rtm e n t

  o f E d u ca t io n  a n d  C u ltu ra l S e rv ice s :

     T it le  IA  -  E d u ca t io n a lly  D ep r iv e d 8 4 .01 0 0 1 3 -0 5A - 30 5 7 -1 3 1 3 6 ,90 5        

    T i tl e  IA  -  C IP S 8 5 .01 0 0 1 3 -0 5A - 30 5 7 -1 3 6 ,34 6            

     L o c a l E n t i t le m e n t 8 4 .02 7 0 1 3 -0 5A - 30 4 6 -1 2 2 4 7 ,19 4        

     L o c a l E n t i t le m e n t -  P a r t B  S e c t ion  6 1 9 8 4 .17 3 0 1 3 -0 5A - 62 4 1 -2 3 6 ,11 9            

     T it le  I IA -T e a c h in g  Q ua li ty 8 4 .36 7 0 1 3 -0 5A - 30 4 2 -1 1 3 9 ,92 2          

     S ta te  S tab i l iz a t io n 8 4 .39 4 0 2 0 -0 5A - 20 7 7 -0 1 1 4 4 ,53 6        

     A R R A  Lo c a l E n t i t le m e n t ID E A 8 4 .3 9 1A 0 2 0 -0 5A - 30 4 6 -1 2 1 6 ,13 4          

     A d u lt  E d  an d  F a m ily  L ite ra c y 8 4 .04 8 0 1 3 -0 5A - 62 9 6 -6 4 9 ,50 5            

     E d u ca t io n  Jo b s  F u nd 8 4 .41 0 0 1 3 -0 5A - 30 9 9 -1 0 1 2 5 ,13 2        

T o ta l D ep a rtm e n t o f E d u c a t io n 7 3 1 ,79 3        

D e p ar tm e n t o f H o m e l an d  S e cu r ity

  F ed e ra l E m e rg e n cy  M a n a ge m e n t A ge n c y

      P u b lic  A s s is ta n ce  G ra n ts 9 7 .03 6 N /A 5 1 ,36 3          

T o ta l D ep a rtm e n t o f H om e la n d  S ec u r ity 5 1 ,36 3          

T O T A L  F E D E R A L A S S IS T A N C E 9 6 4 ,54 0$       



TOWN OF KITTERY, MAINE 
 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
JUNE 30, 2012 
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1.    General 
 
 The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the 
activity of all federal award programs of the Town of Kittery, Maine.  All federal financial 
assistance received is included on the schedule. 
 
2.  Basis of Accounting 
 
 The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using 
the accrual basis of accounting. 
  
3. The following programs were tested as Type A program as outlined in OMB Circular 
A-133. 
 

1) 84.027 - Local Entitlement 
2) 84.394 - State Stabilization 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
November 8, 2012 
 
Town Council 
Town of Kittery 
Kittery, Maine 
 
 We have audited the financial statements of the Town of Kittery, Maine, as of and 
for the year ended June 30, 2012, and have issued our report thereon dated Noevmber 
8, 2012.  We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
 In planning and performing our audit, we considered Town of Kittery, Maine’s 
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures 
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Kittery, Maine’s 
internal control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting. 
 
 A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material 
weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  
 
 Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited 
purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not necessarily 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might 
be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. 
 

 

3 Old Orchard Road, Buxton, Maine 04093 
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Proven Expertise and Integrity 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
 As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Town of Kittery, Maine’s 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters 
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
 This report is intended solely for the information of the Town Council, management 
and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than the specified parties. 
 

 
Certified Public Accountants 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT 
COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND 

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN 
 ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

    
November 8, 2012 
 
 
Town Council 
Town of Kittery 
Kittery, Maine 
 
Compliance 
 
We have audited the compliance of Town of Kittery, Maine, with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-
133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for 
the year ended June 30, 2012.  Town of Kittery, Maine’s major federal programs are 
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility 
of Town of Kittery, Maine’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
Town of Kittery, Maine’s compliance based on our audit. 
 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards  applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
profit Organizations.  Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material 
effect on a major federal program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about Town of Kittery, Maine’s compliance with those requirements and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.  We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.  Our audit does not 
provide a legal determination on Town of Kittery, Maine’s compliance with those 
requirements. 
 
  In our opinion, Town of Kittery, Maine, complied in all material respects, with the 
requirements referred to above that are applicable to its major federal programs for the 
year ended June 30, 2012. 
 
 
 

Proven Expertise and Integrity 
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 Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
 The management of Town of Kittery, Maine is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs.  In planning and 
performing our audit, we considered Town of Kittery, Maine’s  internal control over 
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Town of Kittery, Maine’s internal control over 
compliance.  
 
 A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of 
a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course 
of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance 
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material 
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that a material with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented or detected and correct, on a timely basis. 
 
 A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal 
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 
 
 Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant 
deficiencies, or material weaknesses.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 
 
 This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, Town 
Council, others within the entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities 
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than the specified 
parties. 
 

 
Certified Public Accountants 



TOWN OF KITTERY, MAINE 
 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 
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Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results 
 

 Financial Statements 
 
Type of auditor’s report issued :      Unqualified 
 
Internal control over financial reporting: 

 Material weakness(es) identified?            yes     X    no 

 Significant deficieny(ies) identified?            yes     X    no 

 Noncompliance material to financial statements noted         yes     X    no 
 

 Federal Awards 
 
Internal control over major programs: 
 

 Material weakness(es) identified?            yes     X    no 

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified?            yes     X    no 
 
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified 
 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
  In accordance with section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133?         yes     X    no 
 
Identification of major programs: 
 
CFDA Numbers  Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
84.027   Local Entitlement 
84.394   State Stabilization 
 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and B:  $300,000 
 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?        X    yes          no 
 

 
Section II – Financial Statement Findings 

 
None 

 
Section III – Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs 

 
None 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON STATE REQUIREMENTS 
 
November 8, 2012 
 
Town Council 
Town of Kittery  
Kittery, Maine 
  
 We have audited the financial statements of Town of Kittery for the year ended June 
30, 2012 and have issued our report thereon dated November 8, 2012.  Our audit was 
made in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and applicable state and federal laws relating to financial and compliance audits 
and, accordingly, included such tests of the accounting records and such other auditing 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
 

In connection with our audit, we reviewed the budgetary controls that are in place, 
and have reviewed the annual financial report that was submitted to the Department for 
accuracy.  In addition we have reviewed quarterly EF-U-415 reports for the year ended 
June 30, 2012 and the Town’s compliance with applicable provisions of the Maine Finance 
Act as noted under MRSA Title 20A, section 6051 as we considered necessary in 
obtaining our understanding. 
 
 The results of our procedures indicate that with respect to the items tested, the 
Town of Kittery complied, in all material respects, with the provisions referred to in the 
preceding paragraph.  With respect to items not tested, nothing came to our attention that 
caused us to believe that the Town of Kittery was in noncompliance with, or in violation of, 
those provisions.  
 
 Management has determined that adjustments were necessary to the fiscal books 
of the Town and have attached the following schedule as it relates to the reconciliation of 
audit adjustments to the initial annual financial data submitted to the MEDMS financial 
system maintained at the Department. 
 
 This report is intended solely for the information of the Town Council, School Board, 
management and the Department of Education.  This report is not intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than the specified parties. 

 
Certified Public Accountants 

Proven Expertise and Integrity 
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K IT T E R Y  S C H O O L  D E P A R T M E N T

R E C O N C IL IA T IO N  O F  M E D M S  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  T O  F IN A N C IA L  S T A T E M E N T S

F O R  T H E  Y E A R  E N D E D  J U N E  3 0 , 2 01 2

S pe c ia l R e ve n u e C a p ita l P ro je c ts

G e n e ra l F u nd F u n ds F u n d

(1 0 0 0) (2 00 0 ) (3 0 00 ) T o ta l s

Ju n e  3 0 , 2 0 1 2  b a la n ce  p e r M E D M S  f in an c ia l sy s te m 6 9 1 ,9 1 5$         1 4 0 ,2 04$             (8 9 6 ,3 0 8 )$          (6 4 ,1 89 )$        

R e ve n ue  A d ju st m e n ts :

R e ve rs e  ou t p o s t in g  o f u se  o f fun d  b a la nc e (2 7 0 ,4 3 0)        -                          -                        (2 7 0 ,4 30 )       

E xp en d itu re  A d jus tm e nt s :

A ud it  a d ju s tm e n ts (4 ,5 9 0)            -                          -                        (4 ,5 90 )           

T ra n s fe r o u t to  re s e rve  a c co u n ts (4 1 9 ,2 3 9)        -                          -                        (4 1 9 ,2 39 )       

A ud it  a d ju s tm e n ts  to  c le an  u p  A R R A  fu n d s (6 ,0 7 3)            6 ,0 73                  -                        -                    

O th e r a d jus tm e n ts :

B eg in n in g  b a la n c e s  n o t re po r te d  o n  M E D M S 9 7 8 ,6 9 0          1 6 4 ,0 99              1 ,3 2 6 ,7 5 8         2 ,4 6 9 ,5 47      

A ud it  a d ju s tm e n ts  s ta te  s ta b i l iza t io n -                     6 69                     -                        6 69                

A ud it  a d ju s tm e n ts  A R R A  lo ca l e n t i t le m en t -                     1 3 ,2 49                -                        1 3 ,2 49           

A ud it  a d ju s tm e n ts  a d u lt  e d uc a t io n  r eg u la r -                     3 0 ,0 92                -                        3 0 ,0 92           

A ud it  a d ju s tm e n ts  h e a lth y  m a in e -                     7 ,9 71                  -                        7 ,9 71             

A ud it  a d ju s tm e n ts  t i t le  IA -                     ( 5 81 )                    -                        (5 81 )              

A ud it  a d ju s tm e n ts  l oc a l e n t i t le m e n t -                     ( 1 81 )                    -                        (1 81 )              

A ud it  a d ju s tm e n ts  e d u c a t io n  jo b s  b i l l -                     ( 1 55 )                    -                        (1 55 )              

A ud it  a d ju s tm e n ts  A R R A  p re sc h oo l -                     (8 ,7 43 )                 -                        (8 ,7 43 )           

C l ie n t ad ju s tm e n ts  H e a lth y  M a in e  P a rtn e rsh ip -                     3 86                     -                        3 86                

S ch o o l h ea lth  c oo rd in a to r n o t o n  M E D M S  sy s te m -                     ( 5 00 )                    -                        (5 00 )              

A ud ite d  G A A P  B a s is  F u n d  b a la n c e  J u n e  3 0 , 2 0 1 2 9 7 0 ,2 7 3$         3 5 2 ,5 83$             4 3 0 ,4 5 0$           1 ,7 5 3 ,3 06$     

 


